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A blank sheet of paper.

Brilliantly white.
Empty.
Waiting...




What are the possibilities?

In Beethoven’s hands, it becomes
the repository for the fir§t bars of
the majestic sth Symphony.

In your 4-year-old’s, the firft

bloom of an artitic lowering,

In more prosaic custody,
a cell phone bill.

Yet each begins the same way — as a priétine possibility.

In creating a global colleétion of
unparalleled luxury hotels,

we seek our and nurture the

possibilities of beauty,
luxuryand service

inherent in the properties
we transform, cultivate

and share with the world.
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DAVID ROCKWELL
ARCHITECT
FOUNDER & CEQ ROCKWELL GROUP
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A GRE AT HOTEL

IS ABOUT
DESIGN

AND AMENITIES,
OF COURSE.

BuT THE CLINCHER 15

GREAT

| SERVICE.
" s tHE SOUL

OF EVERYTHING
STRATEGIC

DOES.

ELIZABETH VITA-FINZI
CIRECTOR OF LEARMING
FOUR SEASONS HOTEL WASHINGTON, D.C.




Strategicisa
sure thing.

It is not hit or miss.
It is a company that will

hﬁen to an
idea
and take

IU.XUI Y travel

to the

highest

level.

BILL FISCHER
KNOWN AS TRAVEL AGENT TO THE STARS
PRESIDENT AND FOUNDER
FISCHER TRAVEL — A LIFESTYLE COMPANY
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PETER YESAWICH

TRAVEL & LEISURE MARKET ANALYST
CHAIRMAN & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF
YESAWICH, PEPPERDINE, BROWN & RUSSELL



There are no

secret

ingredients.

It's \/\/hat you do

with them.
That's how it is

inNotels an
culsine
alike.
Same ingreaients,

d ifferent outcomes.

They really know how
to put it

together.

MICHAEL MINA
CHEF AND PARTNER
MICHAEL MINA, WESTIN ST. FRANCIS
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Since our Junc 2004 initial public offering, our obje&ive as a public company has
been, and rcmains, §traightforward: to build sharcholder value through §trong and
consiftent long-term investor returns. Our initial plan was to position a §trong and
high-end lodging platform on which to build value by applying our unique operating
and capital investment propositions. We are pleased to report that by the end of 2006,
we achieved this major objeétive. Now, with the most distinétively high-end portfolio
in the public lodging REIT market in place, our corporate transformation is complete.
We decply believe that we are well-positioned, and have greater potential than our
competitors, to fuel incremental growth for exceptional shareholder valuc by executing
on our thoughtful and well researched property level master plans.

2006 was an intense year of solidifying our real eétate platform and
completing the company's transformation. We were aétively engaged in a number of
high quality hotel acquisitions and dispositions, and also concluded several large and
complex value added financings. Since our initial public offering. we have acquired i
propertics with a combined value of $3 billion, sold four propertics, which no longer
fit our $trategy, for $260 million, and raised new capital or refinanced exifting loans
for a combined total of $5 billion.

Each of these adtivities was both $trategic and taétical within the
context of building a company that showcases what we do besdt: delivering the
increment to growth that is derived from the exccution of our value maximizing
property level master plans,

Although it was expected that the company’s significant transformation
would not translate into immediate earnings growth and higher returns, we recognize
that a certain loss of transparency came hand-in-hand with these multiple acquisitions,
dispositions and fundraising. However, financial results alone don't tell the entire story.
This intense year of transaétional ativity may have obscured what we believe is the
fundamental underpinning of the plan we executed: the creation of substantial net
asset value in 2006, and the development of plans for profitable, value added internal
growth opportunities to be executed over the coming years.

Since our 1 PO, we have unquestionably assembled the finest colleétion
of high-cnd. high growth hotels in the public hospitality markets. Our 2007 plan

syStematically moves us to the next phase of our company's business cycle:




CYCLICAL OUTPERFORMANCE
We selected our acquisitions carefully ro better position us to capture cyclical growth.
And our top line results lagt year illustrate both the §trength of our rcal estate and the
lack of new competition. Total RevPAR grew 9.5% and RevPAR grew 10.7% in our total
portfolio of hotels. More importantly, our gross operating profit per room increased by

15.6%, a measure of how §trong our properties delivered cash flow growth.

EXECUTION
Each of our hotels has a multi-year value creation §trategy. We are well advanced
with the various phases of planning and execution of these value added initiatives
throughout our portfolio. Each asset’s master plan process is supported by continuous
market research and testing and importantly underpinned by thorough, disciplined
and rigorous financial analysis. All of the elements — operations, marketing and
capital improvement plans — must come together to effeé a successful value creation
Strategy. Although progress will be measured over the long term. we will routinely
report on developments and completions. We recognize that both our unique selling
proposition, and our long term success as a company, depend upon successful
implementation of these value creation §trategies.
With a healthy pipeline of internal growth opportunities, we can

alrcady report on these initial successes in 2006 and early 2007:

- We have added a new beachfront reftaurant at the Four Seasons Punta Mita, plus
a 24-room Oasis hillside expansion, the Coral Suite, a second beachfront complex
made up of five bedrooms (each with the potential to be rented individually), an
expansion of the health club and spa, and 4,500 square feet of high-end retail
under the company’s five new luxury brands for men, women and children.

- We completed a spa and fitness center and new re§taurant, 1500 Ocean, at the Hotel
del Coronado, and made substantial progress on 78 new hotel condominium rooms,
comprised of 35 residential units to be delivered this spring, as well as renovation of
214 Ocean Tower rooms and 97 California Cabanas.

~ We have opened two new wine tating rooms under our “*Eno” brand at the Ritz-
Carlton Laguna Niguel and InterContinental Chicago, modeled after our highly
successful 2005 pilot concept launched at the Ritz-Carlton Half Moon Bay.

- We introduced Starbucks® at the InterContinental Miami and will soon begin

conétruétion on a new Starbucks® at the InterContinental Chicago.




- Weare in the planning §tage of a significant expansion of gue§trooms and meeting
space at the Fairmont Scottsdale, plus we are designing a Gold Club in conjunétion
with an anticipated upgrade of over 70 guestrooms, a nationally recognized club and
Michelin-rated Chef Michael Mina’s Bourbon Steak retaurant.

- We have upgraded rooms and conétruéted a Gold Lounge at the Fairmont Chicago.,
with Gold Room conversions to begin later this year, as well as conétruction of a
new spa and fitness center.

~ Construction was commenced on the Aqua Building in which we will own 226 suites
and 25,000 square fect of meeting space across from the Fairmont Chicago Hotel.

~ Weare completely repositioning a guestroom level at the Marriott Grosvenor Square
in London as the fir§t phasc of a multi-year rollout for the remainder of the hotel, as

well as creating additional mecting rooms and refurbishing the hotel’s re§taurant.

As we systematically continue to implement our disciplincd master plans, the impadét of

these inve§tments will be delivered and compounded in suftainable earnings growth.

BALANCE SHEET
The firét quarter of 2007 marks the completion of a re§truturing of the company’s
liabilities that was initiated in early 2005. Management recently completed the
refinancing of seleéted mortgages and creation of a new line of credit againgt ncarly $:
billion in unencumbered assets. As a result, we lowered our total coét of debt o 5.65%
and created subtantial availability. When we §tarted this exereise, our line of credit
was priced at 375 basis points over LIBOR. Our new facility will §tart at just 80 basis

points. We are in a very sound financial position to fund our capital initiatives.

CAPITAL RECYCLING
We will consider asset dispositions and joint ventures opportunistically, and when we
determine that a hotel no longer fits our portfolio value add program.
In conjunétion with asset sales and joint ventures we may consider prudent
acquisitions so long as this does not jeopardize our internal capital investment initiatives,

fits in with our proven $trategy and meets our disciplined underwriting §tandards.

EUROPEAN STRATEGY
The overall European market presents a significant opportunity to enhance earnings
growth and returns, and is a natural business extension for us. Our European hotel
acquisitions in 2006 were part of a well-considered. measured and multi-phase plan.

Going forward we will continue to explore financing seleét iniriatives in these dynamic




markets by partnering with appropriate investors. The right approach, and §tructured
method of partnering, will provide diversification of risk and enhanced inve§iment

returns for our shareholders.

NEW ORLEANS
We played a significant role in defining the future of the new Hyatt Jazz Ditriét in
New Orleans, as part of our §trategy to boléter the value of the Hyatt Regency, taken
out of service after the devaftating 2005 $torm. Now it is time for local government
to continue the city’s revitalization process and build upon the plans we have provided
them. Qur challenges are to resolve remaining issues such as insurance and rebuilding,
As this year progresses, we will continue to evaluate opportunities to mitigate the risks

of reconstruétion and reopening.

KEY TO THE FUTURE

So what will drive our earnings. real estate values and our corporate worth going
forward? Very simply: methodical, disciplined and systematic execution of our
business $trategies. combined with delivering consistently solid performance. With
a great rcal eftate platform in place, we arc now further positioning the company via
focused and promising organic growth initiatives. Success will be demonstrated through
ongoing growth in cash flows and improvement in net asset values. This is what we
have consistently told our §takeholders. This is our underlying philosophy. And this
is the key to our future.

In 2006 we completed the transformation of Strategic Hotels & Resorts
into a dynamic, recognized and well-respeéted public company with its future growth
dependent on execution of internal plans and not based solely on a continuing §tream
of yet identified acquisitions. Our sy§tems are now in place, as are a portfolio of
irreplaceable real eftate, a well-capitalized, §iruéturally sound financial platform, and
an experienced and motivated management team completely focused on, and dedicated
to. execution. We are now in prime position to deliver results as ongoing programs arc
methodically executed.

We wish to thank all of our §takeholders — our shareholders, business
partners, customers, lenders and employees — for their continuing interest and support.
With supply and demand dynamics in our favor, we eagerly look forward ro building

upon our platform and to executing our exciting plans.

Susoeilo— ()

LAURENCE S. GELLER JAMES E. MEAD
PRESIDENT EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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Our investment in people neturally goes hand-in-hand with our grewth plan and we spemt
time on the eritically importantissuc of human resources throughout 2006, We have methodieally
added 1o our operating, development and financial reporting reams. investing in the righe people to
execute our Strategivs, Additional resources are dedicated to divedt our eritically important master
plan projedis, with very capable, smart and experienced tweam members in place today to exeeute

our growth programs.

Let's take the Fairmont Scottsdale, which we purchased late lagt year. When we looked at
this landmark resort in a high growth market. we saw a compelling opportunity with mectings
business that turned away 525 million in group bookings a year due to inadequare conlerence
space. an underdeveloped food and beverage business. and operating results below that which our
expericnce told us was achicvable. We purchased an additional 10 acres adjacent to the property to

supplement this potential.

Operationally, we improved margins by $60 basis points in 2006 through the implementazion
of our food and beverage and labor management syftems. And we've created a multi-phased master
plan ro grow our business to mecet its potential including the addition of a signature redtaurant with
Michacl Mina, our Michelin-rated chef ar the Westin St. Francis property, a bar designed and
operated by a nationally recognized club operator, the addition of differenciated rooms through the
wse of Fairmont's Gold progeam and a luxury horel-within-a-hotel component. and the addition
of up to 330 rooms and 150,000 square teet of indoor and outdoor meeting space. We believe this

prnpcrl v I'I:l.\' 1hC PUICHI il‘l] to bC a “'L‘ll'll.‘l]dﬂll?i success tor our company.

We've now completed the transformation of our labilities to match the growrh in the
opportunitics we have with our hosels. Qurcod of debris relatively low with an average rate of 5.63%,
Maodt of our debr is also secured inveGment grade rated, and our new line of eredir, which provides
subdtantial capaeity 10 fund growth, is based on a billion dollars of high quality unencumbered
assets. Nevertheless, we have i higher level of debe than our peers and will be caurious about how

we allocate that available eapacity.




IZurope remains a great market of composite opportunitics and one that we feel strongly about.
where we can utilize our knowledge, compendium of proven skills, reputation and a higtory of success,

Like our operation in North America, we will be thoughtful in executing a disciplined $trategy.

We were fortunate 1o have made rwo very good acquisitions during 2006, But unlike these
acquisitions. the general market is one where cash returns are low and our operaring and capital
invediment enhancement §eraregics can take longer 1o implement and be more challenging, As
we carefully deploy our human capiral throughout vur company, we will approach the Evropean
opportunitics to make sure that we firdt take care of business here at home. As we continue to
closely examine Europe, we will invedtigate sele€t investments and partoers, and take our time
to make sure thar any decision to expand vur business is considered within the context of creating

the maximum value for our sharcholders.

This growth cyele has proven to be Sironger and more resilicnt than we've seen sinee the lare
90’s, but with very different drivers, Corporate profits are now driving valuations and the propensity
for corporations to spend on travel and group meetings continues to show §frength, particularly in
the high-end market. where we are focused. Similarly, we see continued evidenee of steong demand
with a high degree of pricing inclagticity for our leisure product. New supply is nowhere near where
it was at the same time inprevious eycles. Flowever, we must never lose sight of the basic cconomics
driving our business and we mudt not forget that we could be hurt by a slowdown in GDIP, Should
that vecur, given the lack of new supply in the pipeline. we would expeét a gentler slowdown than

in prior cyeles.

Qur business §trategy is focused on relative returns. The ineremental invedtments we niake roday
to improve operating margins and to produce more ateradtive properties with mulriple addicional

revenue freams shoudd position us relatively better than our peers through the cycle,




Prapenp Highbihs

FOUR SEASONS WASHINGTON, D.C.
PREMIERE HOTEL 'N NATION'S CAPITAL « PRES-
JIGIOUS GEORGETOWN ADDRESS « LEGENDARY
HOSPITALITY MEETS CREATIVE REPOSITIONING

With the recent complerion of an ambitious two-year. $27
million renovation, our master plan for this Pennsylvania
Avenue landmark will firmly eftablish this asset as one

of four premiere Four Seasons properties worldwide.

Qur rooms completed by renowned interior designer
Pierre-Yves Rochon, as well as our plans for upscale
reftaurants, expanded meeting space and retail, and an
enhanced lobby, are all designed to create energy and
exciternent. The hotel achieved our expected $500 average
daily rate in 2006.
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RITZ-CARLTON LAGUNA NIGUEL
STUNNING PACIFIC QCEAN BLUFF RETREAT
« AAA FIVE DIAMOND 19 CONSECUTIVE YEARS
+ COMPLETED $40 MILLION REPOSITIONING

Our 2006 purchase of this trophy oceanfront asset
exemplifies our acquisition criteria; firong underlying
real eftate, operational improvement potential and value
added investment opportunities. We are positioning the
hotel as the premicre luxury meetings and weekend resort
in Southern California. A new signature wine tasting
room and reconfigurarion of suites to create additional
keys already have been completed. Future plans include
new meeting space to attract midweek business.

MARRIOTT GROSVENOR SQUARE
FIVE-STAR SERVICE IN THRIVING MAYFAIR
DISTRICT * PRIME EXAMPLE CF PREMIERE LOCATION
AND VALUE ENHANCEMENT OPPORTUNITIES

With the Marriott Grosvenor Square we are applying our
proven asset management skills to a high-end European
assct. We intend to capitalize on the U K.s bright lodging
fundamentals and the hotel's prestigious Mayfair address
to create a truly unique room producét in central London.
A recently completed 524 million renovarion, including
asignificant upgrade of a number of gueétrooms and the
art deco lobby, position the Marriott Grosvenor Square
as a market leader. Our plans are to spread the properey's
appeal to additional demographic groups by sele@ted room
upgrades, incremental meeting rooms and improved food
and beverage operations. The hotel also features Gordon
Ramisay's Michelin-§tarred maze retaurant. We achieved
21.7% RevPAR growth in 2006,




FAIRMONT SCOTTSDALE PRINCESS
65-ACRE VALLEY OF THE SUN RESORT
+ TOURNAMENT PLAYERS CLUB (TPC) GOLF
COURSE ACCESS » AMBITIOUS EXPANSION PLANS

We are optimizing the potential of this 65-acre desert
resort to create the premiere luxury meetings deftination
in the robust Scottsdale suburb of Phoenix. This includes
potentially increasing the number of rooms to close to
1,000 in the hotel, adding as much as 150,000 square
feet of indoor and owtdoor meeting space, and upgrading

the horel's food and beverage and retail outlets. In 2006,

our operational sy§tems improved profit margins by 560
basis points in our firft quarter of ownership.

4

THE WESTIN ST. FRANCIS
1904 LANDMARK AND ENDURING LEGEND
* HEART OF SAN FRANCISCO » 39,000 SQUARE
FEET OF UNION SQUARE RETAIL SPACE

We are implementing key operational improvement
initiatives to reftore the glory of this historic hotel with
an unrivaled address. This includes maximizing the value
of 39,000 square feet of prime Union Square retail space,
adding a beverage outlet companion to our Michael
Mina redtaurant and examining options to increase high-
demand center city meeting space.

HOTEL DEL CORONADO
WORLD-RENCWNED RESORT ON 28
OCEANFRONT ACRES * NATIONAL HISTORIC
LANDMARK - 9% EBITDA GROWTH IN 2006

Qur vision for this American classic is to preserve its
powerful iconic &atus and position it as a premiere
group mectings destination, Development and expansion
initiatives are well under way and will provide significant
lift in value and performance. Luxury Beach Village
hotel condominiums are in confirudtion, and a §tate-of-
the-arr spa and fitness center have just been completed.
The refurbishing and repositioning of the ocean tower
and cabanas are other §tcps in the execution of our master
plan. On the drawing beard: additional retail and food
and beverage outlets and, in the longer term, an exciting
major cxpansion on the south beach of our property.



Company Profife.

Strategic Hotels & Resorts isalodging REIT speciahzing in the ownership and management of high-end

hotels and resorts in North America and Europe. The cornerstone of our business §trategy is

intensive assct management leading to disciplined exccution of value creation §trategies, Since our

initial public offering in 2004, we have completed our corporate transformation by assembling the

fineét colleétion of luxury hotels in the public hospitality markets. Fhe resule is a well-cétablished

platform for future growth, sustained by irrcplaceable real eftate. a sound balance sheet and an

experienced management team.

PORTFOLIO OF ASSETS

PROPERTY
Fairmont Chicago

Fairmont Scottsdale Princess
Four Seasons Mexico Ciry

Four Seasons Punta Mita

Four Seasons Washington, D.C.

Hotel del Coronado

Hyatt Regeney La Jolla

Hyart Regency New Orleans
Hyatr Regency Phoenix
InterContinental Chicago
InterContinental Miami
InterContinental Praha
Loews Santa Monica Beach
Marriott Grosvenor Square
Marriott Hamburg

Marriott Lincolnshire
Marriott Paris Champs Elysees
Ritz-Carlton Half Moon Bay
Ritz-Carlton Laguna Niguel
Wedtin St. Francis

LOCATION

Chicago. Illinois, USA
Scottsdale, Arizona, USA
Mexico City, Mexico

Nayarit, Mexico

Washington, Diétri¢t of Columbia, USA
Coronado, California, USA

La Jolla, California, USA

New Orleans, Louisiana, USA
Phoenix, Arizona, USA
Chicago, Hlinois, USA

Miami, Florida, USA

Prague, Czech Republic

Santa Monica, California, USA
London, England

Hamburg, Germany
Lincolnshire, Ilinois, USA
Paris, France

Half Moon Bay, éalifornia, USA
Dana Point, Calil'lornia. USA

San Francisco, California, USA

ROOMS

68s

HEéﬂNG
SPACE

62,000
54,000
14,262
3,700
12,500
130,000
30500
115,000
47,000
40.000
65,000
11,500
19,000
10,000
4500
10,000
§.600
17.000
22,724

54,000




Financial Highlichts

OPERATING STATISTICS

Dollars in thousands TOTAL NORTH AMERICAN PORTFOLIQO 2006
Occupancy 74.3%
ADR $214.81
RevlPAR 5159.50
Total RevPAR $297.78

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE RETURNS
Strategic Hotels o Resorts, S¢/P 500 and Peer Group index
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Ser forth above is a line graph comparing the yearly percentage change in the cumulative total
shareholder return on shares of our common $tock, from the closing price on June 23, 2004 to the
closing price per share on December 31, 2006, againdt (1) the cumulative rotal return of companices
listed on the $&P 500 and (ii) the cumulative total return of a peer group selefied by us (Feleor
Lodging Trut (FCH), Host Hotels & Resorts, [nc. (HST), Hospitality Properties Trut (HPT),
LaSalte Hotel Properties (LHOY) and Sunétone Hotel Investors, Inc. (SHO)). Total return values
were calculared based on cumulative total return assuming (i) the inve§tment of $100 in our common
§tock, the market index and the peer group on June 24, 2004 and (ii) reinvesiment of all dividends.

This hiftorical information set forth above is not necessarily indicative of future price performance.




EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

LAURENCE S GELLER
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

WILLIAM A PREZANT, CHAIRMAN

President and Chief Executive Officer Senior Partner of Prezant & Mollath,

JAMES E MEAD
LExecutive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

RICHARD J MOREAU
Executive Vice President,

Asset Management

JAYSON C CYR

Scnior Vice President, Controller

PAULA € MAGGIO
Vice President,

Secrctary and General Counsel

BCARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Robert P. Bowen, Chairman
Michael W, Brennan

James A. Jeffs

Sir David Michels

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
Sir David Michels, Chairman
Edward C. Coppola

James A. )effs

William A, Prezant

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
AND NOMINATING COMMITTECE
William A Prezant, Chairman
Robert P. Bowen

Michael W. Brennan

Edward C. Coppola

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
William A. Prezant, Chairman
Robert P. Bowen

Edward C. Coppola

Laurcnce 8. Geller

Director of Torrey International
Stratcgy Partners, Torrey U.S. Strategy Partners,
Forward Management

and ReFlow Management

JOHN C. DETERDING
Owner, Dererding Associates

LAURENCE 5. GELLER
President and Chief Executive Qfficer,
Straregic Hotels & Resorts, Inc,

ROBERT P, BOWEN
Dircéor of Equity Inns, Inc.

MICHAEL W BRENNAN

President, Chief Executive Ofhcer

and member of the Board of Direétors of
Firét Industrial Realty Truét, Inc.

EDWARD C. COPPOLA

Senior Executive Vice President,

Chief Inveétment Officer

and member of the Board of Dire&ors of
Macerich Company i

JAMES A. JEFFS

Director and Executive Chairman of
Max Petroleum ple, Managing Director
and Chief Investment Officer of

the Whittier Truét Company and
Director of South Ol Company

KENNETH FISHER

Senior Partner of Fisher Brothers,
member of the Executive Commirtee of
The City Investment Fund,

Direétor of Realogy Corporation and
Chairman of the Fisher House Foundation

SIR DAVID MICHELS
Dircétor of British Land Company, ple,
casylet, plc and Marks & Spencer, ple




CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

STRATEGIC HOTELS 8 RESORTS, INC
77 Wedt Wacker. Suite 4600
Chicago. [Hinois 60601

telephone - 312.658 5000
fax - 312.658.5799
c-mail ~ info@étrategichotels.com

www.firategichotels.com

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
Date ~ May 17, 2007

Time - 10:00 A.M. Central Time

Location ~ The Fairmont Chicago
200 North Celumbus Drive
Chicago, Ilinois 60601

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
Deloitte & Touche LLP
111 South Wacker
Chicago, Hlinois 60606

We had no changes in or disagreements
With OuUr zccountants on ﬂCCOU.l]fiﬂg ﬂ['ld

financial disclosures.

TRANSFER AGENT
LaSalle Bank, NA
480 Washington Boulevard
Jersey City, NJ 07310-1900

STOCK INFORMATION
New York Stock Exchange
(NYSE) Ticker Symbol: BEE

INVESTOR AND COMPANY INFORMATION

The mo$t current corporate and investor infor-
ntation can be found on the Strategic Hotels &
Resorts, Inc. website at www.strategichotels.com.
Individuals who wish to receive company press
releases or additional information, including a
copy of the Form t0-K filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission for the year ended
December 31, 2006, may contaét the company
via e-mail at info@§iraregichotels.com or mail

us direily to:

STRATEGIC HOTELS & RESORTS. INC
Attn: Investor Relations

77 Weét Wacker, Ste. 4600

Chicago, lllinois 60601

The Securities and Exchange Commission also
maintains a website that contains reports, proxy
§tatements and other information regarding
regi$tranes that file eleétronically with the
Commission, The website address is www.sec.
gov. The Company files eleétronically with the

Commission.

CERTIFICATIONS

The certifications required by Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Aét of 2002 have been signed
by the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and
the Chief Financial Officer and filed as exhibits
to the Company’s Annual Reporton Formio-K
for the year ended December 31, 2006 filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 1, 2007. Strategic Hotels & Resorts,
Inc. has also submitted to the New York Stock
Exchange (NYSE) a certificate of its Chief
Executive Officer certifying that he was not aware
of any violation by Strategic Hotels & Resorts, Inc.
of NYSE corporate governance listing Standards
as of the date of the certification.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUPPLEMENT

We have enclosed our 2006 Annual Report on
Form 10-K, which was filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on March 1. z007.
This Report contains our audited consolidated
financial §tatements and various other financial

information.
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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006
OR '
(] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Transition period from to
Commission File No. 001-32223

STRATEGIC HOTELS & RESORTS INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Maryland ° . T 331082757
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WHERE TO FIND MORE INFORMATION:

We maintain a website at http://www.strategichotels.com. Through our web site, we make available, free of
charge, our annual proxy statement, our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current
reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after we clectronically file such material with, or furnish it to,
the Securities and Exchange Commission. The SEC maintains a website that contains these reports at
http://'www.sec.gov.

This report contains registered trademarks that are the exclusive property of their respective owners, which
are companies other than us, including Embassy Suites®, Fairmont®, Four Seasons®, Hilton®, Hyatt®, '
InterContinental®, Loews®, Marriott®, Ritz-Cariton®, and Westin®. None of the owners of these trademarks,
their affiliates or any of their respective officers, directors, agents or employees has or will have any liability or
responsibility for any financial statements, projections or other financial information or other information

contained in this report.




DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

On one or more occasions, we may make statements regarding our assumptions, projections, expectations,
targets, intentions or beliefs about future events. All statements other than statements of historical facts included
or incorporated by reference in this 10-K are forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 2 1E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™),
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Words or phrases such as “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates, intends,” “may,” “plans,”
“potential,” “predicts,” “projects,” “should,” “targets,” “will,” “wiil continue,” “will likely result” or other
comparable expressions or the negative of these terms identify forward-looking statements, Forward-looking
statements reflect our current views about future events and are subject to risks, uncertainties, assumptions and
changes in circumstances that may cause actual results or outcomes to differ materially from those expressed in
any forward-looking statement. We caution that while we make such statements in good faith and we believe
such statements are based on reasonable assumptions, including without limitation, management's examination
of historical operating trends, data contained in records and other data available from third parties, we cannot
assure you that our projections will be achieved.

expects,
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Our actual results may differ significantly from any results expressed or impiied by these forward-looking
statements. Some, but not all, of the factors that might cause such a difference include, but are not limited to:

» the factors discussed in this report set forth in Item 1A under the section titled “Risk Factors™;
* availability of capital,

« our failure to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls and
procedures;

» risks related to natural disasters (including the damage sustained by our New Orleans property as a
result of Hurricane Katrina),

* increases in interest rates and operating costs;

* difficulties in identifying properties to acquire and completing acquisitions;
» availability to obtain or refinance debt;

* 1ising insurance premiums;

* delays in construction and development,

* marketing challenges associated with entering new lines of business or pursuing new business
strategies;

* our ability to dispose of existing properties in a manner consistent with our investment strategy;

« downturns in economic and market conditions, particularly levels of spending in the travel and leisure
industries in the markets where we invest;

* general volatility of the capital markets and the market price of our common shares;

* our failure to maintain our status as a REIT;

* increases in real property tax rates;

* changes in the competitive environment in our industry and the markets where we invest;
+ changes in real estate and zoning laws or regulations; and

* hostilities, including future terrorist attacks, or apprehension of hostilities that affect travel within or to
the United States, Mexico, Czech Republic, Germany, France, England or other countries where we
invest.




Any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which such statement is made. New factors
emerge from time to time and it is not possible for management to predict all such factors. We do not intend, and
disclaim any duty or obligation, to update or revise any industry information or forward-looking statements set
forth in this annual Report on Form 10-K to reflect new information, future events or otherwise, except as
required by law. Readers are urged to carefully review and consider the various disclosures made in this annual
report on Form 10-K and in our other documents filed with the SEC that attempt to advise interested parties of
the risks and other factors that may affect our business, prospects and results of operations and financial
condition.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

QOverview ' ' ' '

We were incorporated in January 2004 to own and asset manage upper upscale and luxury hotels in North
America and Europe. The terms upper upscale and luxury are classifications of hotels by brand that are defined
by Smith Travel Research, an independent provider of lodging industry statistical data. We went public in an
initial public offering in June 2004. Our founder and accounting predecessor, Strategic Hotel Capital, L.L.C., or
SHC LLC, was founded in 1997 by Laurence Getler, our President and Chief Executive Officer, WHSHC, L:L.C.
and WO/WHSHC, L.L.C. I, which we collectively call Whitehall (an affiliate of Goldman Sachs & Co.), and
others. We own our properties through our investment in Strategic Hotel Fundmg, L.L.C:, our operating
partnership, which we refer to herein as SH Funding.

We operate as a self-administered and self-managed real estate investment trust, or REIT, managed by our
board of directors and executive officers and conduct our operations through our direct and indirect subsidiaries
including SH Funding. We are the sole managing member of SH Funding and hold approximately 999 of its
membership units as of March 1, 2007.

v
L

As of February 28, 2007, we: .

* own the fee interest in 13 hotels, comprising 6,794'r00ms, located in Arizona, California, Ilinois,
Louisiana, Washington, D.C., Mexico and the Czech Republic;

» have five leases with unaffiliated lessors; two leasehold interests in hotels in Paris, France and
Hamburg, Germany where we also asset manage the hotels on behalf of the lessors, two ground lease
interests in hotels in Lincolnshire, Illinois and in London, England, and a ground lease interest in a-land
parcel that is part of a hotel property in Scottsdale, Arizona, comprising an aggregate of 1,084 rooms;

* own land held for de\[eiopgneqt: the LaSolana project, adjacent to our Four Seasons Punta Mita Resort,
which includes a 20.5-acre site for the development of hotel suites and a 27.0-acre site for the
development of for-sale villas and a 10.0-acre parcel adjacent to the Fairmont Scottsdale Princess;

«  own an 85% interest in each of the InterContinental Hotel in Miami and the InterContinental Hotel in
Chicago, comprising an aggregate of 1,433 rooms, and we asset manage such hotels on behalf of ‘the
* joint ventures;

* own a 31% interest in and act as asset manager for a joint venture, which joint venture is with two
unaffiliated parties, that is developing the Four Seasons Residence Club Punta Mita, a luxury vacation
' ‘home product that will be sold in fractional ownershlp interests on property adjacent to our Four
Seasons Punta Mita Resort hotel in Mexico; and

* own a 45% interest in a joint venture, which joint venture is with two unaffiliated parties, that owns a
hotel in Coronado, California (San Diego), comprising 679 rooms, and we asset manage that hotel on
behalf of the joint venture,

We do not operate any of our hotels directly; instead we employ internationally known hotel management
companies to operate them for us under management contracts or operating leases. Our existing hotels are
operated under the widely recognized upper upscale and luxury brands of Fairmont®, Four Seasons®, Hyatu®,
InterContinental®, Loews®, Marriott®, Ritz-Carlton® and Westin®. The Hotel del Coronado is operated by a well
regarded specialty management company, KSL Resorts. '

As used'in this report, references to “we”, “our”, “us”, “*SHR” and the “REIT” are to Strategic Hotels &

Resorts, Inc. and, except as the context otherwise requires, its consolidated subsidiaries, including SH Funding,
L.L.C. and its consolidated subsidiaries: References to “Whitehall” are to Whitehall Street Real Estate Limited
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Partnership VII, Whitehall Street Real Estate Limited Partnership 1X and their respective affiliates. Whitehall is
affiliated with The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., which is the parent company of Goldman, Sachs & Co.
References to “Prudential” are to Prudential Financial, Inc. and its affiliates, including Strategic Value Investors,
LLC, The Prudential Insurance Company of America, Prudential Investment Management, Inc., PIC Realty
Corporation and Prudential Assets, LLC, and to entities owning our securities over which Prudential Financial,
Inc. or its affiliates have investment management discretion, including (SHC/Olayan) Redemption Vehicle, LLC
and SVI (SHC/Houston} Redemption Vehicle, LLC. ,

We seek to maximize asset values and operating results through asset management. We also seek to acquire
additional properties that meet our disciplined investment criteria. Based on our past experience, we believe that
full-service properties such as ours in the upper-upscale and fuxury segments of the hotel industry may benefit us
to a greater extent than properties in other segments during periods of economic recovery. Given our history of
asset management, strategic acquisitions and selective dispositions, we believe that we are well-positioned to
take advantage of current favorable market conditions.

Business Strategy

We are a preeminent owner of upper upscale and luxury branded hotels primarily in the United States with
select international hotels. We believe our future growth will be driven by the execution of a two-fold business '
strategy, which focuses on maximizing asset values and operating results through asset management and by
research-driven capital deployment through acquisitions and internal investment.

Earnings Growth Through Expert Asset Management

We believe that we enhance our earnings growth through expert asset management, which will ultimately
generate higher overall investment returns. We have developed a comprehensive asset management system that
we believe maximizes cash.flow growth and property value. In addition, we believe that our asset management
style has helped us to maximize economic benefits in an industry that has suffered reduced performance in the
past, and to position our properties for the current recovery. Qur value- added asset management system has the
following general components

Working in partnership with our hotel managemeut companies, we build an asset management approach to
enhance the cash flow and value of our properties:

«  Our senior management team has long-standing relationships with executives of most major hospitality
companies. Led by Laurence Geller, our President and Chief Executive Officer, with over 40 years of
experience in the hospitality industry, our senior management has developed strong relationships with
hotel operators throughout the hotel industry. In addition, we generally believe we have asset managers
with broader experience in hotel operations than our competitors, in large part as a result of our belief
that the efficiency of our team requires in-depth knowledge of all of the components of each property.

»  We believe that we can more effectively influence the operating performance of our hotels if we have
multi-property relationships with a select group of hotel management companies, which we call our
preferred operators, We select our preferred operators based on our opinion as to whether an operator
has strong brand recognition, superior marketing capabilities, management depth and an ability to work
with our team to create efficient operations. Because our preferred operators provide the services,
technology, human resources training and infrastructure to conduct day-to-day hotel operations, we can
focus our energies on monitoring their performance, identifying areas of improvement and providing
our operators with useful feedback that they can utilize to improve operating results and enhance the
value of our hotels. ‘ '

+  We have a proven track record of improving hotel operating performance through the application of
value-added programs involving consumer and market research, competitive benchmarking,
technology upgrades and systems development and upgrades. In addition, we have long-standing
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relationships with specialists with whom we consult or recommend to the managers of our hotels as
needed in order 1o provide them more focused support and expertise in areas such as consumer
research, purchasing, retailing, merchandising, food and beverage services, physical plant and
equipment maintenance, labor systems and parking. Our asset management group is supported by:

! M Ry . N ) . .
* consumer-based marketing research to assess overall trends in consumer preferences and attitudes
on issues such as price, brand, services, amenities and facility needs that have led to strategies that
alter customer mix, and improve pricing and overall total revenues; and

* well-developed techniques for measuring and analyzing departmental and overall hotel
profitability and operatmg trends that have led to implementation of efficiency measures which
result in cost savings.

We have also improved operating performance at a number of our hotels through measures including:
» appealing real estate taxes, generating annualized tax savings;

» assisting our hotel operators in conducting energy reviews and audits, generating fuel and electric
savings;

* assisting our operators in a review of staffing levels and productivity standards, generating labor
savings; and

* assisting our operators in a review of their food purchasing practices and vendor pricing,
~ generating reductions in food costs,

Our hotels are operated under various brands in different locations, which exposes us to diverse
management approaches and provides us with an opportunity to identify, develop and apply what we
believe to be the best practices in the industry. Our asset management group uses this knowledge to
help our preferred operators implement revenue enhancement opportunities, improve operating
performance through cost-saving actions and gcnerate incremental profitability above a particular
hotel’s baseline results.

We provide rigorous oversight of the properties and management companies to ensure the alignment of the
management companies’ and our interests and their compliance with management contracts relating to our

properties:

We closely monitor the management companies to which we have delegated the management of our
hotels to ensure that they adhere to the terms of their contracts with us. Our asset management group
systematically monitors operating decisions, which are made independently by hotel operators but
impact the profitability of our hotel properties. In addition, our asset management group works with
each of our preferred operators-at their corporate level to seek to maximize the value of our properties
through the operation of their internal programs and to ensure that cost allocations to each of our
properties are appropriate.

As a result of the depth of our involvement in our hotel properties, we believe we attain more favorable
terms upon the renewal of management contracts. For example, where possible, we negotiate
management contracts that align the interests of hotel operators with those of the hotel owner by
increasing the emphasis on incentive management fees, which we believe focuses the obligation of
each hotel’s management to operate for the benefit of the hotel rather than for the benefit of the brand
the hotel carries. In certain cases, these initiatives have included'a cap on the allocation of certain chain
level expenses to ‘our hotels and, in other cases, have included persuading hotel management
companies to adopt money-saving labor management and food and beverage purchasing systems,

Our asset management team is integral to the  capital planning at each hotel including both routine
maintenance expenditures and innovative hotel investments to enhance revenues:

We work with our managers to ensure that each of our hotel properties is maintained in good repair and
condition in conformity with applicable laws and regulations and consistent with the brand's standards,
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other hotels and the provisions of the management agreements. The expense of routine repairs,
maintenance and ordinary course capital expenditures performed by our management companies is
deducted from a furniture, fixtures and equipment reserve, which is generally funded on a monthly
basis by a portion of a hotel’s gross revenue. With respect to extraordinary capital expenditures or
expenditures outside the ordinary course of operating a hotel, we typically retain approval rights,
spending limits or other restrictions that limit the ability of our management companies to perform
significant programs of capital improvements, renovation or refurbishing that we believe are
unnecessary, undesirable or would result in an unacceptable return on investment.

» Our team’s creative approach often results in capital investment plans for conversion of unused or
underutilized space to new revenue-generating facilities. Examples have included changing the usage
of existing hotel space and the identification of expansion areas to create additional meeting rooms,
guest rooms and retail outlets. . ‘

Asset Growth Through Acquisitions

Key elements. Our acquisition strategy incorporates three key elements:

+ Focusing on the acquisition of upper upscale and luxury hotels in attractive markets with barriers to
entry where we believe there are opportunities for us to add value by employing our asset management
skills and systems; ' '

+ Targeting either hotels with existing management contracts or hotels where there is an opportunity to
put in place a management contract with one of our preferred operators that would enhance asset value;
and

« Building single and multi-brand relationships with our preferred operators, which are leading hotel
management companies that have strong brand recognition, superior marketing capabilities,
management depth and an ability to work with our team to create efficient operations.

Acquire upper upscale and luxury hotels. We target upper upscale and luxury hotels in select urban
and resort markets, including major business centers and leisure destinations, with strong growth
characteristics and high barriers to entry. Typically our target hotels would be larger than 150 rooms and
have growth or expansion opportunities. We believe that the upper upscale and luxury hotel sector is an
extremely attractive sector for long-term investment, especially considering the supply.constraints
characteristic of that sector. These supply constraints include the importance of location, lack of available
land, high development costs, long development and entitlement lead times and brand trade area restrictions
that prevent the addition of a certain brand or brands in close proximity. Moreover, the management-
intensive nature of upper upscale and luxury hotels provides our experienced management team with the
opportunity to enhance value and maximize operating results at these hotels by monitoring performance and
suggesting practical strategies for creating greater revenue flow to the bottom line.

Target hotels with management contracts or where we can put value-enhancing management
confracts in place. We believe that a significant percentage of upper upscale and luxury hotels in North
America have management contracts with remaining durations in excess of five years. We believe that our
operating skills and experience with our preferred operators enables us to acquire properties with existing
management contracts and provide for opportunities to achieve higher initial investment returns than we
might aitain from similar-quality hotels without management contracts. '

Continuous research and disciplined investment decisions. As a result of our ongoing research, the
selection of target markets and individual property targets is updated continiously to foster a proactive
acquisition process. We believe our acquisition process permits us to make disciplined investment decisions
quickly and efficiently, offering sellers the benefit of an expedited closing and certainty of execution.
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Selected international opportunities. We have the skills and experience to acquire and asset manage
hotels both domestically and internationally, which have permitted us to diversify our portfolio
geographically. We currently own hotels in Mexico City and Punta Mita, Nayarit, Mexico, Prague, Czech
Republic, and London, England, and leasehold interests in hotels in Paris, France and Hamburg, Germany.
We believe that the international scope of our knowledge and skills places us in a unique position among
lodging REITs and permits us to take advantage of select international hotel opportunities.

Condominium hotel, fractional ownership and other development. Although our principal focus is on
the development of value in our hospitality business, certain of our properties may have alternative, higher
relative value residential uses. In selected cases, management intends to pursue a residential strategy in
conjunction.with residential for sale experts and/or partners. The goals in a residential conversion strategy
would include improving the return on an existing asset, liquidating an asset at a premium that would permit
reinvestment into additional hospitality assets, and/or providing a mixed use opportunity that would be
complementary and therefore increasing the revenue potential of an investment.

Growth through joint ventures. We have had a successful history of entering into joint venture
arrangements and will consider opportunities in the future when:

» they are with strategic partners whose financial objectives are compatible with ours;

» they provide compelling economics that may include current asset management fee income, and upside
participation; and/or

« they provide access to strategically important hotel acquisitions.

Advantages of this investment strategy include allowing us to expand our portfolio, increase fee-based
income, enhance the return on our real estate through fee and incentive income and foster closer
relationships with our preferred operators. We can also gain additional diversification of our capital and
higher return on investment by investing in a larger number of properties, although through a smaller
investment in each property.

Growth through strategic asset management. We intend 1o seek to asset manage properties when such
an involvement leads to access to profitable hotel investment opportunities. Our goal is not to enter the
traditional asset management business and compete with pure fee for service asset managers on price, but
ratier to take advantage of special opportunities, like the joint venture opportunities previously described, or
strategic alliances that will allow us to earn fees to supplement the returns from our owned properties.
Similar to our joint venture properties, through these management relationships we expect to gain
familiarity with the assets we oversee which may position us favorably to acquire ownership of these
properties if they are offered for sale.

. i ' .

Recycle capital for future investments through epportunistic dispositions, We will take advantage of
opportunities to sell or enter into a joint venture with respect to our ownership in a property, thereby freeing
capital for future investment, when we believe that a disposition or entering into a joint venture would be in
our best interest and in compliance with continued qualification as a REIT. For example, we are likely to
sell or enter into a joint venture with respect to ownership in properties in circumstances where:

+ we believe that our asset management team has maximized the property’s value;
» the proceeds of the disposition are unusually attractive;
* the market in which the property is located is declining or static; or

* competition in the market requires substantial capital investment, which will not generate returns that
meet our criteria. ‘




Competition : - S

The hotel industry i$ highly competitive and our hotel investments are subject to competition from other
hotels for guests. Competition is based on a number of factors, most notably convenience of location, brand
affiliation, price, range of services and guest amenities or accommodations offered and quality of customer
service. Competition is often specific to the individual markets in which our properties are located and includes
competition from existing and new hotels operated under brands in the upper-upscale and luxury segments as
described under “Item 2. Properties.” Increased competition could have a material adverse effect on occupancy,
average daily rate and room revenue per available room of our hotel$ or may require us to make capital
improvements that we otherwise would not have to make, which may result in decreases in our profitability.

Because our hotels operate in the luxury and upper upscale segment of the market, we face increased
competition from providers of less expensive accommodations, such as limited service hotels or independent
owner-managed hotels, during periods of economic downturn when leisure and business travelers become more
sensitive to room rates. As a result, there is pressure to lower average daily rates during such periods to compete
for these guests.

We face competition from institutional pension funds, private equity investors, other REITs and numerous
local, regional and national owners in each of our markets. Some of these entities may have substantially greater
financial resources and may be able to accept more risk than we can prudently manage. Competition may
generally reduce the number of suitable investment opportunities offered to us and increase the bargaining power
of property owners seeking to sell.

Employees

At December 31, 2006, we had 54 full-time and 3 part-time corporate employeces. We believe that our
relations with our employees are good. None of our corporate employees are unionized. .

Environmental

Environmental consultants retained by us or our lenders conducted Phase 1 environmental site assessments
in 2006 on many of our properties. These Phase I assessments often relied on older environmental assessments
prepared in connection with a prior financing or acquisition. The lenders did not conduct Phase I assessments on
our European properties, although older environmental assessments or building engineering surveys exist for
these properties. Phase I assessments are designed to evaluate the potential for environmental contamination on
properties based generally upon site inspections, facility personnel interviews, historical information and certain
publicly-available databases, but Phase I assessments will not necessarily reveal the existence or extent of all
environmental conditions, liabilities or compliance concerns at the propemes

Although the Phase I assessments and other environmental reports we have réviewed disclose certain
conditions on our properties and the use of hazardous substances in operation and maintenance activities that
could pose a risk of environmental contamination or liability, we are not aware of any environmental lability that
we believe would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash
flows. See “Item 1A. Risk Factors—Environmental and other governmental laws and regulations could increase
our compliance costs and liabilities and adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations” and
“Item 1A. Risk Factors—The presence of any environmental conditions at our properties could result in '
remediation and other costs and liabilities and adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.”

Insurance

Our management believes that our properties are adequately covered by insurance, subject to the risks
described under “Item 1A, Risk Factors” and the following. We are responsible for arranging the insurance for
most of our hotels, although in certain cases, hotel management companies assume responsibility for arranging
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insurance under the relevant operating agreement. Our properties are covered by-blanket insurance policies,
which cover multiple properties. In the event that these blanket policies are drawn on to cover losses on other
properties, the amount of insurance coverage available under such policies would thereby be reduced and could
be insufficient to cover the remammg propertles insurable risks.

. 0

In August 2003, Hurricane Katrina caused substantial damage to the Hyatt Regency New Orleans property.
The hurricane damage also caused significant interruption to the business and the hotel has effectively ceased
operations. We have comprehensive insurance coverage (both property damage and business interruption) for
this loss providing for an aggregate of $350.0 million in coverage per loss, subject to a deductible of |
approximately $11.0 million. Our darnage assessment teams, working with the insurance provider adjusters, have
inspected the property and are implementing a restoration plan. The recovery effort is expected to include
replacing portions of the building, landscaping and furniture. While we expect the insurance proceeds will be
sufficient to cover most of the replacement cost of the restoration of the hotel, certain deductibles and limitations
will apply. No determination has been made as to the total amoupt or timing of those insurance payments, and
those insurance .payments.may not be sufficient to cover the costs of the entire restoration. We have hired
consultants to assess business interruption claims and are currently negotiating with our insurance carrier
regarding coverage for these income losses sustained.

Hotel Management Agreements

Our hotels are managed and operated by third parties pursuant to management or lease agreements with our
lessee subsidiaries (as discussed below) or, in the case of the Paris:-Marriott Champs Elysees, an independent
third party that subleases the property.from us. See “Item 1. Business—Taxable REIT Subsidiary” below. The
agreements generally provide for the:payment of base.management fees of between 1.0% to 4.0% of gross
revenues, as defined in the applicable agreement. In addition, an incentive fee may be paid if certain criteria are
met. Certain properties also may pay advisory fees or license fees. The remaining terms (not including renewal
options) of these management agreements range from three to 30 years Our management agreements with our
operators typically have the terms described below. ’ ’

+ Operational services. The managers have exclusive authority to supervise, direct and control the
day-to-day operation and management of the hotels, including establishing all room rates, processing
reservations, procuring inventories, supplies and services, and preparing public relations, publicity and
marketing plans for the hotels. The manager receives compensation in the form of a base management
fee and an incentive management fee, typically calculated as percentages of gross revenues and
operating profits, respectively. In some cases, the incentive-management fee is paid only after the

"owner has received a certain level of income. ¢

»  Executive supervision and management services. The managers supervise all managerial and other
employees for the hotels, review the operation and maintenance of the hotels, prepare reports, budgets
and projections and provide other administrative and accounting support services to the hotel. In some
cases, we maintain authority to approve the appointment of the hotel’s general manager. '

*  Chain services. The management agreements require the manager to furnish chain services that are
generally inade avallable to other hotels managed by that operator. Such services include: (1) the
development and operauon of computer systems and reservation services, (2) management and

' admlmstratlve services, (3) marketing and sales services, (4) human resources training services and
(5) such addmonal services as may from time to time be more efﬁc1ent1y performed on a nauonal
reglonal or group level.

4 1

»  Working capital and fixed asset supplies. Our management agreements typically require us to
maintain working capital for each hotel and to'fund the cost of fixed asset supplies such as linen and
other similar items. We are also responsible for providing funds to meet the cash needs for the hotel
operations if at any time the funds available from hotel operations are insufficient to meet the financial
requirements of the hotels, :
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»  Furniture, fixtures and equipment replacements. The management agreements generally provide that
once each year the manager will prepare a list of furniture, fixtures and equipment to be acquired and
certain routine repairs to be performed in the next year and an estimate of the funds that are necessary
therefore, subject to our review or approval. Under the agreement, we are required to provide to the
manager all necessary furniture, fixtures and equipment for the operation of the hotels (including
funding any required furniture, fixtures and equipment replacements). For purposes of funding the
furniture, fixtures and equipment replacements, a specified percentage of the gross revenues of the
hotel is deposited.by the manager in an escrow account (typically 3.0% to 5.0%).

Building alterations, improverents and renewals. The management agreements generally require the
manager Lo prepare an annual estimate of the expenditures necessary for major repairs, alterations,
improvements, renewals and replacements to the structural, mechanical, electrical, heating, ventilating,
air conditioning, plumbing and vertical transportation elements of each hotel. In addition to the
foregoing, the management agreements generally provide that the manager may propose such changes,
alterations and improvements to the hotel as are required by reason of laws or regulations or, in the
manager’s reasonable Judgment to keep the hotel in a safe, competitive and efficient operating
condition, :

»  Sale of the hotel. Most of the management agreements limit our ability to sell, lease or otherwise
transfer the hotels unless the transferee is not a competitor of the manager, and unless the transferee
assumes the related management agreements and meets specified other conditions.

s Service marks. During the term of the management agreements, the service mark, symbols and logos
-currently used by the manager may be used in the operation of the hotel. Any right to use the service
marks, logo and symbols and related trademarks at a hotel will terminate with respect to that hotel upon
termination of the management agreement with respect to such hotel.

We lease one of our hotels, the Marriott Hamburg, pursuant to a lease agreement whereby gent is paid by the
management company, as lessee, to us for an amount equal to a fixed base rent plus a specified percentage of
profits in excess of the base rent. Otherwise, the terms of the lease are similar 1o the terms of the management
contracts described above.

Lease Agreements .

We are the'tenant under leases with third-party landlords for the Marriott meolnshlre the Marriott London
Grosvenor Square, the Paris Marriott Champs Elysees, the Hamburg Marriott and a parcel of land that is part of
the Fairmont Scotisdale Princess hotel property. The terms of these leases, including renewal options, range from
46 to 78 years. These lease agreements require us to make annual rental payments comprised of a minimum
rental amount (subject to indexation) plus additional rent comprised of a percentage of hotel operating profit, less
minimum rent, or the greater of a minimum rental amount and a percentage of certain revenues.

Taxable REIT Subsuilary .

The provisions of the REIT Modemization Act allow REITs, sub_]ect to certain limitations, to own, directly
or indirectly, up to 100% of the stock of a taxable REIT subsidiary, or TRS, that can engage in businesses
previously prohlbued to a REIT. In particular, these provisions permit hotei REITs to own a TRS that leases
hotels from the REIT, rather than requiring the lessee to be a separate, unaffiliated party. However, hotels leased
to a TRS still must be managed by an unaffiliated third party. The TRS provisions are complex and impose
several conditions on thé use of TRSs. No more than 20% of a REIT’s assets may consist of securities of TRSs,
and no more than 25% of a REIT's assets may consist of non-qualifying assets, including securities of TRSs and
other taxable subsidiaries. In addition, the TRS legislation provides that a REIT may generally not own more
than 10% of the voting power or value of a corporation that is not treated as a TRS,

We have formed SHC DTRS, Inc. as a wholly-owned TRS. Each of our 13 domestic hotels that are subject
to management agreements are leased by our relevant property-owning subsidiary to limited liability company
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subsidiaries of SHC DTRS, Inc. As described below, these leases provide for a base rent plus a percentage rent.
These leases must contain economic terms which are similar to a lease between unrelated parties. Otherwise, we
may have to pay a 100% penalty tax. We have a similar arrangement with respect to our foreign hotels in Mexico
and England. In Prague, there is an existing lease agreement between the property-owning entity and a tenant that
has prepaid the rent, which is being amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of 15 years. The management
agreements between the relevant property-owning subsidiary and the relevant hotel management company have
been amended or assigned, as the case may be, so that the hotel management company has agreed to manage the
properties directly with the relevant limited liability company subsidiary of one of our TRSs. In addition, in order
to comply with French law and the REIT qualification rules, a subsidiary of SanMon Services, LLC, which is
controlled by a third party, subleases the Paris Marriott Champs Elysees from us in lieu of a sublease wnh a TRS.
The owner of SanMon Services, LLC bears the economic risks and benefits of this arrangement. '

Our TRS Leases

Each lease for the hotels, other than with respect to the InterContmental Prague, has a non-cancelable term
of approximately five years, subject to earlier termination upon the occurrence of certain cont1ngenc1es such as
damage or destruction that renders the hotel ungmtable for the lessee’s use and occupancy, condemnation or our
sale or disposition of the hotel.

During the term of each lease, other than with respect to the InterContinental Prague, our. TRS lessees are
obligated to pay a fixed annual base rent and a percentage rent. In Prague, the tenant has prepaid the rent as noted
above, Percentage rent is calculated by multiplying fixed percentages by gross room revenues and other revenues
for each of the hotels with certain adjustments. Percentage rent is paid quarterly, except with respect to the Paris
Marriott Champs Elysees which is paid monthly. Base rent accrues and is paid monthly. The base rent and
percentage rents are adjusted annually for changes in the consumer price or similar index.

Other than fixed charges, including real estate and personal property taxes, capital expenditures and a
reserve for capital expenditures, which are obligations of the lessor, the leases require our TRS lessees to pay
rent, property insurance, all costs and expenses and all utility and other charges incurred in the operation of the
hotels. ' '

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and Corporate Governance Documents

'We have adopted a code of business conduct and ethics that applies to all of our employees, directors and
officers, including our principal executive officer and principal financial accounting officer. This code of
business conduct and ethics is designed to comply with SEC regulations and New York Stock Exchange
corporate governance rules related to codes of conduct and ethics and is posted on our corporate website at
http://www strategichotels.com. In addition, our corporate governance guidelines and charters for our audit,
compensation and corporate governance and nominating commitlees are also posted on our corporate website.
Copies of our code of business conduct and ethics, our corporate governance guidelines and our committee
charters are also available free of charge upon request directed to Investor Relations, Strategic Hotels & Resorts,
Inc., 77 West Wacker Drive, Suite 4600, Chicago, lllinois 60601.
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ITEM 1A.RISK FACTORS. - ' .

In addition to the factors discussed elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K, the following are factors
that could cause our actua} results to differ matenally from those projected in any future-lookmg staternenls and '
could affect our future financial performance

Risks Related to Our Business .

. ) - ' .
If we fail to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls and ,
procedures in the future, we may not be able to accurately report our financial results, which could have an
adverse effect on our business. , ,

If our internal contro! over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures are not effective, we
cannot provide reliable financial information. Subsequent to the filing of our annual report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2005, we determined that our consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004 mcluded in our annual report on Form' 10-K and for the quartér ended March 31,
2005 included in our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 3L 2005 should be restated
because the statements incorrectly classified certain items as cash flows from’ operatmg activities that should
have been reported as cash flows from investing activities. Accordingly, we restated cur consolidated statements
of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 and our consolidated statement of cash flows for
the quarter ended March 31, 2005 in our annual report on Form 10- K/A for the year ended December 31, 2005
and our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2006, respectively. In
connection with these restatements, we determined that our internal control over financial reporting as of
March 31, 2005 and’ December 3 1, 2005 was riot effective due to the existence of a material weakness in lhe '
internal control over financial reporting relating to the proper classification of cash flows pertaining to certain
escrow deposits, purchased notes receivable and investments in our hotels. Although we have implemented
additional procedures that we believe enable us to properly prepare and review our consolidated statement of
cash flows, we cannot be certain that these’ measures will ensiire that we will maintain adequate controls over our
financial reporting process in the future. If we discover additional deficiencies, we will make efforts to rémediate
these deficiencies; however, there is no assirance what we will be successful either in identifying deficiencies or
in their remediation. Any failure to maintain effective controls in the future could adversely affect our business or
cause us to fail to meet our reporting obligations. Such noncompliance could also result in an adverse reaction in
the financial marketplace due to a loss of investor confidence in the reliability of our financial statements.'In, -+
addition, perceptions of our business among customers, suppllers rating agencies, lenders mvestors secunucs
analysts and others could be adversely affected '

] [ . .
o . Y . . o

Our New Orleans hotel'property has been substantially damaged by Hurricane Katrina. There can be no

assurance as to when the property will be restored and when our operations there will fully recover, and
ultimately whether our losses will be completely covered by our insurance.

Our Hyatt Regency New Orleans Propcrty has been substantially damaged by Humcane Katrma that struck
the Gulf Coast region in August 2005, and as a result, the hotel’s operations have substantially ceased. The
physical damage to the property and the interruption of the hotel’s operations has had and is expected to have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations. Substantial capital expenditures for the restoration of the
property are required and we expect to incur operating losses at the property for the foreseeable future. There can
be no assurance that our losses from property damage and business interruption will be offset by the proceeds of
insurance obtained under our insurance policy. Further, the insurance policy requires payment by us of a
deductible of approximately $11.0 million for this claim. Ultimately, our claims for insurance will be subject 1o
review by our insurance carrier, any of which may be rejected in whole or in part. The value of the hotel and its
future contribution to our results of operations will depend on our ability to restore the property without any
substantial delays and on the recovery of the New Orleans local economy in general and, in particular, the
recovery of the New Orleans tourism and convention industry. A natural disaster producing the devastation of
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Hurricane Katrina is unprecedented in recent U.S. history and the recovery of the local economies and impacted
industries in the affected regions will turn on the leadership and actions of federal, state and local governments,
which are beyond our control. We can provide no assurance as to the timing and ultimate success of government
led recovery efforts, - ¢ ‘

We rely on our President and Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Laurence Geller, the loss of whom could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

Qur continued soccess will depend to a significant extent on the efforts and abilities of our President and
Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Laurence Geller. Mr. Geller is an experienced hote] industry senior executive,
operator and consultant with over 40 years of experience working with many major multinational hotel
companies and executives. Mr. Geller is actively engaged in our management and determines our strategic
direction, especially with regard to operational, financing, acquisition and disposition activity. Mr. Geller’s
departure could have a material adverse effect on our operations, financial condition and operating results.

Mr. Geller’s employment agreement was amended and restated on September 7, 2006 pursuant to which
Mr. Geller will serve as our President and Chief Executive Officer through December 31, 2009, subject to earlier
termination under certain circumstances as described in the agreement. :

The geographic concentration of our hotels in California makes us more susceptible to economic dewnturn in
that state. '

As of March 1, 2007, six of our hotels were located in California, the greatest concentration of our portfolio
properties in any state. California has been historically at greater risk to certain acts of nature, such as floods and
earthquakes, than other states, and has also been subject to a more pronounced economic downturn than other
regions, It is also possible that a change in California laws applicable to hotels and the lodging industry may have
a greater impact on us than a change in comparable laws in another jurisdiction where we have hotels.
Accordingly, our business, financial condition and results of operations may be particularly susceptible to a
downturn or changes in the California or other local economies where we operate.

We have substantial debt, a portion of which is variable rate debt, and we may incur additional indebtedness,
which may negatively affect our business and financial results.

Our debt may negatively affect our business and financial results, including:

* requiring us to use a substantial portion of our funds from operations to make required payments on
principal and interest, which will reduce the amount available for distributions to stockholders, funds
available for operations and capital expenditures, future business opportunities and other purposes;

» making us more vulnerable to economic and industry downturns and reducing our flexibility in
responding to changing business and economic conditions;

+ limiting our ability to borrow more money for operations, capital or to finance acquisitions in the
future; and ‘

* requiring us to dispose of properties in order to make required payments of interest and principal.

We have a substantial amount of outstanding indebtedness, a portion of which bears interest at a variable
rate, and we may borrow additional variable rate debt under our revolving credit facility. Increases in interest
rates on our existing variable rate indebtedness would increase our interest expense, which could harm our cash
flow and our ability to:pay distributions. . . . y

1
r

Since we anticipate that our internally generated cash will be adequate to repay only a portion of our
indebtedness prior to maturity, we expect that we will be required to repay debt through re-financings and/or
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equity offerings. The amount of our existing indebtedness may adversely affect our ability to repay debt through
re-financings. If we are unable to refinance our indebtedness on acceptable terms, or at all, we might be forced to
dispose of one or more of our properties on disadvantageous terms, which might result in losses to us and which
might adversely affect cash available for distributions. If prevailing interest rates or other factors at the time of
refinancing result in higher interest rates on refinancing, our interest expense would increase, which would
adversely affect our operating results.

We also intend to incur additional debt in connection with future acquisitions of real estate. We may, in
some instances, borrow under our revolving credit facility or borrow new funds to acquire properties. In addition,
we may incur mortgage debt by obtaining loans secured by a portfolio of some or all of the real estate properties
we acquire. If necessary.or advisable, we may also borrow funds to satisfy the requirement that we distribute to
stockholders at least 90% of our annual REIT taxable income or to ensure otherwise that we maintain our
qualification as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Our working capital and liquidity reserves may not be adequate to cover all of our cash needs and we may
have to obtain financing from either affiliated or unaffiliated sources. Sufficient financing may not be available
or, if available, may not be available on reasonable terms. Additional borrowings for working capital purposes
will increase our interest expense, and therefore may harm our financial condition and results of operations.

Our organizational documents do not limit the amount of indebtedness that we may incur. If we become
highly leveraged, then the resulting increase in debt service would reduce cash available for distribution and
could adversely affect our ability to make payments on our outstandmg indebtedness and harm our ﬁnancml
condition.

An ecanomic slowdown would adversely affect our results by causmg declmes in average daily room rates or
occupancy.

The performance of the lodging industry has traditionally been closely linked with the general economy. In
an economic downturn, upper upscale and luxury hotels may be more susceptible to a decrease in revenues, as
compared to hotels in other categories that have lower room rates. In periods of weak demand, profitability is
negatively affected by the relatively high fixed costs of operating upper upscale and luxury hotels, when
compared to other classes of hotels. An economic slowdown could result in further declines in average daily
room rates or occupancy, and thereby have a material adverse effect on our results of operatlons

Rising operating expenses and cosis of capital improvements could reduce our cash ﬂow,lEBI TDA and funds
available for future distributions.

Our properties are subject to operating risks common to the lodging industry in general. If a property’s
occupancy or room rates drop to the point where its revenues are insufficient to cover its operating expenses,
then we could be required to spend additional funds for that property’s operating expenses. In the future, our
properties will be subject to increases in real estate and other tax rates, utility costs, operating expenses,
insurance costs, repairs and maintenance and administrative expenses, which could reduce our cash flow,
Earnings Before Interest Expense, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization, or EBITDA, and funds available for
future distributions.

Our hotel properties have an ongoing need for renovations and other capital improvements, including
replacements, from time to time, of furniture, fixtures and equipment. Some of these capital improvements are
mandated by health, safety or other regulations. These capital improvements may give rise to (i) a possible
shortage of available cash to fund capital improvements, (ii) the possibility that financing for these capital
improvements may not be available to us on affordable terms and (iii) uncertainties as to market demand or a loss
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of market demand after capital improvements have begun. The costs of these capital improvements could
adversely affect our financial condition and amounts available for distribution to our stockholders.

Our business and operating results depend in large part upon the performance of third-party hotel
management companies that manage our hotels.

Our hotels are managed by third-party hotel management companies pursuant to management agreements or
an operating lease in the case of the Marriott Hamburg. Therefore, our business and operating results depend in
large part upon our hotel management compantes’ performance under the management agreements,

Under the terms of these management agreements, the third-party hotel managers control the daily
operations of our hotels. We do not have the authority to require any hotel to be operated in a particular manner
or to govern any particular aspect of the daily operations of any hotel (for instance, setting room rates}. Thus,
even if we believe our hotels are being operated inefficiently or in a manner that does not result in satisfactory
occupancy rates, net revenue per available room, or RevPAR, and average daily rates, we may not be able to
force the management company to change its method of operation of our hotels. Additionally, in the event that
we need to replace any of our management companies, we may be required by the terms of the management
agreement to pay substantial termination fees and may experience disruptions at the affected hotels. The
effectiveness of the hotel management companies in managing our hotels will, therefore, significantly affect the
revenues, expenses and value of our hogels.

Additionally, our hotel management companies and their affiliates own, operate or franchise properties
other than our properties, including properties that directly compete with our properties. Therefore, a hotel
management company may have different interests than our own with respect to short-term or long-term goals -
and objectives, including interests relating to the brands under which such hotel management companies operate.
Such differences may be significant depending upon many-factors, including the remaining term of the
management agreement, trade area restrictions with respect to competition by the hotel management company or
its affiliates or differing policies, procedures or practices. Any of these factors may adversely impact the
operation and profitability of a hotel, which could harm our financial condition and results of operations.

All revenues generated at our hotels, including credit card receivables, are deposited by the payors into
accounts maintained and controlled by the relevant hotel management company, which pays operating and other
expenses for the relevant hotel (including real and personal property taxes), pays itself management fees in
accordance with the terms of the applicable management agreement and makes deposits into any reserve funds
required by the applicable management agreement. In the event of a bankrptcy or insolvency involving a hotel
management company, there is a risk that the payment of operating and other expenses for the relevant hotel and
payment of revenues to us may be delayed or otherwise impaired. The bankruptcy or insolvency of a hotel
management company may significantly impair its ability to provide services required under the management
agreement.

Our financial covenants may restrict our. operating or acquisition activities.

Our revolving credit facility contains customary restrictions, requirements and other limitations on our
ability to incur indebtedness, including customary financial covenants. Our ability to borrow under our revolving
credit facility is subject to compliance with these financial and other covenants. We may use borrowings under
our revolving credit facility to finance acquisitions and redevelopment activities and for working capital. If we
are unable to borrow under our revolving credit facility or to refinance existing indebtedness, we may be
prevented from making acquisitions or funding our working capital needs and our financial condition and results
of operations would be adversely affected. '

We face competition for the acquisition of real estate properties,

We compete with institutional pension funds, private equity investors, other REITs, owner-operators of
hotels and others who are engaged in real estate investment activities for the acquisition of hotels. These -
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competitors may drive up the price we must pay for real property, other assets or other companies we seek to
acquire or may succeed in acquiring those properties, assets.or companies themselves. In addition, our potential
acquisition targets may find our competitors to be more attractive suitors because they may have greater
resources, may be willing to pay more, or may have a more compatlble operating philosophy. In addition, the
number of entities competing for suitable investment propemes may increase in the future. This would result in
increased demand for these assets and therefore increased prices paid for them. If we pay higher prices for
properties, our profitability may be reduced. Also, future acqmsmons of real property, other assets or other
companies may not yield the returns we expect and, if financed using our equlty, may result in stockholder
dilution. We also may not be successful in' identifying of consummating acquisitions and joint ventures on
satisfactory terms. In addition, our profitability may suffer because of acqmsmon -related costs or amoruzauon
costs for intangible assets.

' - ' ] . . i 3

We are prohibited from selling three of our properties in taxable transactwns befare specifi ed dates in the
future. LY

Unless the'transaction will qualify as a tax deferred exchange, the terms of certain agreements prohibit us
from selling the Loews Santa Monica Beach Hotel before the earlier of March 4, 2013 or the date three named
individuals are deceased. Also, we agreed to maintain $60.0 million of indebtedness on the Loews Santa Monica
Beach Hotel until such date. These limitations may-prevent us from selling this propeity on a timely basis or at
all. The terms of certain agreements prohibit us from selling our 85% controlling interest in the joint ventures
that own the InterContinental Miami and InterContinental Chicago hotels before April 1, 2007.

Our management has a limited history operating a REIT and limited experfenpe managing a public company.

We have a brief operating history. Until recently, our management team has historically opérated our
business as a privately-owned entity, has limited experience operating 'a REIT and limited experience managing a
publicly-owned company. We continue to develop control systems and procedures adequate to support a public
REIT company and this transition could place a sngmﬁcant strain on our management systems, infrastructure,
overhead and other resources. :

Investing through partnerships or joint ventures decreases our abi{iiy te manage nsk .

In addition to acquiring or developing hotels and resorts directly, we have from fime to time invested, and
expect to continue to invest, as a co-venturer. Joint venturers ofien have shared.control over the operation of the
joint venture assets. Therefore, joint venture investments may involve fisks such as the possibility that the
co-venturer in an investment might become bankiupt or not have the financial resources to meet its obligations,
or have economic or business interests or goals that are inconsistent with our business interests or goals, or be in
a position to take action contrary to our instructions or requests or contrary to our policies or objectives. :
Consequently, actions by a co-venturer might subject hotels and resorts owned by the joint venture to additional:
risk. Although we generally seek to maintain sufficient control of any joint venture, we may be unable to take
action without the approval of our joint venture partners. Alternatively, our joint venture partners could take
actions binding on the joint venture without our consent. Additionally, should a joint venture partner become
bankrupt, we could become liable for our pértne_r‘s share of joint venture liabilities.

.

Our entry into the hotel condominium and fractional ownership market exposes us to.new risks.

We have recently announced plans to develop and market hotel condominium and fractional ownership
interests at certain of our properties, which exposes us to new risks associated with entering a new line of
business, including developing the knowledge of and experience in these markets, recruiting professionals to
manage the new business lines and developing and capitalizing on new marketing relationships with experienced
market participants. The marketing and sale of condominiums and fractional ownership interests are subject to
extensive regulation by the federal government and the states.in which the properties are located, and in the case
of fractional ownership interests, in the states where the fractional ownership interests-are marketed and
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sold. Changes in the legal requirements or a determination that we are not in compliance could adversely affect
our hotel condominium and fractional ownersh:p business.

We may incur costs and other expenses with respect to capital projects and other develapment and
redevelopment activities at our properties that are delayed, abandoned or otherwise may not achieve expected
results and we may pursue acquisition opportunities that we do not consummate, which may result in write-off
of the predevelopment costs or acquisition related expenses associated with such activities.

Capital projects and other development and redevelopment activities may be delayed, abandoned or
otherwise may not achieve expected results. We are in the process of developing and redeveloping several of our
properties and expect to continue similar activities in the future. Furthermore, we may incur costs and other
expenses in connection with our pursuit of acquisition opportunities that we do not consummate. In this’ regard
we currently, and may continue to, bear certam risks, including those relating to:

» construction delays or cost overruns that may increase pro_|ect costs and, as a result, make the project
uneconomical;

* insufficient occupancy rates at a completed project impeding our ability to pay operating expenses or
achieve targeted rates of returm on investment; and

* the incurrence of acquisition and/or predevelopment costs in connection with projects that are delayed
or not pursued to completion. -

Capital projects and other development and redevelopment activities generally are also subject to
governmental permits and approvals, which may be delayed, may not be obtained or may be conditioned on
terms unfavorable to us. In the case of an unsuccessful project, we may be ;equu’ed to write off capitalized
predevelopment costs associated with the project and such write-offs may be significant and adversely affect our
results of operations. We also may incur significant expenses in connection with acquisition opportunities we do
not consummate. '

Risks Related to the Lodging and Real Estate Industries

A number of factors, many of which are common to the lodging industry and beyond our control, cauld affect
our business, including those described elsewhere in this section as well as the following:

* . increased competition from new supply or existing hotel properties in our markets, which adversely -
affects occupancy and revenues at our hotels;

* dependence on business, commercial and leisure travelers and tourism,
. dependence on group and meeting/conference business; - :

= increases in energy costs, airline strikes or other factors that may affect travel patierns and reduce the
number of business and commercial travelers and tourists; and

» risks generally associated with the ownership of hotel propertles and real estate, as we discuss in more
detail below. ’

il

. ‘ . . A ! . '

These factors could have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations, which may

affect our ability to make distributions to our stockholders. p .

Uninsured and underinsured losses could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations,
which may affect our ability to make distributions to our stockholders. , .

Various types of catastrophic losses, such as losses due to wars, terrorist acts, earthquakes, floods,
hurricanes, pollution or environmental matters, generally are either uninsurable or not economically insurable, or
may be subject-to insurance coverage limitations; such as large deductibles or co-payments, Although our
earthquake insurance coverage is limited, as of March 1, 2007, six of our hotels are located in California, which
has been historically at a greater risk to certain acts of nature (such as floods and earthquakes) than other.states.
Our Four Seasons hotel in Mexico City is also in an area exposed to greater risk of earthquakes. Our Hyatt
Regency New Orleans, InterContinental Miami and Four Seasons Punta Mita Resort are located in areas that are
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prone to hurricanes and/or floods and our Hyatt Regency New Orleans Property’s existing insurance coverage is
lower than that of our other hotels. Further, our Hyatt Regency New .Orleans Property has been substantially
damaged by Hurricane Katrina that struck the Gulf Coast region in August 2005, and as a result, the hotel’s
operatlons have substantlally ceased.

In the event of a catastrophic loss, our insurance coverage may not be suffictent to cover the full current
market value or replacement cost of our lost investment. Should an uninsured loss or a loss in excess of insured
limits occur, we could lose all or a portion of the capital we have invested in a property, as well as the anticipated
future revenue from the property. In that event, we might nevertheless remain obligated for any mortgage debt or
other financial obligations related to the property. In the event of a significant loss that is covered by insurance,
our deductible may be high and, as a consequence, it could materially adversely affect our financial condition.
Inflation, changes in building codes and ordinances, environmental considerations and other factors might also
keep us from using insurance proceeds to replace or renovate a hotel after it has been damaged or destroyed.
Under those circumstances, the insurance proceeds we receive might be inadequate to restore our economic
position in the damaged or destroyed property.

Ceriain events such as Hurricanes Katrina and Rita in 2005 have made it more difficult and expensive to
obtain property and casualty insurance, including coverage for windstorm, flood and earthquake damage. When
our current insurance policies expire, we may encounter difficulty in obtaining or renewing property, including
windstorm, flood and earthquake, or casualty insurance on our properties at the same levels of coverage, under
similar terms and in a timely manner due to a lack of capacity in the insurance markets or a lack of availability of
such insurance at commercially reasonable rates. Such insurance we are able to obtain may be more limited and
for some catastrophic risks (e.g., earthquake, flood, windstorm and terrorism) may not be generally available to
fully cover potential losses. Even if we are able to renew our policies or to obtain new policies at levels and with
limitations consistent with our current policies, we cannot be sure that we will be able to obtain such insurance at
premium rates that are commercially reasonable or that there will not be gaps in our coverage. If we were unable
to obtain adequate insurance on our properties for certain risks or in a timely manner, it would expose us to
uninsured losses and could cause us to be in default under specific covenants on certain of our indebtedness or
other contractual commitments we have which require us to maintain adequate insurance on our properties (o
protect against the risk of loss. If this were to occur, or if we were unable to obtain adequate insurance and our
properties experienced damages, which would otherwise have been covered by insurance, it could matena]ly
adversely affect our financial condition and the operations of our properties.

The illiguidity of real estate investments and the lack of alternative uses of hotel properties could significantly
limit our ability to respond to adverse changes in the performance of our properties and harm our financial
condition. ' ' -

Because real estate investments are relatively illiquid, our ability to promptly sell one or more of our
properties in response to changing economic, financial and investment conditions is limited. We cannot predict
whether we will be able to sell any property for the price or on the terms set by us, or whether any price or other
terms offered by a prospective purchaser would be acceptable to us. We also cannot predict the length of time
needed to find a willing purchaser and to close the sale of a property, :

Tn addition, hotel properties may not readily be converted to alternative uses if they were to become’
unprofitable due to competition, age of improvements, détreased demand or other factors. The conversion of a
hotel to alternative uses would also generally require substantial capital expenditures.

We may be required to expend funds to correct defects or to make improvements before a property can be
sold. We may not have funds available to correct those defects or to maké those improvements and as a result our
ability to sell the property would be limited. These factors and any others that would impede our ability to
respond to adverse changes in the performance of our properties could significantly harm our financial condition
and results of operations.
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We derive revenues from outside the United States, which subjects us to different legal, monetary and political
risks, as well as currency exchange risks, and may cause unpredictability in a source of our cash flows.

Our business plan assumes that a portion of our investments will continue to be in hotel properties located
outside the United States. International investments and operations generally are subject to various political and
other risks that are different from and in addition to those for U.S. investments and operations, including:

» enactment of laws prohibiting or restricting the foreign ownership of property,;

+ laws restricting us from removing profits earned from activities within the country to the United States,
including the payment of distributions (i.e., nationalization of assets located within a country);

+ changes in laws, regulations and policies, including land use, zoning and environmental laws as well as
real estate and other tax rates;

1

» exchange rate fluctuations;

* change in the avaitability, cost and terms of mortgage funds resulting from varying national economic
8 ¥ gag g
policies or changes in interest rates;

* high administrative costs; and

¢ terrorism, war or civil unrest.

Unfavorable legal, regulatory, economic or political changes such as those described above could adversely
affect our financial condition and results of operations.

ot

The threat of terrorism has historiéally adversely affected the lodging industry generally and these adverse
effects may worsen if there are further terrorist events.

The threat of terrorism has historically caused a significant decrease in hotel occupancy and average daily
rates due to disruptions in business and leisure travel patterns and concerns about travel safety. Future terrorist
acts, terrorism alerts or outbreaks of hostilities could have a negative effect on travel and on our business.

Seasonal variations in revenue at our hotels can be expected to cause quarterly fluctuations in our revenues.

Revenues for hotels in tourist areas generally are substantially greater during tourist season than other times
of the year. To the extent that cash flows from operations are insufficient during any quarter, due to seasonal
fluctuations in revenues, we may have to enter into short-term borrowings to make distributions to our
shareholders.

We consider acquisition and disposition opportunities in the ordinary course of our business, we face
competition in the acquisition of properties and properties that we acquire may not perform as anticipated.

In the ordinary course of our business, we consider strategic acquisitions and dispositions. The acquisition
of properties involves risks, including the risk that the acquired property will not perform as anticipated and the
risk that any actual costs for rehabilitating, repositioning, renovating and improving identified in the
pre-acquisition process will exceed estimates. There is, and it is expected that there will continue to be,
significant competition for acquisitions that meet our investment criteria as well as risks associated with
obtaining financing for acquisition activities.

Environmental and other governmental laws and regulations could increase our compliance costs and
liabilities and adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Our hotel properties are subject to.various U.S. federal, state and local environmental laws. Under these
laws, courts and government agencies have the authority to require us, as owner of a contaminated property, to
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clean up the property, even if we did not know of or were not responsible for the contamination. These laws also
apply to persons who owned a property at the time it became contaminated. In addition to the costs of clean-up,
environmental contamination can affect the value of a property and, therefore, an owner’s ability to borrow funds
using the property as collateral or to sell the property. These laws can also impose habnllty on parties that arrange
for the disposal of wastes at an offsne propcrty that becomes contammated

In addition, some of these environmental laws can restrict the use of a property and place conditions on
various activities. An example would be laws that require a business using hazardous substances on a property
(such as swimming pool and lawn care chemicals) to manage them carefu]ly and to notify locat officials that the
chemicals are being used. Failure to comply with these laws could result in fines and penalties or expose us to
third-party liability. '

From time to time, the United States Environmental Protection Agency, or EPA, designates certain sites
affected by hazardous substances as “Superfund” sites. Superfund sites can cover large areas, affecting many
different parcels of land. The EPA may choose to pursue parties regardless of their actual contribution to the
contamination. The Hilton Burbank Airport and Convention Center, which we sold in September 2006, is located
within a Federal Superfund site. The area was designated as a Superfund site because groundwater underneath
the area is contaminated. We have not been named, and do not expect to be named, as a party responsible for the
clean-up of the groundwater contamination. There can be ne assurance regarding potential future developments
concerning this site, however.

The presence of any environmental conditions at our properties could result in remediation and other costs
and liabilities and adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

We have reviewed environmental reports prepared by our consultants and consultants retained by our
lenders at various times, which disclose certain conditions on our properties and the use of hazardous substances
in operation and maintenance activities that could pose a risk of environmental contamination or liability. At
some facilities these include on-site dry cleaning operations, petroleum storage in underground storage tanks,
past tank removals and the known or suspected presence of asbestos, mold or thorium.

The costs to clean up a contaminated property, to defend against a claim, ot to comply with environmental
laws could be material and could adversely affect the funds available for distribution to our stockholders, Future
laws or regulations may impose material environmental liabilities on us, the current environmental condition of
our hotel properties may be affected by the condition of the properties in the vicinity of our hotel properties (such
as the presence of leaking underground storage tanks) or by third parties unrelated to us and currently unknown
environmental liabilities related to our hotel properties may be identified. '

Under the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, or the ADA, all-public accommodations must meet
various federal requirements related to access and use by disabled persons. Compliance with the ADA’s
requirements could require removal of access barriers, and non-compliance could result in the U.S. government
imposing fines or in private litigants winning damages. If we are required 1o make substantial modifications to
our hotels, whethér to comply with the ADA or other changes in governmental rules and regulations, our
financial condition, results of operauons and ability to make distributions to our stockholders could be adversely
affected.

Risks Related to Our Organization and Structure

Provisions of our organizational documents may limit the ability of a third party te acquire control of our
company and may depress our stock price. :

In order for us 1o maintain our status as a REIT, no more than 50% of the value of outstanding shares of our
stock may be owned, actually or constructively, by five or fewer individuals at any time during the last half of
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each taxable year. To make sure that we will not fail to qualify as a REIT under this test, subject to some
exceptions, our charter prohibits any stockholder from owning actually or constructively more than 9.8% of the
value of outstanding shares of our stock or more than 9.8% of the value or number of shares, whichever is more
restrictive, of the outstanding shares of our common stock. Any attempt to own or transfer shares of our capital
stock in excess of the ownership limit without the consent of our board of directors will be void, and could result
in the shares being automatically transferred to a charitable trust. This ownership limitation may prevent an
acquisition of control of our company by a third party without our board of directors’ grant of an exemption from
the ownership limitation, even if our stockholders believe the change of control is in their interest. '

Our charter authorizes our board of directors to cause us to issue up to 150,000,000 shares of common stock
and up to 150,000,000 shares of preferred stock, to amend our charter without stockholder approval to increase or
decrease the aggregate number of shares of stock or the number of shares of any class or series of our stock that
we have authority to issue, to classify or reclassify any unissued shares of common stock or preferred stock and
to set the preferences, rights and other terms of the classified or reclassified shares. Issuances of additional shares
of stock may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control of our company, including transactions
at a premium over the market price of our stock, even if stockholders believe that a change of control is in their
interest. . |

QOur charter permits the removal of a director only upon the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the votes
entitled to be cast generally in the election of directors and provides that vacancies may only be filled by a.
majority of the remaining directors. Our bylaws require advance notice of a stockholder’s intention to nominate
directors or present business for consideration by stockholders at an annual meeting of our stockholders. These
provisions may delay, defer or prevent a transaction or change in control that involves a premium price for our
common stock or that for other reasons may be desired by our stockholders. ‘ '

Provisions of Maryland law may limit the ability of a third party to acquire control of our company, !

Certain brovisions of the Maryland General Corporation Law, or the MGCL, may have the effect of
inhibiting a third party from making.a proposal to acquire us or of impeding a change of control under
circumstances that otherwise could provide the holders of shares of our common stock with the opportunity to
realize a premium over the then prevailing market price of such shares, including:

+ “business combination” provisions that, subject to limitations, prohibit certain business combinations
between us and an *interested stockholder” (defined generally as any person who beneficially owns
10% or more of the voting power of our shares or an affiliate thereof) for five years after the most
recent date on which the stockholder becomes an interested stockholder, and thereafter imposes special
super majority stockholder voting requirements on these combinations; '

* “control share” provisions that provide that “control shares” of our company {defined as shares which,
when aggregated with other shares controlled by the stockholder, entitle the stockholder to exercise one
of three increasing ranges of voting power in electing directors) acquired in a “control share
acquisition” {defined as the direct or indirect acquisition of ownership or control of “control shares™)
have no voting rights except to the extent approved by our stockholders by the affirmative vote of at -
least two-thirds of all the votes entitled to be cast on the matter, excluding all interested shares; and

« “unsolicited takeover” provisions of Maryland law permit our board of directors, without stockholder
approval, to implement a classified board as well as 1mp0se other restrictions on the ablllty of a third
party to acquire control. ' ' -

We have opted out of the control share provisions of the MGCL pursuant to a provisioa in our bylaws.
However, we may, by amendment to our bylaws, become subject 1o the control share provisions of the MGCL in
the future. . . :

23



You have limited control as a stockholder regarding any changes we make to our policies.

Qur board of directors determines our major policies, including our investment objectives, financing, growth
and distributions. Our board may amend or revise these and other policies without a vote of our stockholders.
This means that our stockholders will have limited control over changes in our policies.

Tax Risks .

If we fail to maintain our status as a REIT, our distributions will not be deductible by us, and our income will
be subject to U.S. federal taxation, reducing our earnings available for distribution.

We currently qualify as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The requirements for
this qualification, however, are complex and require annual distributions tied to our taxable income (irrespective
of available cash from operations), quarterly asset tests and diversity of stock ownershiip rules. If we fail to meet
these requirements in the future, our distributions will not be deductible by us and we wiil have 1o pay a
corporate U.S. federal level tax on our income. This would substantially reduce our cash available to pay
distributicns on your investrment in our stock. In addition, such a tax liability might cause us to borrow funds,
liquidate some of our investments or take other steps, which could negatively affect our results of operations.
Moreover, if our REIT status is terminated because of our failure to meet a technical REIT requirement or if we
voluntarily revoke our election, we would generally be disqualified from electmg treatment as a REIT for the
four taxable years following the year in which REIT status is lost,

v '

Even if we maintain our status as a REIT, we may become subject to U.S. federal, state, local or foreign taxes
on our incone or property reducing our earnings available for distribution.

Even if we maintain our status as a REIT, we may become subject to U.S. federal income taxes and related
state taxes. For example, if we have net income from a “prohibited transaction”, that income will be subject to a
100% tax. A “prohibited transaction” is, in general, the sale or other disposition of inventory or property, other
than foreclosure property, held primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of business. We may not be
able to make sufficient distributions to avoid excise taxes applicable to REITs. We may also decide to retain
income we earn from the sale or other disposition of our property and pay U.S. federal income tax directly on
that income. In that event, our stockholders would be treated as if they earned that income and paid the tax on it
directly. However, stockholders that are tax-exempt, such as charities or qualified pension plans, would have no
benefit from their deemed payment of that tax liability. In addition, the REIT rules impose various taxes and
penalties on transactions with taxable REIT subsidiaries that are determined not to be priced at an arm’s length,
and on a REIT that has to avail itself of certain cure provisions in the Code for the failure to meet all of the REIT
qualification requirements. We cannot assure you that we will be able to,continue to satisfy the REIT
requirements, or that it will be in our best interests to continue to do so..

We may also be subject to state and local taxes on-our income or property, either directly or at the level of
our operating partnerships or at the level of the other companies through which we indirectly own our assets.

Foreign countries impose taxes on our hotels and our operations within their jurisdictions. We may not fully
benefit from a foreign tax credit against our U.S. federal income tax liability for the foreign taxes we pay. As a
result;-our foreign taxes will reduce’our income and available cash flow from our foreign hotels, which, in turn,
could reduce our ability to make distributions to our stockholders.

If the leases of our hotels to our taxable REIT subsidiaries are not respected as true leases for federal income
tax purposes, we would fail to maintain our status as a REIT.

To continue to qualify as a REIT, we must satisfy two gross income tests, under which specified percentages
of our gross income must be passive income, such as rent. The rent paid pursuant to the leases of our hotels to
our taxable REIT subsidiaries will only qualify for purposes of the gross income tests if the leases are respected
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as true leases for U.S. federal income tax purposes and are not treated as service contracts, joint ventures or some
other type of arrangement. If the leases are not respected as true leases for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we
would fail to qualify as a REIT.

1

Our taxable REIT subsidiaries are subject to special rules that may result in increased taxes.

The REIT has to pay a 100% penalty tax on some payments that it receives if the economic arrangements
between the REIT and the taxable REIT subsidiary are not comparable tp‘simi!ar arrangements between
unrelated parties. The IRS may successfully assert that the economic arrangements of any of our inter-company
transactions, including the hotel leases, are not comparable to similar arrangements between unrelated parties.

We may be required to pay a penalty tax upon the sale of a hotel.

The U.S. federal income tax provisions applicable to REITs provide that any gain realized by a REIT on the
sale of property held as inventory or other property held primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of
business is treated as income from a “prohibited transaction” that is subject to a 100% penalty tax. Under current
laws, unless a sale of real property qualifies for a safe harbor, the question of whether the sale of a hote! (or other
property) constitutes the sale of property held primarily for sale to customers is generally a question of the facts
and circumstances regarding a particular transaction. We may make sales that do not satisfy the requirements of
the safe harbors or the IRS may successfully assert that one or more of our sales are prohibited transactions;
consequently, we may be required to pay a penalty tax.

Dividends payable by REITs do not qualify for the reduced tax rates applicable to certain dividends.

The maximum federal tax rate for certain dividends payable to domestic stockholders that are individuals,
trusts and estates is 15% (through 2010). Dividends payable by REITSs, however, are generally not eligible for
this reduced rate. Although this legislation does not adversely affect the taxation of REITs or dividends paid by
REITs, the moré favorable rates applicable to regular corporate dividends could cause investors who are
individuals, trusts and estates to perceive investments in REITs to be relatively less competitive than investments
in stock of non-REIT corporations that pay dividends, which could adversely affect the value of the stock of
REITs, includi"ng our common stock. ’

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

Offices. We sub-lease our headquarters located at 77 West Wacker Drive, Suite 4600, Chicago, Illinois
60601 from SHC LLC at a fair market value determined at the commencement date of the sublease, which is
currently less than the amount paid by SHC LLC under its lease. Currently, we believe that this office space is
suitable for our operations. '

QOverview. Set forth below is a summary of certain information related to our owned hotel properties as of
March 1, 2007. For further information regarding our hotel properties, see “Item 2. Propérties—Individual
Property Data” below. ‘

’ Number Property Date
Hotel Location of Rooms Interest Acquired
Westin St. Francis(*) ....................... San Francisco, CA 1,195 - Fee simple 6/2006
Hyatt Regency New Orleans(1){(*} ............ New Orleans, LA 1,184  Fee simple 9/1997
lnlerCominé,ntal Chicago Hotel(2)}(*) .......... Chicz‘igo,‘IL ‘ 792 Fee simple 412005
Hyatt Regency Phoenix(*) .................. Phoenix, AZ 696  Feesimple 1/1998
Fairmont Chicago Hotel(*) .................. Chicago, IL 685  Fee simple . 9/2005
Hotel del Coronado(3) .......... [ Coronado, CA 679  Fee simple 1/2006
Fairmont Scottsdale Princess(4)(*) . Ceaeaeaas Scottsdale, AZ ’ 651  Fee simple/ 9/2006
L ' ' ground lease

InterContinental Miami Hotel(2)(*) ........... Miami, FL . 641 Fee simple 4/2005
Hyatt Regency La Jolla at Aventine(*) ......... La Jolla, CA 419  Feesimple  7/1999
Ritz-Carlton Laguna Niguel ................. Dana Point, CA 393  Fee simple 7/2006
Marriott Lincolnshire Resort(*) ........... ... Lincolnshire, IL : » 389 Ground lease  9/1997
InterContinental Prague(5)(*) ................ Prague, Czech Republic 372 Fee simple 8/1998
Loews Santa Monica Beach Hotel(6)(*) . ... .. .. " Santa Monica, CA 342 Feesimple  3/1998
Marriott Hamburg(7) . ............. ... ... .. Hamburg, Germany ) 277 Leasehold 6/2000
Ritz-Carlton Half Moon Bay(*) .............. Half Moon Bay, CA " 261  Feesimple 8/2004
Four Seasons Mexico City(*) ........... [ Mexico City, Mexico 240  Feesimple 12/1997
Marriott London Grosvenor Square(*) ......... London, England . 236 Ground lease  8/2006
Four Seasons Washington, D.C. .............. Washington, D.C. 211 Fee simple 3/2006
Paris Marriott Champs Elysees(7) ............. Paris, France 192 Leasehold 2/1998
Four Seasons Punta Mita Resort(*) . ........... Punta Mita, Mexico 145 Fee simple 212001
Total Number of Rooms . ................... 10,000 '

(1) This property has been substantially damaged by Hurricane Katrina that struck the Gulf Coast region in
August 2005, and as a result, the hotel’s operations have effectively ceased.

(2) We own an 85% controlling interest in joint ventures that own each of these properties. We are restricted by
agreement from selling our interest before April 1, 2007.

{3) We have a 45% interest in the joint venture that owns this property, which is subject to a mortgage.

{4) We have a ground lease interest in one land parcel at this property.

(5) On August 3, 2006, we purchased our joint venture partner’s 65% interest in the entity that owns this
property.

(6) We are restricted by agreement from selling this property other than in a transaction that will qualify as a tax
deferred exchange and nust maintain a specific minimum level of indebledness encumbering this property
until a future date.

(7) These properties were originally acquired on the dates indicated in the table, but were subsequently sold to a
third party and leased back by us in transactions that are more fully described below under “Item 7.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation—Recent Trends
and Events—Sales of Hotels.”

(*) These properties are subject to mortgages as more fully described below under “Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data—Note 7 Indebtedness.”
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Property Performance. The following table presents statistical data and certain performance information for
our period of ownership in 2006 and 2003 at those hotel properties owned as of December 31, 2006. For
additional information regarding business segment data such as revenues and long-lived assets, see “Item 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data—Note 18 Geographic and Business Segment Information” to our
consolidated financial statements included herein.

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Year Ended December 31, 2005
Average Average Average Average
HOTEL Daily Rate  Qccupancy % RevPAR  Daily Rate  Occupancy %  RevPAR
Westin St. Francis ................. $203.59 81.9% $166.73 N/A N/A N/A
Hyatt Regency New Orleans* . . ... ... N/A N/A N/A $140.59 59.6% $ 83.80
InterContinental Chicago Hotel ...... $205.40 79.9% $164.16 $19046 79.5% $151.43
Hyatt Regency Phoenix . ............ $136.03 66.4% % 9035 $133.3] 649% $ 86.58
Fairmont ChicagoHote! ... ... ... .. $209.23 749%  $156.74 $213.79 728%  $155.63
Hotel del Coronado ....... e $337.56 80.0%  $270.18 . N/A N/A N/A
Fairmont Scottsdale Princess ........ $221.14 73.2% $l6l76  N/A N/A N/A
InterContinental Miami Hotel . .. .. ... $174.03 67.3%  $117.14 $143.46 67.6% § 97.02
Hyatt Regency La Jolla at Aventine ... $180.39 77.3%  $139.50 $163.83 76.4%  $125.10
Ritz-Carlton Laguna Niguet . ..., ... $381.04 71.1%  $27093  N/A N/A N/A
Marriott Lincolnshire Resort .. ... ... $136.65 64.1% $ 8753 $121.57 66.7% $ 8i.14
InterContinental Prague ............ $205.56 81.0% $16649 3$198.93 80.1%  $159.31
Loews Santa Monica Beach Hotel . ... $279.74 84.1%  $235.15 $263.34 83.1%  $218.81
Marriott Hamburg .. .............., $169.83 84.4%  $143.29 $146.42 788%  $115.39
Ritz-Cariton Half Moon Bay ........ $343.86 703%  $241.81 $328.99 67.4%  $221.71
Four Seasons Mexico City .......... $239.15 60.8%  $145.42 $220.72 64.7%  $142.836
Marriott London Grosvenor Square ... $379.67 82.5%  $313.35 N/A N/A | N/A
Four Seasons Washington, D.C. ... ... $503.84 72.2% $363.72 N/A N/A N/A
Paris Marriott Champs Elysees ....... $483.91 B87.6%  $423.82 $441.84 82.0%  $362.18
Four Seasons Punta Mita Resort . ... .. $670.90 80.4%  $539.05 $576.34 80.2%  $462.10
Total ,........ ... .. $244.70 75.4%  $184.62 - $200.46 71.4%  §$143.10

*  The available rooms used for these statistics do not include rooms that were taken out of service as a result
of Hurricane Katrina in August 2005. '

Individual Property Data

. The following descriptions of our individual properties include additional financial disclosure for our four
largest properties as measured by gross revenue or book asset value.

Westin St. Francis

The Property. We own a fee simple interest in the Westin St. Francis Hotel, which is located in San
Francisco, California. The hotel was originally built in 1907, with an additional tower constructed in 1972, and
consists of 1,195 guest rooms, including 45 suites, and extensive meeting and retail space. The hotel faces
historic Union Square and is located near Chinatown, the Theatre and Financial Districts, and popular shopping
venues and restaurants.

Competition. Competitors include Hyatt Regency San Francisco, Fairmont San Francisco, Marriott
Moscone, Grand Hyatt San Francisco, Hilton San Francisco & Towers and Westin San Francisco.
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Selected Financial and Operating Information. The following table shows selected financial and operating
information for the Westin St. Francis Hote! following its acquisition by us in June 2006 (in thousands):

2006
Selected Financial Information:
Total revenue .................. e e $79,491
OPETating EXPEMSES . . ...\ttt ettt iies e eaan et eanannnanans 50,991
Grossoperating profit . . ... ... e 28,500
e EXPENSES . ... vttt it e e e 12,474

InterContinental Chicago Hotel

The Property. We own an 85% controlling interest in the joint venture that owns the InterContinental
Chicago Hotel. Located in the heart of Chicago’s famous Magnificent Mile, the building was built in 1929 and is
a historic landmark. The hotel ts currently comprised of 792 guest rooms, including 71 suites and 23 business-
class rooms with spacious work areas.

" Competition. Competitor hotels include Marriott Chicago Downtown, The Palmer House Hilton, Westin
Michigan Avenue, Swissotel Chicago and the Fairmont Chicago. ‘

Selected Financial and Operating Information. The following table shows selected financial and operating
information for the InterContinental Chicago Hotel following its acquisition by us in April 2005 (in thousands):

2006 . 2008
Selected Financial Information:
Total TEVENUE . . . . o oottt et e e $72,249  $52,164
Operating eXpPenses ... ....vtrre et reecarenereaaas 41,698 30,203
Grossoperating profit ........... . ... . ... i 30,551 21,961
Other eXPenses . ....uevvrtvrnrn e eeannennaerenaenn 7,028 3,662

Fairmont Scottsdale Princess

The Property. We own a fee simple interest in the Fairmont Scottsdale Princess Hotel and have a ground
lease interest in a land parcel. The hotel was built in 1987 and includes 651 guest rooms, which includes 72 villas
and 119 casitas. The hotel also includes extensive meeting space, a full-service spa, five restaurants, and the
exclusive long-term booking rights to two 18-hole Championship Golf Courses. The hotel is located in the North
Scottsdale area and is 25 miles north of the Phoenix Sky Harbor International Airport.

Competition. Competitor hotels include Westin Kierland Resort & Spa, JW Marriott Desert Ridge, The
Phonecian, Arizona Biltmore, and Hyatt Gainey Ranch.

Selected Financial and Operating Information, The following table shows selected financial and operating
information for the Fairmont Scottsdale Princess Hotel following its acquisition by us in September 2006 (in
thousands):

2006
Selected Financial Information:
TOtAl FEVEIIE . oottt et e e e e et a e e ettt e et $30,461
Operating eXpenses . ... ... ... .ot i 19,494
Grossoperating Profil . . ... ..ottt i i e e 10,967
Other @XPENSES . . ..ottt ittt e it 2,972




Ritz-Carlton Laguna Niguel

The Property. We own a fee simple interest in.the Ritz-Carlton Laguna Niguel Hotel. The hotel.opened in
1984 and includes 393 guest rooms, extensive indoor and outdoor meeting space, two restaurants, a full-service
spa, and fitness center. The hotel is situated atop a 150-foot bluff overlooking the Pacific Ocean, is located
between Los Angeles and San Diego and is in close proximity to four major airports.

Competition. Competitor hotels include. Four Seasons; Resort Santa Barbara, Preferred Surf & Sand Resort,
The Island Hotel, Marriott Laguna Cliffs Resort & Spa, Four Seasons Resort Aviara, St. Regis Monarch Beach
Resort and Preferred Montage Resort & Spa.

Selected Financial and Operating Information. The following table shows selected financial and operating
information for the Ritz-Carlton Laguna Niguel Hotel following its acquisition by us in July 2006 (in thousands):

2006
Selected Financial Information:
Total revenue ........... e P I T $39,709
Operating expenses ............. S 25,385
Gross operating profit . ......... ... ... .. ceeeaes e 14,324
Other EXPenses . ....vvvvviiivoaeennnns P e . 3,549

Hyatt Regency New Orleans

We own a fee simple interest in the Hyatt Regency New Orleans. Hurricane Katrina, which struck the Gulf
Coast region in August 2005, has substantially damaged the property, and as a result, the hotel’s operations have
substantially ceased. The hotel opened in 1976 and was comprised of 1,184 guest rooms, including 570 king
rooms, 566 double/double rooms and 48 suites. See further information in “Item 1A. Risk Factors—Risks
Retated to Our Business—Qur New Qrleans hotel property has been substantially damaged by Hurricane Katrina.
There can be no assurance as to when the propéi'ty will be restored and when our operations there witl fully
recover, and ultimately whether our losses will be completely covered by our insurance.”

Hyatt Regency Phoenix

We hold a fee simple interest in the Hyatt Regency Phoenix Hotel. The Hyatt Regency Phoenix was
completed in 1976 and is comprised of 696 guest rooms, including 270 king rooms, 205 queen/queen rooms, 152
doublefdouble rooms, 36 studio suites, 25 two bedroom suites, five hospitality suites and three one bedroom
suites. The Hyatt Regency Phoenix is located in downtown Phoenix, Arizona. Nearby attractions include the
Phoenix Downtowh Civic Plaza Convention Center, local; national and multinational businesses in the downtown
area, along with several entertainment and sports venues including Chase Field, America West Arena and the
Dodge Theatre.

Fairmont Chicago Hotel

We own a fee simple interest in the Fairmont Chicago Hotel. The hotel is located in the heart of downtown
Chicago and is comprised of 685 guest rooms angd lakefront suites. The hotel is located near major cultural
attractions, Navy Pier, the city's business and financial district and the shopping along the Magnificent Mile. The
hotel offers guest privileges at the adjacent Lakeshore Athletic Club.

Hotel del Coronado

We have a 45% interest in the joint venture that owns the Hotel del Coronado. The hotel opened in 1888 and
consists of 679 guest rooms, which include 28 suites and 70 junior suites. The Hotel del Coronado was
designated a National Historic Landmark in 1977. The hotel is located near San Diego’s Convention Center, the
historic Gaslamp District, and tourist attractions such as the San Diego Zoo, Seaworld, and the Midway &
Marine Museum.
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InterContinental Miami Hotel

- We own an 85% controlling interest in the joint venture that owns the InterContinental Miami Hotel, The
InterContinental Miami Hotel is comprised of 641 guest rooms, including expansive 3,300 square foot split-level
Presidential and Royal Suites, 34 suites and 101 Club InterContinental rooms. The InterContinental Miami Hotel
is located just 10 miles from the Miami International Airport and is within walking distance of the Miami
Convention Center, conveniently located close to Miami Beach and adjacent to the fashionable shops and
restaurants of Bays:de Marketplace C ' :

Hyatt Regency La Jolla at Aventine

We owna fee simple interest in the Hyatt Regency La Jolla at Aventine. The hotel, which was completed in
1989, has-419 guest rooms, including 11 suites, 233 king rooms and-175 double/double rooms. The hotel is part
of a larger, mixed-use development known as the Aventine that was constructed in 1989 and includes a six-story
office building with an adjacent I1-story office tower, a three-story health club building, the 16-story Hyatt
Regency La Jolla hotel, a restaurant complex housing four individual restaurants, two parking garages, an
outdoor swimming pool and two lighted tennis courts. Our ownership within the Aventine development includes
the hotel facilities (including the free standing Pavillion meeting space), the hotel motor court/entrance, the
swimming pool and the 30,000 square-foot health club.

Marriott Lincolnshire Resort

+ We hold a ground lease tnterest in the Marriott Lincolnshire Resort Hotel. The current term of the ground
lease will expire on January 1, 2021 and we have the option to extend for three additional 10-year periods. Our
leasehold interests are further described under “Item 1. Business—Lease Agreements”. The Marriott
Lincolnshire Resort was completed in 1975 and is comprised of 389 guest rooms, which include 221 double
rooms, 165 king rcoms, and three suites. The Marriott Lincolnshire. Resort also has many amenities including the
18-Hole George Fazio PGA Golf Course and an 882-seat theatre. The hotel is located in Lincolnshire, Illinois, a
northern suburb of Chicago., '

Hotel InterContinental Prague

On August 3, 2006, we acquired our joint venture partner’s 65% ownership interest in the entity that holds a
fee simple interest in the InterContinental Prague Hotel. This purchase brings our interest in the entity that owns
the property to 100%. The hotel opened in 1974 and is comprised of 372 guest rooms, including 89 suites. In
addition, the property includes a 27-unit extended stay apartment building and two additional apartment
buildings for long-term residential lets. The hotel is located in Prague’s historic Old Town with views of the
Vltava River.

Loews Santa Monica Beach Hotel

We hold a fee simple interest in the Loews Santa Monica Beach Hotel. The Loews Santa Monica Beach
Hotel openéd in 1989 and is comprised of 342 guest rooms, including 19 suites, 150 king rooms and 173 double/
double rooms. The hotel is located approximately 150 feet east of Santa Monica Beach. The Third Street
Promenade and the Santa Monica Pier are within walking distance of the Loews Santa Monica Beach Hotel.

Hamburg Marriott

We lease the Hamburg Marriott from Deutsche Immobilien Fonds Aktiengesellschaft under a lease
agreement with an initial term expiring in 2030 and renewal options.extending through 2050. Our leasehold
interests are further described under “Item 1. Business—Lease Agreements.” The hotel opened in 1988 and
comprises 277 guest rooms, incleding nine suites. The Hamburg Marriott hotel is located in the heart of the city
center, in an area which has been rejuvenated over the last ten years and now accommodates the up-market retail
and central business district of the city.
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Ritz-Carlton Half Moon Bay o

We own a fee simple interest in the Ritz-Carlton Half Moon Bay, which is located in Western San Mateo
County and is less than an hiour from downtown San Francisco: The hotel opened in 2001 and is comprised of
261 guest rooms, the majority of which offer ocean or coastal views, including 159 king rooms; 80 double/double
rooms and 22 suites. The hotel offers state-of-the-art amenities, including a full-service spa and fitness center,
and activities such as kayaking, horseback riding, wine tasting, and whale watching.

Four Seasons Mexico City

We hold a fee simple interest in the Four Seasons Mexico City Hotel. The hotel, which opened in 1994, has
240 rooms, including 40 suites, 176 king rooms and 24 twin rooms. The hotel is constructed in the Mexican
colonial style with an extensively landscaped central courtyard. The hotel is located on the Paseo de la Reforma,
which is the location of a number of important Mexican and international corporate offices as well as other
service businesses including major law and accounting firms, and is proximate to the Polanco business district
and to the historical and governmental districts. The hotel is situated at the top of the Reforma between the
exclusive shopping and entertainment district known as Zona Rosa and Chapultepec Park.

Marriott London Grosvenor Square

We hold a ground lease interest in the Marriott London Grosvenor Square that expires on September 29,
2057. Our leasehold interests are further described under “Item 1. Business — Lease Agreements.” The hotel
opened in 1962 and has 236 guest rooms, 10,000 square feet of flexible function space and two restaurants. The
Marriott London Grosvenor Square is located in the prestigious Mayfair neighborhood of London. The hotel is
located near the US, Canadian, and Italian embassies as well as Bond Street and Oxford Street, which provide
access to London’s primary luxury retail and popular department stores.

Four Seasons Washington, D.C.

We hold a fee simple interest in the Four Seasons Washington, D.C. Hotel. The hotel, which opened in
1979, has 211 guest rooms, including 51 suites. The hotel offers a 24-hour business center, extensive meeting
space, a fitness center, and a full-service spa. The hotel is located in the heart of historic Georgetown and is near
Washington D.C.’s central business district as well as popular tourist destinations, such as the White House,
monuments, museums, and heritage sites.

Paris Marriott Champs Elysees

We lease the Paris Marriott Champs Elysees from Deutsche Immobilien Fonds Aktiengesellschaft under a
lease agreement with an initial term expiring on December 31, 2029 and renewal options extending through
2059. Our leasehold interests are further described under “Item 1. Business—Lease Agreements.” The hotel
opened in 1997 and comprises 192 guest rooms, including 18 suites. The Paris Marriott Champs Elysees is the
only hotel located on the famous Avenue des Champs Elysees. The hotel is located near the Arc de Triomphe, the
Eiffel Tower, the Louvre and the La Defense business district. The hotel also adjoins approximately 6,000 square
feet of high-end retailers.

Four Seasons Punta Mita Resort

We hold a fee simple interest in the Four Seasons Punta Mita Resort Hotel. The resort, which opened in
1999, has 145 units, which include king/double rooms and suites. All units are situated in one- to three-story
Mexican style, tile-roofed casitas. The Four Seasons Punta Mita Resort is located in Punta Mita, Nayarit,
Mexico, which is 25 miles northwest of Puerto Vallarta, which is one of Mexico’s most popular tourist
destinations located on the Pacific coast.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

We are not involved in any material litigation nor, to our knowledge, is any material litigation threatened
against us, other than routine litigation arising in the ordinary course of business or which is expected to be
covered by insurance.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.

None.

32



PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES. :

Our common stock is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange, or the NYSE, under the symbol
“BEE". As of February 28, 2007, the number of registered holders of record of our common stock was 103.

The following table sets forth the high and low sale prices for our common stock as reported on the NYSE
composite transaction tape and the per share cash dividends declared on our common stock for the period
January 1, 2005 through December 31, 2006.

2006 Per Share of Common Stock 2005 Per Share of Common Stock

Market Price Dividend Market Price Dividend
High Low Paid High Low Paid
FirstQuarter . ................ ..., ... $2330 $19.85 $0.23 $17.26  $13.94 $0.22
SecondQuarter ......... ... ... o i, 23.56 19.24 0.23 19.48 13.25 0.22
ThirdQuarter ... ...... ... ... . ovuien.. 21.48 18.43 0.23 20.30 17.32 0.22
FouthQuarter .. ........................ 22.18 19.34 0.23 2097 16.31 0.22

Year ..., e $2356 $18.43 $0.92 $2097 813.25 $0.88

We generally intend to distribute each year substantially all of our taxable income (which does not
necessarily equal net income as calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles) to our
shareholders so as to comply with REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue Code. We intend to make dividend
distributions quarterly and, if necessary for REIT qualification purposes, we may need to distribute any taxable
income remaining after the distribution of the final regular quarterly dividend each year, together with the first
regular quarterly dividend payment of the following taxable year or, at our discretion, in a special dividend
distributed prior thereto. Our dividend policy is subject to revision at the discretion of our board of directors. All
distributions will be made at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend on our taxable income, our
financial condition, our maintenance of REIT status‘and other factors as our board of directors deems relevant.

There are 3,000,000 shares of common stock authorized for issuance under our 2004 Incentive Plan. Further
information related to employee compensation is further described in “ltem 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data—Note 11 Share-Based Employee Compensation Plans.”

We did not repurchase any of our equity securities during 2006 or 2005.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

The following sets forth our selected consolidated financial and operating information cn a historical basis.
The selected historical financial data as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2006 has been derived from our audited financial statements included herein, The
selected historical financial data as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 and for each of the two years in the
period.ended December 31, 2003-have been derived from our audited financial statements not included in this
filing. The following information should be read together with “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations’ and our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto,
which are inctuded in “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

The historical financial data presented herein prior to the date of our initial public offering (the “IPO”) is the
historiéal financial data of our predecessor, SHC LLC, and reflects the historical results of operations and
financial position of SHC LLC, including the seven properties that were distributed by SHC Funding to
SHC LLC in the Formation and Structuring Transactions {as defined in “Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data—Note 1 General).
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Historical as of and for the Years Ended December 31,

2006(1) 2005(1) 2004(1)(2) 2003(1) 2002(1)
. : i (In thousands, except statistical data) - :
Statistical Data: : . '
Number of hotels at the end of the year excluding

unconsolidated joint venture hotels ... ... ... - 19 15 14 20 25
Number of rooms at the end of the year excluding : ;

unconsolidated joint venture hotels .. ........ 9,321 7,213 5,820 9,567 10,621
Average occupancyrate . ........... .. 74.8% + 70.8% - 68.7% 69.1% 69.4%
Operating Data: ' o ' e
Revenue: - -

Rooms............ ... ... ............ $. 381,019 § 224850 $220,231 % 269,515 § 288,227
Food and beverage .................... . 244,022 144,860 120,594 140,500 148,349
Other hotel operating revenue ........... - 74,075 43,045 39,811 44,006 48,562
Lease revenue .. ... e 20,257 16,787 24,233 27,638 35,134
Total revenues ... ... e o 719,373 429,542 404,869 481,659 520,272
Operating Costs and Expenses: ' )
ROOMS .. ..o 95,161 54,493 55,123 70,607 72,445
Food and beverage ................ ... 170,141 100,689 91,690 108,673 112,434
Other departmentat expenses .. .......... 181,495 114,005 104,399 119,427 123,041
Managementfees ..................... 26,774 13,865 14,852 16,649 17,234
Other hotel expenses .................. 47,659 25,024 24,558 . 31,728 31,359
Lease expense ..... e e , 13,682 13,178 . 6,446 —_— _ —
Depreciation and amortization .......... . 75,135 43,753 51,577 73,393 97,785
Impairment losses on goodwill and hotel - . ‘
PrOPETHES - ..\ veeree et enans —_ . = — — 5435
Corporate experises ......... e . 25,383 21,023 _ 28,845 21,912 15,854
Total operating costs and expenses e 635,430 386,030 377.490. 442,389 475,587
Operating income ..................... .. 83943 43,512 21379 39,270 - 44,685
Interest expense ... 0 . ..... .. e (51,111) (33,047) -(58,348) (98,541) {96,346)
Minority interests .. ............. ... ... ... (1,466) (2,937) 1,329 (2,895) (10,264)
Income (loss) from continuing operations ... ... - 33,493 8951 (51,799).  (79.287) (61,406)
Income from discontinued operauons i 86,636 21,309 65,132 23,093 11,103
NetIncome (LOSS) ......covvrvninnrnnn .. $ 120,129 § 30,260 $ 13,333 % (56,194) § (50,303)
Net Income (Loss) Available to Common ) .

Sharcholders . ... ..., $ 95586 $ 23,507 § 13,333 $§ (56,194) § (50,303)
FRO () o e e $ 83741 $. 43371 $-(5108) § 13,762 $ 69,552
FFO - Fully Converted(3) .................. ‘3 87320 % 61313 § (2600 % 32,025.% 117,151
EBITDA(3) .............................. $ 275052 $ 133475 $143,180 $ 151,781 §$ 186,544
Balance Sheet Data: J ‘ . ‘ e
Total asSets . ... oo vrie i e e $3,255,709 $1,448,110 $990,350 %2,079,521 $2,269,657
Total liabilities ............... e 1,914,991 - 861,367. 732,744 1,832,845 1,934,264
Minority interests ...................... SR 23,428 . 87,646 61,053 107,608 . 217,778
Shareholders’ equity ................... o... 1,317,290 499,097 196,553 @ 139,068 117,615

(1) We sold two hotel properties in 2006, two hotel properties in 2005, one hotel property in 2004, and five
hotel properties in 2003. The operations of the sold hotels are included as discontinued operations in the |
operating data above for all years presented. -

{2) The historical information for the year ended December 31, 2004 does not reflecl lhe operauons of the ,
distributed properties subsequent to the date of the IPO.
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(3) We present three non-GAAP financial measures herein that we believe are useful to management and
investors as key measures of our operating performance: Funds from Operations (FFO), FFO-Fully
Converted and Earnings Before Interest Expense, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA).
Reconciliation of these measures to net income (loss) available to common shareholders, the most directly

- comparable GAAP measure, is set forth in the following tables.

We compute FFO in accordance with standards established by the National Association of Real Estate
Investment Trusts, or NAREIT, which adopted a definition of FFO in order to promote an industry-wide standard
measure of REIT operating performance. NAREIT defines FFO as net income (or loss) (computed in accordance
with GAAP) excluding gains (or losses) from sales of property plus real estate-related depreciation and
amortization, and after adjustments for our portion of these items related to unconsolidated partnerships and joint
ventures. We also present FFO-Fully Converted, which is FFO plus convertible debt interest expense and
minority interest expense on convertible minority interests. We believe that the presentation of FFO and FFO-
Fully Converted provides useful information to management and investors regarding our results of operations
because they are measures of our ability to fund capital expenditures and expand our business. In addition, FFO
is widely used in the real estate industry 1o measure operating performance without regard to items such as
depreciation and amortization. '

EBITDA represents net income (loss) available to common shareholders excluding: (i) interest expense, (i)
income tax expense, including deferred income tax benefits and expenses applicable to our foreign subsidiaries
and income taxes applicable to sale of assets; and (tii) depreciation and amortization. EBITDA also excludes
interest expense, income tax expense and depreciation and amortization of our equity method investments,
EBITDA for 2006, 2005, 2004 and 2003 is presented on a full participation basis, which means we have assumed
conversion of all convertible minority interests into our common stock, and for 2006 and 2005, it includes
preferred dividends. We believe this treatment of minority interest provides more useful information for
management and our investors and appropriately considers our current capital structure. We believe EBITDA is
useful to management and investors in evaluating our operating performance because it provides management
and investors with an indication of our ability to incur and service debt, to satisfy general operating expenses, to
make capital expenditures and to fund other cash needs or reinvest cash into our business, We also believe it
helps management and investors meaningfully evaluate and compare the results of our operations from period to
period by removing the impact of our asset base (primarily depreciation and amortization) from our operating
results. Our management also uses EBITDA as a measure in determining the value of acquisitions and
dispositions.

We caution investors that amounts presented in accordance with our definitions of FFO, FFO-Fully
Converted, and EBITDA may not be comparable to similar measures disclosed by other companies, since not all
companies calculate these non-GAAP measures in the same manner. FFO, FFO-Fully Converted, and EBITDA
should not be considered as an alternative measure of our net income (loss} available to common shareholders or
operating performance. FFO, FFO-Fully Converted, and EBITDA may include funds that may not be available
for our discretionary use due to functional requirements to conserve funds for capital expenditures and property
acquisitions and other commitments and uncertainties. Although we believe that FFO, FFO-Fully Converted, and
EBITDA can enhance your understanding of our financial condition and results of operations, these non-GAAP
financial measures, when viewed individually, are not necessarily a better indicator of any trend as compared to
comparable GAAP measures such as net income (loss) available to common shareholders. In addition, you
should be aware that adverse economic and market conditions might negatively impact our cash flow. Below, we
include a quantitative reconciliation of FFO, FFO-Fully Converted, and EBITDA to the most directly comparable
GAAP financial performance measure, which is net income (loss) available to common shareholders, and
provide an explanatory description by footnote of the items excluded from FFO, FFO-Fully Converted, and
EBITDA.

The following tables show the reconciliations between net income (loss) available to common shareholders
and FFO and FFO—Fully Converted and net income (loss) available to common shareholders and EBITDA for
the periods indicated:
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Reconciliation of Net Income (Loss) Available to Common Shareholders to
Funds From Operations (FFO} and FFO—Fully Converted
Historical for the Years Ended December 31,

2006(1)  C2005(1)  2004(1)2)  2003(1) 2002
(In thousands)

Net income (loss) available to common

shareholders......................ccoounu... $95586 § 23,507 § 13,333 $(56.194) $(50,303)
Depreciation and amortization—continuing . _ . '

OPEratioNS .. ... .. .iet ettt i 75,135 43,753 , 51,577 73,393 97,785
Depreciation and amortization—discontinued

OPErations ............iuuiiuaeinnnnnnnarnnnns 2,535 8.853 9,886 14,781 19,900
Gain on sale of assels-—-—contmumg operations . ....... 48) (42) — — —
Gain on sale of assets—discontinued operations . ... .. (88,871) (21,202 (75,982) (21,072) —
Realized portion of deferred gain-on sale leasebacks . .. (4,405 (4,355) (2,180) — —
Deferred tax expense on realized portion of deferred

gain on sale leasebacks .............. ... ...... 1,320 1,307 657 — . —
Minority interest adjustments ... ..........,....... (,761) (10,546) (5,573 (466) (819)
Adjustments from consolidated affiliates . ... ........ (2,;196) — — — —
Adjustiments from unconsolidated joint ventures . ... .. 6,446 . 2,096 3,174 3,320 2,989
FFO(3)..... e e 83,741 43,371 (5,108 13,762 69,552
Convertible debt int€rest expense . ................. — — 4,105 14,902 36,516
Convertible minority interests . ................... 3,588 17,942 743 3,361 11,083
FFO—Fully Converted(3) .................... ... $87329 $61,313 $ (260) $32,025 $117,151

(1) We sold two hotel properties in 2006, two hotel properties in 2005, one hotel property in 2004, and five

hotel properties in 2003.

(2) The reconciliation for the year.ended December 31, 2004 does not reflect the operations of the distributed

properties subsequent to the date of the IPO.

(3) FFO has not been adjusted for the following amounts included in net income (loss) available to common
shareholders because these losses and other transactions have either occurred during the prior two years or

are reasonably likely to occur within two years (in thousands).

+ Impairment losses from continuing operations amounted to $5,435 for the year ended

December 31, 2002

+ Impairment-losses from discontinued operations amounted to $12,675 for the year ended

December 31, 2004,

. ’Loss.qn early extinguishment of debt from éohtinuing operations amounted to $2,150, $6,540,
$21,551, and $12,590 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.

¢ Loss on early extinguishment of debt from discontinued operations amounted to 31,000, $1,575,
$383, and $2,257 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

»  Termination costs and the associated deferred tax benefit related to the iermination of the
‘management agreement at the Marriott Rancho Las Palmas property of $9,851 and $3,842,
respectively, includégi in discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2006.

* Planning costs related to the redevelopment of the area surrounding the Hyatt Regency
New Orleans hotel of $3,005 and the deferred tax benefit on planmng costs of $612 for the

year ended December 31, 2006.
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Reconciliation of Net Income (Loss) Available to Common Shareholders to EBITDA
Historical for the Years Ended December 31, g

2006(1) 2005(1) 2004(1)(2) 2003(1) 2002
. (In thousands)

Net income (loss) available to common . . .

shareholders ......... ... ... $ 95586 $ 23,507 $ 13,333 $(56,194) $(50,303)
Depreciation and amortization—continuing , :

OPErations .. ..o ooit it 75,135 43,753 51,577 73,393 97,785
Depreciation and amortization—discontinued )

OPEIAtONS .. ..ottt 2,535 8,853 9 886 14,781 19,900
Interest expense—continuing operations .. ... . 51,111 33,047 . 58,348 98,541 96,346
Interest expense—discontinued operations ......... . 1,855 4,702 6,807 15,202 15,585
Income taxes—continuing operations ............. 3,320 . 2401 . 2,388 - 2y 3,199
Income taxes—discontinued operations ........... (3,981) (1,103) — — —
Minority interests ............... ... i 1,827 . 7,396 {4,831) 2,895 .« (1,382)
Adjustments from consolidated afilliates . .......... {4,310) — — _ . =
Adjustments from unconsolidated joint ventures . . . .. 27,431 4,166 . 5,672 3,165 5,414
Preferred shareholder dividend ....... e, 24,543 6,753 —_ — S, —

EBITDAG) ...t P $275,052 * $133,475 $143,180 $151;781 $186,544

(1) We sold two hotel properties in 2006, two hotel properties in 2005, one hotel property in 2004, and five
hotel properties in 2003.

(2) The reconciliation for the year ended December 31, 2004 does not reflecl the operatlons of the distributed
properties subsequent to the date of th¢ TPO.

(3) EBITDA has not been adjusted for the followmg amounts included in net income (loss) available to

© common shareholders because these losses and other transactions have either occurred dunng the prior two
years or are reasonably likely to occur within two years (in thousands)

« Impairment losses from continuing operanons amounted to, $5,435 for the year ended.
December 31, 2002, ,

+ Impairment losses from discontinued opera'tions amounted 1o $12,675 for the year ended
December 31, 2004. : - '

+ Loss on early extinguishmeht of debt from continuing operati()‘ns amountéd to $2,150, $6,540,
$21,551, and $12,590 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.

« Loss on early 'cxtinguishment of debt from discontinued operations amounted to $1,000, $1:575,
$383, and $2,257 for the'years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

 Gain on sale of assets from discontinued operations amounted to $88,871, $21,202, $7‘5,982 and
* $21,072 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

»  Realized portion of deferred gain on sale leasebacks amounted to $4,405, $4 355 and $2, 180 for
the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2604, respectively.

+ Termination costs related to the termination of the management agreement at the Marriott Rancho
L.as Palmas property of $9,851 included in discontinued operauons for the year ended December 31,
2006. :

+  Planning costs related to the redevelopment of the area surrounding the Hyatt Regency New Orleans
hotel of $3,005 and for the year ended December 31, 2006.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATION.

_The following discussion and analysis is based primarily on the consolidated financial statements of
Strategic Hotels & Resorts, Inc. for the years presented and should be read together with the notes thereto
contained in this annual report on Form 10-K. Terms employed herein as defined terms, but without definition,
have the meanings set forth in the notes to the financial statements (see “Itemn 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data™). :

Overview

Strategic Hotels & Resorts, Inc., which we refer to herein as SHR or the Company, and was formerly known
as Strategic Hotel Capital, Inc., was incorporated in January 2004 to own and asset manage upper upscale and
luxury hotels in North America and Europe. Qur founder and accounting predecessor, Strategic Hotel Capital,
L.L.C,, or SHC LLC, was founded in 1997 by Laurence Geller, our President and Chief Executive Officer,
Whitehall (an affiliate of Goldman, Sachs & Co.) and others. We made an election to be taxed as a real estate
investment trust, or REIT under the Internal Revenue Code. On June 29, 2004, we completed our initial public
offering, or IPO of common stock. Prior to the IPQO, 21 hotel interests were owned by SHC LLC. Concurrent with
and as part of the transactions relating to the IPQ, a reverse spin-off distribution to shareholders separated SHC
LLC into two companies, a new, privately-held SHC LLC, with interests, at that time, in seven hotels (the
Distributed Properties), and Strategic Hotels & Resorts, Inc., a public entity with interests, at that time, in
14 hotels. See “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data—Note 1 General” for the hotel interests
owned by us.

We operate as a self-administered and self-managed REIT, which means that we are managed by our board
of directors and executive officers. A REIT is a legal entity that holds real estate interests and, through payments
of dividends to stockholders, is permitted to reduce or avoid federal income taxes at the corporate level. For us to
continue to qualify as a REIT, we cannot operate hotels; instead we employ mternauona]ly known hotel
management companies to operate our hotels for us under management contracts. We conduct our operations
through our direct and indirect subsidiaries including our operating partnership, Strategic Hotel Funding, L.L.C.,
or SH Funding, which currently holds substantially all of our assets. We are the sole managing member of our
operating partnership and hold approximately 99% of its membership units as of December 31, 2006. We
manage all business aspects of our operating partnership, including the sale and purchase of hotels, the
investment in these hotels and the financing of our operating partnership and its assets.

The historical financial data prior to June 29, 2004 presented in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operation section is the historical financial data for our predecessor, SHC
LLC, and reflects the historical results of operations and financial position of SHC LLC, including the seven
properties that were not contributed to SH Funding as part of the transactions relating to the [PO. As a result, our
historical results of operations and financial position are not indicative of our results of operations and financial
position after the IPO, Throughout this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operation section, references to “we,” “our” and “us” are references to SHC LLC and its consolidated
subsidiaries before the IPO and SHR, SH Funding and their subsidiaries after the IPO.

When presenting the dollar equivalent amount for any amounts expressed in a foreign currency, the dollar

equivalent amount has been computed based on the exchange rate on the date of the transaction or the exchange
rate prevailing on December 31, 2006 as applicable, unless otherwise noted.
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Factors Affecting Our Results of Operations ~

Acquisition and Sale of Interests in Hotel Properties.

(D

(2}

3)
4)

During 2004 through 2006, we acquired the following properties:

Property Acquisition Date Amount Paid  Debt Assumed
(in millions) -  (in millions)

Ritz-Carlton Half Moon Bay . ................ August 24, 2004 $123.2 —
InterContinental Chicago & Miami(l) ......... April 1, 2005 $285.4 —
Fairmont Chicago ............ovieinvnaon September 1, 2005 $158.6 | —
Hotel del Coronado(2) .......coooooviinn., January 9, 2006 $ 714 —
Four Seasons Washington, DIC. .............. March 1, 2006 $170.0 —
Westn St Francis ....ooovvvviicmvnecnnnnnns- June 1, 2006 $439.3 —
Ritz-Carlton Laguna Niguel ................. July 7, 2006 $327.7 $ 86
InterContinental Prague(3) .................. August 3, 2006 $ 758 $85.9°
Marriott London Grosvenor Squate ........... August 31, 2006 $207.6 —
Fairmont Sc.ottsdale\l"rincess(4) .............. September 1, 2006 $350.7 —

We purchased 85% controlling interests in the InterContinental hotels in Chicago and Miami, which had an
agreed upcn aggregate market value of approximately $301.0 million. We established a new basis in the
properties of approximately $297.0 million. . '

We acquired a 45% managing joint venture ownership interest in the Hotel del Coronado for our pro rata
share of an agreed upon market value of $745.0 million. We account for this investment using the equity
method. ‘ ‘ :

We purchased our joint venturé'partner’s 65% interest in the entity that owns the InterContinental Prague.
We purchased the Fairmont ScotEsdale Princess hotel and an adjacent 10-acre development parcel.

During 2004 through 2006, we sold the following properties:

Property Disposition Date Net Sales Proceeds
) . . . (in millions)
Hilton Burbank Airport .......... O ... September 7, 2006 $123.3
‘Marriott Rancho Las Palmas Resort ..... N eneee. July 14,2006 $ 548
Embassy Suites Lake Buena Vista .................. ... October 27, 2005 $ 54.8
Marriott Schaumburg . . . . . . e DU weeiiie.. October7,2005 1 $ 215
Hyatt Regency Washington, D.C. ..................... February 6, 2004 $156.4

The results of operations for these sold properties have been classified as discontinued operations in the

statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 20006, 2005 and 2004. Based on the continued cash
flow we generated from an asset management agreement with SHC LLC, the operations of seven hotel properties
distributed to SHC, LLC in 2004 are not reflected as discontinued operations in the accompanying statements of -
operations. ‘ Y :
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Below is a summary of changes in our portfolio which have occurred during the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004. The table summarizes the number of hotels and number of rooms, excludmg
unconsolidated joint ventures: )

. 2006 2005 2004

Hotels : i . .
Number of hotels, begmrung ofperiod . ... ... ... .. i il 15 14 20
ACQUISIEIONS ... i e e e s o 3 2
Dispositions . ..o, e e IR o (2) {2) - )]
Distributed properties ................ e e — — N
Number of hotels, end of period . . s DU . 19 15 14
Rooms ‘ ,

Number of rooms, beginning of period ............. ... ........... 7,213 5820 9567
ACQUISTHIONS . .. .ttt e e 3,058 2,140 538
ROOm eXpansions . ...........utiniii it e 5 — —
Dispositions . ................... e e (932) (731) = (834)
Distributed properties .. .......... v iiurrea i T ] — (3.450)
Rooms converted to otheruses .. ... ...t it innnn, - 23) (16) —_

Number of rooms, end of period . ......................... e 9,321 7213 5,820

We define our Total Portfolio as properties that are owned or Jeased by us, and their operations are included
in our consolidated operating results. We present certain information about our hotel operating results and
statistics on a comparable hotel basis, which we refer to as our Same Store analysis. We define our Same Store
Assets as those (a) that are owned or leased by us, and their operations are included in our consolidated cperating
results, and (b) for which we reported comparable operating resulis throughout the reporting periods being
presented.

Qur Same Store Assets for purposes of the comparison of the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 do
not include the Hyatt New Orleans, which was taken out of service in September 2005, the InterContinental
Chicago and Miami hotels, the Fairmont Chicago, the Four Seasons Washington, D.C,, the Westin St. Francis,
the Ritz-Carlton Laguna Niguel, the InterContinental Prague, the Marriott London Grosvenor Square, and the
Fairmont Scottsdale Princess. In addition, we do not include the Hotel del Coronado, which we account for under
the equity method, and all sold properties that are included in discontinued operations. - :

Our Same Store Assets for purposes of the comparison of the years ended December 31, 2005 to 2004 do
not include the Hamburg Marriott, which we accounted for under the equity method until we acquired the
remaining 65% joint venture interest in March 2004, the Hyatt New Orleans, which was taken out of service in’
September 2005, the Fairmont Chicago, the InterContinental Chicago and Miami hotels, the Ritz-Carlton Half |
Moon Bay, the InterContinental Prague, which we accounted for under the equity method until we acquired the
remaining 65% joint venture interest in August 2006, and all sold properties that are included in discontinued
operations.

We present these Same Store Asset results because we believe that doing so provides useful information for
evaluating the period-to-period performance of our hotels and facilitates comparisons with other hotel REITs and
hotel owners. In particular, these measures assist in distinguishing whether increases or decreases in revenues
and/or expenses are due to operations of the Same Store Assets or from acquisition or disposition activity.
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Revenues. Substantially all of our revenue is derived from the operation of our hotels. Specifically, our
revenue for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 consists of:

Total Portfolio Same Store Assets
% of Total Revenues % of Total Revenues
' 2006 2005 2006 2005
Revenues:
ROOMS .t ittt i et e e e cn e 53.0% 52.4% 48.5% 48.2%
Foodandbeverage .....:.... ... . .cooviioiaai 33.9% 33.7% 32.8% 33.3%
Other hotel operating revenue ..................onn. 10.3% 10.0% 12.2% 12.6%

i 97.2% 86.1% 93.5% 94.1%
Lease revenle . . ..o cvvvuunneanrininrieeennnnns 2.8% 3.9% 65%  5.9%

Total FEVENUES ..o oo i e et ee e e it 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

< Rooms revenue. Occupancy and average daily rate are the major drivers of rooms revenue.

+ Food and beverage revenue. Occupancy and local social catering are the major drivers of food and
beverage revenue, '

*  Other hotel operating revenue. Other hotel operating revenue consists of ancillary revenue such as
internet access, telephone, parking, golf course, spa, space rentals and other guest services and is also

driven by occupancy.

»  Lease revenue. We eam lease revenue from the Hamburg Marriott and the Paris Marriott Champs
Elysées (Paris Marriott). Lease revenue for the Ha;nburg Marriott consists of a fixed annual rental paid
in monthly installments plus a percentage of profits in excess of the base rent. As a result of a sublease
arrangement at the Paris Marriott whereby we lease our interest in the hotel to a third party, we record
lease revenue in our consolidated statements of operations.

Changes in our revenues are most easily explained by performance indicators that are used in the hotel real
estate industry: )

+ average daily occupancy,
« average daily rate, or ADR, and

* net revenue per available room, or RevPAR, which is the product of ADR and average daily
occupancy, but does not capture food and beverage revenues or other hotel operations revenue such as

telephone, parking and other guest services.

Fluctuations in revenues, which, for our domestic hotels, tend to correlate with changes in the U.S. gross
domestic product, are driven largely by general economic and local market conditions as well as general health
and safety concerns, which in turn affect levels of business and leisure travel. Guest demographics also affect our
revenues. For example, a greater percentage of transient guests, which includes corporate and premium business
travelers who generally pay the highest average room rates, will generate higher rooms revenues. However, a
greater percentage of certain group guests which do not include the highest.corporate premium but do consume
larger relative amounts of food and beverage and other services may contribute to higher total revenue. In '
addition to economic conditions, supply is another important factor that can affect revenues. Room rates and
occupancy tend to fall when supply.increases unless the supply growth is offset by an equal or greater increase in
demand. One reason why we target upper. upscale and luxury hotels in select urban and resort markets, including
major business centers and leisure destinations, is because they tend to be in locations that have greater supply
constraints such as lack of available land, high development costs, long development and entitlement lead times
and brand trade area restrictions that prevent the addition of a certain brand or brands in close proximity.
Nevertheless, our hotels are not completely insulated from competitive pressures and our hotel operators will
lower room rates to compete more aggressively for guests in periods when occupancy declines. :
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Overall, our Total Portfolio RevPAR, excluding leased properties, increased to $170.28 during the year
ended December 31, 2006 from $134.29 during the year ended December 31, 2005. With respect to Same Store
Assets, RevPAR, excluding leased properties, increased to $165.32 for the year ended December 31, 2006 from
$151.16 for the yedr ended Decemnber 31, 2005.

Operating Costs and Expenses. Our operating costs and expenses for the years ended December 31, 2006
and 2005 consist of the costs to provide hotel services, including:

Total Portfolio Same Store Assets
% of Total Hotel % of Total Hotel
Operating Expenses Operating Expenses
2006 2005 ' 2006 2005
Operating Costs and Expenses:
Rooms ... .. 18.4% 17.7% 15.3% 14.9%
Foodandbeverage ............... ... ... ... c..... 32.6% 32.7% 33.5% 33.5%
Other departmental expenses ..............c........ 34.8% 37.0% 38.3% 38.8%
Managementfees ................. il 51% . 4.5% 4.8% +5.0%
Other hotel expenses . ........................ PR 9.1% 8.1% 8.1% 7.8%
Total hote! operating expenses ................. L. 1000%  100.0% - 100.0% 100.0%

* Rooms expense. Like rooms revenue, occupancy lS a major drwer of rooms expense which has a

significant correlation with rooms revenue. ;

* Food and beverage expense. Like food and beverage revenue, occupancy and local social catering are
the major drivers of food and beverage expense, Wthh has a 51gn1f'lcan[ correlallon with food and
beverage revenue,

" ' “t
« Other departmental expenses. Other departmental expenses consist of general and admlmstrat]ve
marketing, repairs and maintenance, utilities and .expenses related to earning ancillary revenue.

*  Management fees. We pay base and incentive management fees to our hote! operators. Base
management fees are computed as a percentage of revenue and correlate to revenues. Incentive
management fees are incurred when operating profits exceed levels prescnbed in our managemenl

agreements. ! LR

*  Other hotel expenses. Other hotel expenses consist primarily of insurance costs and property taxes.

Most categories of variable operating expenses, such as utilities and certain labor such as housekeepmg,
fluctuate with changes in occupancy. Increases in RevPAR attributable to increases in occupancy are
accompanied by increases in most categories of variable operating costs and expenses while increases in
RevPAR attributable to increases in ADR typically only result in increases in limited categories of operating
costs and expenses, such as management fees charged by our operators which are based on hotel revenues. Thus,
changes in ADR have a more significant impact on operating margins. .

Lease expense. As a result of sale and leaseback transactions dpplicable o the Paris Marriott and Hamburg
Marriott hotels, we record lease expense in our statements of opérations. In ¢onjunction with the sale and
leaseback transactions, we also recorded a deferred gain. Net lease expense includes an offset for the realized
portion of the deferred gain of $4.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2006 ahd 2005. '

-0 1 .. .

13

Corporate expenses. Corporate expenses include our corporate level expenses such as payroll and related
costs, share-based employee compensation plan expense, professional fees, travel expenses and office rent.

Recent Trends and Events ‘ .

Recent Trends. The .cconomy continued to grow through 2006 driving demand in all segments of the travel
industry. We believe that luxury hotels and resorts in particular benefited from improving leisure and business
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transient, and group business demand and outperformed other hospitality segments. Slow growth in new supply
is sustaining favorable pricing conditions for our properties. :

+

Recent Events. In addition to the recent trends described above, we expect that the following events will
cause our future results of operations to differ from our historical performance:

Hotel Acquisitions. In the fourth quarter of 2005, we signed letters of intent to purchase the LaSolana Hotel
project (which includes the development of 20.5 acres of land into hotel suites, spa, restaurant, pool and retail)
and Villa project (which includes the development of 27.0 acres into for-sale residences). These projects are
adjacent to our existing Four Seasons Punta Mita Resort. We agreed to pay an initial purchase price of
approximately $30.9 million and assume an installment agreement to purchase the Villa site over a four-year
period. The initial purchase price of $30.9 million pertained to purchasing existing promissory notes for
$17.9 million (including accrued interest) and the equity interests for $13.0 million (including acquisition costs).

In 2005, we purchased the promissory notes and made a refundable deposit of $1.0 million on the equity
investment. On March 8, 2006, we acquired the remaining equity interests to take full ownership and control of
the development sites. Upon purchase of the remaining equity interests, title to the Hotel site transferred to us and
the previously acquired promissory notes were converted 1o equity. The previous instaliment agreement to
purchase the Villa site was terminated, and we signed a new agreement that required a single payment of $18.0
million, which, along with acquisition costs, was paid in the third quarter of 2006.

On January 9, 2006, our subsidiaries closed the acquisition of a 45% joint venture ownership interest in
SHC KSL Partners, LP (Hotel Venture), the existing owner of the Hotel del Coronado in San Diego, California,
and in HAC North Beach Development, LLLP (North Beach Venture), the owner of an adjacent land parcel under
development, for our pro rata share of an aggregate agreed-upon market value of $745.0 million. We own the
hotel in partnership with KKR and KSL Resorts and account for the Hotel Venture and North Beach: Venture
using the equity method of accounting. An affiliate of KSL continues to manage the property. Our capital
commitment is limited to our equity investment equal to approximately $71.4 million, We funded our equity
investment in the Hotel del Coronado joint venture through borrowings under our revolving credit facility.

The joint venture has obtained $610.0 million of commercial mortgage-backed securities and mezzanine
debt financing and a $20.0 million revolving credit facility, concurrent with our acquisition, which are secured
by, among other things, a mortgage on the Hotel del Coronado. We earn fees under an asset management
agreement with the joint venture. We receive fees amounting to 1% of the ventures’ revenues and 2% of the
ventures' development costs. In addition, we earn financing fees of 0.325% of any debt principal placed on
behalf of the Hotel Venture as well as certain incentive fees as provided by the asset management agreements.
We recognize income of 55% of these fees,.representing the percentage of the venture not owned by us.

On March 1, 2006, we purchased the Four Seasons Washington D.C. hotel for approximately
$170.0 million. We used proceeds from our common stock and preferred stock offerings described below to
acquire this property ‘ o

On June 1, 2006 we purchased the Westin St. Francis San Francisco hotel for approxlmately 5439 3
million. We used proceeds from our common and preferred stock offerings described below to acquire this
property. On July 6, 2006, a subsidiary of SHR entered into a mortgage loan with Metropolitan Life Insurance
Company. The loan is secured by the Westin St. Francis hotel. Proceeds from the loan were used to pamally fund
the acquisition of the Ritz-Carlton Laguna Niguel.

On July 7, 2006, we purchased the Ritz-Carlton Laguna Niguel from SHC LLC for approximately $327.7
million and assumed $8.6 million in debt. We used proceeds from our common and preferred stock offerings - -
described below to acquire this property as well as proceeds from a mortgage debt financing secured by the
Westin St. Francis.
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On August 3, 2006, we purchased our joint venture partner’s 65% interest in the entity that owns the
InterContinental Hotel in Prague, Czech Republic, for $75.8 million and assumed debt of $85.9 million, The
purchase brings our interest in the entity that owns the property to 100%. The acquisition was financed using
borrowings under the bank credit facility.

On August 31, 2006, we purchased the Marriott London Grosvenor Square hotel for $207.6 million. The
acquisition was financed using mortgage debt and borrowings on the bank credit facility.

On September 1, 2006 we purchased the Fairmont Scottsdale Princess hote] and an adjacent development
land parcel for approximately-$350.7 mitlion. We used mortgage debt and borrowings on the bank credit facility
to acquire this property. . :

On September 26, 2006, we entered into an agreement to acquire an interest in a to-be-built mixed use
building adjacent to the Fairmont Chicago property. Our interest consists of approximately 15 floors that will
primarily house 210 hotel suites, meeting and prefunction space, hotel lobby and related areas and associated
improvements for approximately $82.4 million. The acquisition, expected to close in late 2009, remains subject
to contractual closing condltlons Letters of credit were issued as an earnest money deposit under our agreement
to acqmre the interest. : '

Sales of Horels. On July 14, 2006; we sold the Marriott Rancho Las Palmas Resort for $54.8 million. On -
September 7, 2006, we sold the Hilton Burbank Airport and Convention Center for $123.3 million. We
recognized a gain on these sales of $88.9 million. The gain on sale of these properties has been classified as.
discontinued operations in the statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2006.

In July 2003, we sold the real estate (building and land) relating to the Paris Marriott to Deutsche-
Immobilien Fonds Aktiengesellschaft, or DIFA. DIFA then leased this real estate to us with the right to continue
to operate the hotel. Under the terms of our lease, we make monthly minimum rent payments and pay additional
rent based on the performance of the hotel. As a result of provisions in the lease agreement that provide for
continuing involvement, we initially accounted for the sale and leaseback of the Paris Marriott as a finance
obligation. Subsequent to June 29, 2004, we recorded the Paris Marriott as an operating lease and now record
lease expense because we climinated what is considered a collateralized guarantee under generally accepted
accounting principles {(GAAP) by canceling the bank guarantee, As a result of a sublease arrangement whereby
we lease our interest'in the hotel to.a third party, we record lease revenue in our consolidated statements of
operations subsequent to June 29, 2004,

In February 2004, the joint venture that owned the Hamburg Marriott (Bohus) sold its interest in the hotel to
DIFA. As a result of provisions in the lease agreement that provide for continuing involvement by Bohus, Bohus
accounted for the sale and leaseback of the Hamburg Marriott as a finance obligation. Subsequent to Bohus” sale
of the Hamburg Marriott, on March 1, 2004, a subsidiary of SHR acquired the remaining 65% of Bohus it did not
previously own. Following the IPO, we restructured the terms of our lease to eliminate the previously
collateralized guarantee by canceling the bank guarantee. We now account for this transaction as an operating
lease and record lease expense. In addition, since we lease this hote] 1o the operator, we record lease revenue in
our consolidated statements of operations.

Hyatt Regency New Orleans. In August 2005, Hurricane Katrina caused substantial damage to the Hyatt
Regency New Orleans property. The hurricane damage also caused significant interruption to the business, and
the hotel has effectively ceased operations.

We-have comprehensive insurance coverage (both property damage and business interruption) for this loss
providing for an aggregate of $350.0 million in coverage per loss, subject to a deductible of approximately $11.0
million. The recovery effort is expected to include replacing portions of the building, landscaping and fumiture. .
The net book value of the property damage is currently estimated to be at least $32.7 million; however, while we
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have substantially completed our evaluation of the impact of the hurricane on the hotel and are in the process of
implementing our restoration plan, the actual net book value write-off could vary from this estimate.

Certain deductibles and limitations will apply to insurance proceeds. No determination has been made as to
the total amount or timing of those insurance payments and those insurance payments may not be sufficient to
cover the costs of the entire restoration.

To the extent we are entitled to recover incurred expenses under the insurance policies, we recognize a
receivable when it can be demonstrated that it is probable that such insurance recovery will be realized, and such
insurance recovery will then be reflected as a component of operating income. Any gain or profit component
resulting from business interruption insurance for lost income will not be recognized unti! the relevant payments
have been received and all contingencies related to the insurance recoveries are resolved. This income
recognition criterion will likely result in business interruption insurance recoveries being recorded in a period
subsequent to the period that we experience lost income from the affected property, resulting in fluctuations in
our net income that may reduce the comparability of reported quarterly and annual results for some periods into
the future.

Through December 31, 2006, we have recorded $47.4 million in insurance recoveries receivable related to
property damage and business interruption recoveries. We have collected $68.2 million in insurance proceeds
through December 31, 2006, including $10.0 million collected in 2005. Of the $47.4 million total receivable
recorded, $32.7 million represents the recovery of the net book value of fixed assets written off because of the
damage, as discussed above. The remaining $14.7 million represents a probable recovery of expenses incurred
through December 31, 2006.

Termination of Management Agreement. During the first quarter of 2006, we reached an agreement with
Marriott Hotel Services, Inc. (MHS), the manager of the Marriott Rancho Las Palmas Resort, to terminate the
hotel management contract with MHS on or before December 29, 2006. We paid MHS an initial termination fee
of $5.0 million upon termination. Under the agreement, we will be required to pay MHS an additional
termination fee of $5.0 million in 2009 if we have not entered into a qualifying hotel management contract with
MHS, or an affiliate, by December 31, 2008. We also agreed to reimburse MHS for certain severance and
relocation costs for MHS employees at the resort. We recorded a charge of $9.9 million for the present value of
the termination fees and estimated severance and relocation costs. This charge is included in income (loss) from
discontinued operations in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2006. . :

Common Stock Offerings. During the first quarter of 2006, we completed a public offering of common stock
at a price of $20.00 per share. The shares consisted of 8,000,000 primary shares of common stock sold by us and
12,731,640 secondary shares of common stock sold by shareholders affiliated or associated with Prudential
Financial, Inc. and Whitehall Street Real Estate Limited Partnerships VII and IX. After discounts, commissions
and estimated expenses, we raised net proceeds of approximately $151.9 million. These proceeds were used to
repay existing indebtedness under our credit facility, to partially fund the acquisition of the Four Seasons
Washington, D.C. and for general corporate purposes.

On May 24, 2006, we completed a public offering of 16,100,000 shares of common stock at a price of
$20.50 per share, After discounts, commissions and estimated expenses, we raised net proceeds of approximately
$318.3 million. These proceeds were used to repay existing indebtedness under our credit facility, to partially
fund the acquisitions of the Westin St. Francis and Ritz-Carlton Laguna Niguel and for general corporate
purposes.

Preferred Stock Offerings. On January 31, 2006, we completed a public offering of 4,600,000 shares of
8.25% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock. After discounts, commissions and estimated expenses,
we raised net proceeds of approximately $110.8 million. These proceeds were used to repay existing
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indebtedness under our credit facility, to partially fund the acquisition of the Four Seasons Washington D.C. and
for general corporate purposes.

On May 17, 2006, we completed a public offering of 5,750,000 shares of 8.25% Series C Cumulative
Redeemable Preferred Stock. After discounts, commissions and estimated expenses, we raised net proceeds of
approximately $138.9 million. These proceeds were used to repay existing indebtedness under our credit facility,
to partially fund the acquisitions of the Westin St. Francis and Ritz-Carlton Laguna Niguel and for general
corporate purposes.

Redemption of Units of Non-Managing Member Limited Liability Company Interests in SH Funding. We
offered all holders of units of non-managing member limited liability company interests in SH Funding an
opportunity to redeem their interests on January 20, 2006 by our waiver of the transfer restrictions in the limited
liability company agreement of SH Funding. On January 20, 2006, holders of 7,229,590 limited liability interests
in SH Funding redeemed their interests in exchange for an equal number of shares of our common stock. As of
December 31, 2006, holders of an additional 160,646 limited liability interests in SH Funding had redeemed their
interests in exchange for an equal number of shares of our common stock. After these exchanges, our ownership
share of SH Funding is approximately 99%.

Financings. During the year ended December 31, 2006, we entered into or assumed various mortgage loan
agreements to finance a portion of the hotel acquisitions mentioned above. These additional loans will increase
our interest expense recogmzed which will affect our net income. These mortgage loan agreements include the
following:

Principal
m Date (in millions) Interest
Fairmont Scottsdale Princess ... ... September I, 2006  $270.0 LIBOR +(0.61%
Marriott Grosvenor Square ....... August 31, 2006 £ 77.3($147.1) GBPLIBOR + 1.10%
Westin St. Francis .............. July 6, 2006 $220.0 LIBOR + 0.70%

InterContinental Prague .......... August 3, 2006 € 68.3($85.9) EURIBOR + 1.50%

In addition to the mortgage loan agreements described above, we also completed the fouowmg financing
transactions during the year ended December 31, 2006:

* amended our bank credlt fac1l|ty (o increase the revolving loan to $225 0 million,
+ received draws of $128.3 million and repaid $55.8 million on our CMBS Floating Rate debt,
+ executed.an aggregate $575.0 million in corporate interest rate swap agreements, and

« refinanced the InterContinental Floating Rate debt and purchased interest rate caps with notional
amounts covering the entire $211.0 million of the floating rate loans.

2004 Formation and Structuring Transactions. The following items were associated with the consummation
of the [PO:

* We no longer own or receive revenues or record expenses and operating costs from the Distributed
Properties. As a result, our historical results of operations, cash flows and financial position prior to the
PO are not indicative of our results of operations, cash flows and financial position expected after the
. IPO. '

= We recognized additional revenue earned under an asset management agreement with SHC LLC for
the Distributed Properties, which amounted to $5.0 million per year, subject to reduction as properties
are sold. SHC LLC sold three properties in 2005 and three properties in 2006. As a result of the
disposition of these properties, the asset management fee was reduced. During the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, we recognized $1.9 million, $5.0 million and $2.5 miltion,-
respectively, of asset management fees from SHC LLC, which is inciuded in other income {expenses),
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net in the accompanying statements of operations. Effective November 15, 2006, this management
agreement was terminated and SHC LLC paid a one time temunatlon fee of $0.25 million, Wthh is
included in the $1.9 million recognized in 2006.

+  We restructured the lease related to the Paris Marriott to eliminate the finance obligation and now
report it as an operating lease by changing the terms of the previously collateralized guarantee,
meaning that the applicable assets and liabilities are eliminated to reflect the restructuring, lease -
expense replaces interest expense and principal amortization of the finance obligation and depreciation
and amortization expense is also eliminated. In addition, as a result of a sublease arrangement whereby
we lease our interest in the hotel to a third party, we record lease revenue in our consolidated
statements of operations subsequent to June 29, 2004.

+ We acquired our joint venture partnet’s interest in the Hamburg Marriott hotel on March 1, 2004, and
restructured the lease related to that hotel to climinate the finance obligation. As of June 29, 2004, we
report it as an operating lease because we changed the terms of the previously collateralized guarantee.

» The Hyatt New Orleans hotel was converted from an operating lease to a management agrecment in
connection with the TPO.
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Operatmg Results
Comparison of Year Ended December 31, 2006 to Year Ended December 31, 2005

The following table presents our Total Portfolio and Same Store Assets, as defined on page 40, operating
results for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, mcludmg the amount and percentage change in these
results between the two periods. Our Total Portfolio represents the results of operations included in the
consolidated statements of operations (in thousands, except operating data).

" Total Portfolio " Same Store Assets
2006 2005 Change ($) Change (%) 2006 2005 Change (3) Change (%)
Revenues: ' ‘
Rooms ......... A $381.019 $224.850 5156,169 69.5%  $150,299 $137,.202  $13,097 9.5%
Food and beverage ............. 244022 144,860 99,162 68.5% 101,567 94,991 6,576 6.9%
Other hotel operating revenue .... 74075 43,045 31,030 72.1% 37,887 35,895 1,992 5.5%
699,116 412,755 286,361 69.4% 289,753 268,088 21,665 8.1%
Lease revenue ................ - 20,257 16,787 3.470 20.7% 20,257 16,787 © 3470 20.7%
Total revenues ............ 719373 429542 289,831 67.5% 310,010 284,875 25,135 8.8%
Operating Costs and Expenses:
Hotel operating expenses . ..., ... 521,230 308,076 213,154 69.2% 215,998 204,260 11,738 57%
Lease expense ................ 13,682 13,178 504 3.8% 13,682 13,178 504 38%
Depreciation and amortization . . . . 75.135 43,753 31,382 T1.7% 27111 26,787 324 1.2%
Corporate expenses ..........., 25,383 21,023 4,360 20.7% — — —_ —
Total operating costs and
EXPENSES o 0o ieeeananens 635430 386,030 249400 64.6% 256,791 244,225 12,566 51%
Operating income .. ........ 83943 43512 40,431 92.9% $ 53.219 § 40650 $12,569 30.9%
Interestexpense, net . ............... (46,848) (31,042) (15,806) 50.9%
Loss on early extinguishment of debt . . . (2,150) (6,540) 4,390 67.1%
Equity in (losses) earnings of joint
VEIIUTES .. ..oonivnvnnnnansnnnns {1,066) 2,818 (3,884) 137.8%
Otherincome, et ... oocveeeeennn... 4,400 5.541 (1,141) 20.6%
Income before income taxes, minority
interests and discontinued
OPErations . .. .....oouvuceevnnnnn 38279 14,289 23,990 167.9%
Income tax expense ................ (3,320) (2,401 919) 38.3%
Minority interests .. ................ (1,466) (2,937) 1,471 50.1%
Income from continuing operations . . . . 33,493 8,951 24,542 274.2%
Income from discontinued operations,
net of tax and minority interests . . . . . 86,636 21,309 65,327 306.6%
Netincome . ..........ccovevnnnnn, $120,129 $ 30,260 $ 89,869 297.0%

Reconciliation of Same Store Assets Operating Income to Operating Income:

Same Store Assel OPEraling INCOME ... .. ...ttt e iiaieaneennen. $ 53,219 § 40,650 $12,569 309%
COTPOTALE EXPERSES - -« o v o e e et amne et et een e et eare e me e aane e anean (25,383) (21,023)  (4.360) 20.7%
Corporate depreciation and amortization .................. ... . i iiiiiaiiaaa. 227 (137) (90) 65.7%
Non-Same Store Asset OPERUNZ INCOME .. ..ot vutur v eeranas o coriannraasannnns 56,334 24,022 32,312 134.5%
OPerating INCOMIE | .. ..ottt it et e e st e aaa e ns $ B3,943 % 43,512 $40431 929%
Operating Data(1):

Numberofhotels .............. 19 13 9 9

Numberofrooms .............. 9.321 6,281 2,961 2,961

RevPAR ... ... ... ool $17652 $ 14191 $ 34.61 244%  $ 18003 $ 16152 3 18.51 11.5%

(1} Operating data includes leased properties and excludes unconsolidated joint ventures and properties
included in discontinued operations.
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In October 2005, we sold two hotels and in the third quarter of 2006 we sold two hotels. The results of
operations for these hotels are included in income from discontinued operations for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005. The comments below regarding revenue and operating expenses do not address the
operating results of the hotels that we sold during 2005 and 2006 that are included in income from discontinued
operations.

Operating Income. Operating income for the total portfolio increased $40.4 million, or 92.9%. This increase
in operating income is primarily due to the following:

(2) a$12.6 millien increase attributable to the Same Store Assets as described below;
(b) a $7.9 million increase attributable to the Westin St. Francis, which we purchased June 1, 2006;

(c) a$7.2 million increase attributable to the InlerConiipemal hotels in Cﬁicago and Miami, which we
purchased in the second quarter of 2005;

(d) a $5.7 million increase atiributable to the Ritz-Carlton Laguna Niguel, which we purchased July 7,
2006;

{e) a$5.4 million increase attributable to the Four Scasons Washington, D.C., which we purchased
March 1, 2006;

(f) a $4.3 million increase attributable to lhe Marriott London Grosvenor Square, which we purchased
August 31, 2006;

(g) a $4.0 million increase attributable to the InterContinental Prague, as we purchased our joint
venture partner’s 65% interest on August 3, 2006 and began consolidating the operating results of
the InterContinental Prague; .

(h) a$3.6 million i increase attributable to the Fairmont Scotlsdale Princess, which we purchased
September 1, 2006; and

{i) a$3.1 million increase attributable to the Fairmont Chicago, which we purchased in September
2005, partially offset by

(j) a$8.7 million decrease attributable to the Hyatt Regency New Orleans which ceased s:gmﬁcam
operations in September 2005 due to Hurricane Katrina; and

(k) a $4.4 million decrease attributable to an increase in corporate expenses as described below.

The events mentioned above have had a significant impact on our overall operations, including increases in
both revenue and operating expenses; therefore, we believe that an analysis of changes in each line item '
comprising the Total Portfolio hotel operating income is not meaningful in addressing the factors that drive year
over year operating results. A more relevant approach is to analyze the changes in hotel operating income of the
Same Store Assets for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, as described beIow : :

Rooms. For the Total Portfolio, rooms revenue increased 69.5%. A significant factor related to the overall
portfolio rooms revenue increase is the acquisition of new properties. In addition, RevPAR from our Total
Portfolic excluding leased propetties for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased by 26.8% from the year
ended December 31, 2005. The components of RevPAR from our Total Portfolio excluding leased properties for
the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 are summarized as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

. 2006 2005
OCCUPANCY .. ot i e i e [ PR 74.0% 69.8%
Average daily rate . ... ... .. e e $230.21 $192.43
RevPAR ... .o e e R $170.28 $134.29




For the Same Store Assets, rooms revenue increased 9.5%. RevPAR from our Same Store Assets excluding
leased properties for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased by 9.4% from the year ended December 31,
2005. The components of RevPAR from our Same Store Assets excluding leased properties for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005 are summarized as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

. 2006 2005
OCCUPANCY ... it e e e 71.0% 70.7%
Averagedailyrate ... ... ... . e $232.89 $213.69
RevPAR ... ... ... ... ... . .. e $165.32 $151.16

The 9.4% increase in RevPAR for the Same Store Assets excluding leased properties resulted from a
0.3 percentage-point increase in occupancy and a 9.0% increase in the average daily rate. Significant RevPAR
increases within the Same Store Assets were noted at the Four Seasons Punta Mita with'a 16.7% increase and the
Hyatt Regency LaJolla with an 11.5% increase.

A combination of improved rates and the opening of several beachfront suites at the Four Seasons Punta |
Mita resulted in the resort’s ADR increasing by 16.4% in 2006 over 2005. Demand at the hotel also increased by
nearly 3.6% as travel to the west coast of Mexico continues to grow.

Demand in the San Diego market grew faster than the national average. The Hyatt Regency La Jolla
leveraged this increased demand to eliminate many discounted transient segments, which increased the hotel’s
ADR by 10.1%.

Food and Beverage. For the Total Portfolio, food and beverage revenue increased 68.5%, which was
primarily due to the acquisition of hotels. For the Same Store Assets, food and beverage revenue increased
$6.6 million, or 6.9%. This Same Store increase is primarily driven by the increase of $2.5 million in food and
beverage revenue at the Ritz-Carlion Half Moon Bay, $1.7 million at the Marriott Lincolnshire and $0.8 million
at the Four Seasons Punta Mita, :

Most of the food and beverage increase at the Ritz-Carlton Half Moon Bay is due to additional banquet
revenue resulting from a 7.1% increase in group rooms. As a defensive strategy in response to new competition
in its market, the Marriott Lincolnshire increased group business in 2006, which drove additional banquet
revenue at the hotel. The increased occupancy at the Four Seasons Punta Mita resulted in an increase in volume
in the resort’s restaurants and bars.

Other Hotel Operating Revenue. For the Total Portfolio, other hotel operating revenue increased $31.0
million, or 72.1%, which was primarily due to the acquisition of hotels, The significant other operating revenues
generated by these newly acquired properties during the year ended December 31, 2006 include spa and health
club revenue of approximately $6.7 million, garage parking revenue of approximately $5.5 million, renta}
revenue of $4.6 million, and other incidental hotel services such as internet access of approximately $2.3 million.
For the Same Store Assets, other hotel operating revenue increased $2.0 million, or 5.5%.

Lease Revenue. For the Total Portfolio and Same Store Assets, lease revenue increased 20.7%. Lease
revenue for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 includes lease revenue from the Paris Marriott and the
Hamburg Marriott. In accordance with the lease agreements, we earn an annual base rent plus additional rent
contingent on meeting performance thresholds. During 2006, hotel operations improved at both of these hotels
allowing us to recognize additional lease revenue, which was not recognized in the prior year. The improved
performance of the Paris Marriott is due to the Paris market enjoying both strong demand and ADR growth in
2006, which resulted in overall RevPAR increasing 19%. The Paris Marriott RevPAR growth was consistent with
the market. The World Cup Games in May, June and July 2006 resulted in RevPAR growth of 22% in the
Hamburg market, with the Marriott Hamburg achieving RevPAR growth of 24.2%.
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Operating Costs and Expenses

Hotel Operating Expenses. The following table presents the components of our hotel operating expenses for
the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, including the amount and percentage changes in these expenses
between the two periods (in thousands).

Total Portfolio Same Store Assets
2006 2005 Change ($) Change (%) 2006 2005 Change (§) Change (%)

Hotel operating expenses:

ROOMS ©.ovvvinnninriannnnns $ 95161 $ 54493 § 40,668 746%  $ 33,039 § 30446 5 2,593 8.5%
Food and beverage . ............ 170,141 100,689 69,452 69.0% 72310 68435 3,875 5.7%
Other departmental expenses . . ... 181,495 114,005 67.490 59.2% 82,875 79.174 3,701 4.7%
Management fees .............. 26,774 13.865 12,909 93.1% 10,373 10,277 96 0.9%
Other hotel expenses ........... 47,659 25,024 22,635 90.5% 17,401 15928 1.473 0.2%
Total hotel operating expenses . ... $521,230 $308,076 $213,154 69.2% $215998 $204.260  $11,738 5.7%

For the Total Portfolio, hotel operating expenses increased 69.2%. For the Same Store Assets, hotel
operating expenses increased $11.7 million, or 5.7%. The Same Store increase in hotel operating expenses is
primarily related to an increase in salaries, wages and related benefits ($4.5 million), travel agent commissions
($0.6 million), laundry and linens ($0.4 million), credit card commissions ($0.5 million), cost of food (30.5
million), electricity ($0.6 million), insurance ($0.7 million) and sales and marketing costs ($0.9 million).

Demand for labor in the Same Store markets resulted in an increase in average wages and benefits paid to
employees. Increases in travel agent commissions, laundry and linens, credit card commissions, and sales and
marketing costs were the result of increased revenue volume, Property and earthquake insurance premiums have
risen at all properties.

Depreciation and Amortization. For the Total Portfolio, depreciation and amortization increased $31.4
miltion, or 71.7%, for the year ended December 31, 2006 when compared to the same period in 2005 primarily
due to the acquisitions of new hotels.

Corporate Expenses. Corporate expenses increased $4.4 million, or 20.7% for the year ended December 31,
2006 compared to the same period in 2005. These expenses consist primarily of payroll and related costs, share-
based employee compensation expense, professional fees, travel expenses and office rent. The overall increase in
corporate expenses is in accordance with the growth of our hotel portfolio in 2006 and is primarily attributable to:

 a$2.2 million increase in payroll expenses due to an increase in the number of corporate employees;
«  2$1.6 million increase related to share-based employee corhpensatioq expense,

« a$0.6 million increase related to severance expense,

¢ a$0.7 million increase related to travel expenses;

« a$1.5 million increase related to legal, audit, and consulting fees; offset by

a $1.3 million decrease in professional fees primarily applicable to Sarbanes Oxley requirements.

Interest Expense, Net, The $15.8 million, or 50.9%, increase in interest expense, net for the year ended
December 31, 2006 as compared to the year ended 2005 was primarily due to:

= a3$22.1 million increase attributable 10 higher average borrowings; and

* a$3.0 million increase due to higher average rates; offset by
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¢ a3%6.2 million increase in capitalized interest;
* a $0.7 million decrease in amortization of deferred financing costs; and
* 3 $2.3 million increase in interest income.

The components of interest expense, net for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 are summarized
as follows (in thousands):

i Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005
Mortgagedebt ............................... e e L $(53,335) $(29,725)
Bank credit facility ............ .. .. ... . .. ... e (4,207) (2,702)
Amortization of deferred financing costs ............... ... ... ... ... (1,887) (2,598)
Mark-to-market of derivative instruments ... ........ ... .. ... ..., — (104)
INtErest iMCOMIE « o o v o v et e e e e e ettt eeaas e 4,264 2,005
Capitalized interest . ........... . ... ..o, [ . 8,317 2,082
Total interest eXpense, NEt .. .. .....vviiiieeinnneenennannns PP $(46,348) $(31,042)

The weighted average debt outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 amounted to
$942.6 million and $580.3 million, respectively, and the weighted average interest rates, including the effect of
interest rate swaps, were 6.10% and 5.59%. At December 31, 2006, including the effect of interest rate swaps,
31.1% of our total debt had variable interest rates and 68.9% had fixed interest rates.

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt. On October 6, 2006, we refinanced the debt related to the .
InterContinental Miami and Chicago hotels and wrote off the applicable unamortized deferred financing costs. -
This write-off, as well as a prepayment penalty, amounted to $2.2 million, which has been reported as loss on
early extinguishment of debt in the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2006.

On November 9, 2005, we replaced a $175.0 million bank credit agreement and wrote off the applicable
unamortized deferred financing costs. This write-off, which amounted to $2.2 million, has been reported as loss
on early extinguishment of debt in the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31,
2005. '

On November 9, 2005, we repaid 2004 floating rate mortgage loan financings. In connection with the
repayment, we sold the related caps and wrote off the unamortized deferred financing costs applicable to
issuing this debt. This amounted to $5.9 million and has been reported as loss on early extinguishment of debt
($4.3 million) and income from discontinued operations ($1.6 million) in the consolidated statement of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Equity in (Losses) Earnings of Joint Ventures. For the Total Portfolio, equity in (losses) eammgs of joint
ventures decreased by $3.9 million.

On Auguost 3, 2006, we acquired our joint venture partner’s 65% interest in the entity that owns the
InterContinental Prague hotel. During the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, we recorded $0.2 million
and $2.9 million of income, respectively, in our equity in (losses) earnings of joint ventures related to the
InterContinental Prague. The following table presents certain components included in the calculation of equity in
earnings resulting from our 35% share of the operations of the InterContinental Prague prior to our purchase in
August 2006 (in thousands):

Seven Months Ended Year Ended
July 31,2006 . December 31, 2005
Netincome ............ . e -8 222 $2.931
Depreciation .. .............. ... ... ool ‘ 1,126 2,096
Interest ..ot i e e e 793 1,337
Income tax expense ............0......... <302 774




On January 9, 2006, our subsidiaries acquired a 43% joint venture ownership interest in SHC KSL Partners,
LP, the existing owner of the Hotel del Corenado in San Diego, California, and in HdC North Beach
Development, LLLP (North Beach Venture), the owner of an adjacent parcel under development. During the year
ended December 31, 2006, we recorded $(1.8) million of loss in our equity in (losses) earnings of joint ventures
related to the Hotel del Coronado. The following table presents certain components included in the calculation of
equity in losses resulting from our 45% share of the operations of the Hotel del Coronado and the North Beach
Venture (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31, 2006
L= A (o A U PP $(1,776)
Depreciation . ..... .. ... i e 5,151
= ¢ 1 A U I 19,305
INCOME LAX EXPENSE . . oo vt iinre ettt iia e tinans 400

We own a 31% interest in and act as asset manager for a joint venture with two unaffiliated parties that is
developing the Four Seasons Residence Club Punta Mita, a luxury vacation home product on the property
adjacent to the Company's Four Seasons Punta Mita Resort hotel that is sold in fractional ownership interests.
Our equity in (losses) earnings of the joint venture amounted to $0.5 million and $(0.1) million for the years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Other Income, Net. Other income, net includes asset management fees, non-income related state, local and
franchise taxes, foreign exchange realized gains and losses as well as other miscellaneous income and expenses.
The net decrease of $1.1 million, or 20.6%, is primarily attributable to the following factors:

- We had an asset management agreement with SHC LLC that commenced on June 29, 2004, under
which we managed the day-to-day business of SHC LLC and its hotels for an initial annual fee of
$5.0 million. SHC LLC sold three properties in 2005 and three properties in 2006. As a result of the
disposition of these properties, the asset management fee was reduced. November 15, 2006 SHCLLC
terminated the agreement. During the years ended December, 2006 and 2005, we recognized
$1.9 million and $5.0 million, respectively, of asset management fees from SHC LLC, which are
included in other income, net in the accompanying statements of operations. The $1.9 million
recognized in the year ended December 31, 2006 includes a termination fee of $0.25 million.

»  SHR eamns fees under an asset management agreement with the Hotel del Coronado and North Beach
joint ventures. SHR recognizes income of 55% of these fees, representing the percentage of the venture
not owned by SHR. For the year ended December 31, 2006, we recognized fees amounting to 522
million.

s We had non-income related state, local and franchise taxes of $1.6 million and $1.0 million for the
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Income Tax Expense. Beginning in our 2004 tax year, we made an election to qualify as a REIT under
Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code. As a REIT, we generally will not be subject to u.s.
federal income tax if we meet the REIT requirements of the code. If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable
year, we will be subject to U.S. federal income tax (including any applicable alternative minimum tax) on our
taxable income at regular corporate tax rates. Even if we qualify for taxation as a REIT, we may be subject to
state and local income taxes and to U.S. federal income tax and excise tax on our undistributed income. In
addition, taxable income from our taxable REIT subsidiaries is subject to U.S. federal, state and local income
taxes. Also, the foreign countries where we have operations do not recognize REITs under their respective tax
law. Accordingly, we recognize income taxes for these jurisdictions in accordance with GAAP.
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For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, income tax expense reiated to continuing operations is
summarized as follows (in thousands):

! . . ‘ 2006 - 2008
" . Current tax (ekpense) benefit:’ '
Europe ................... e $ (25 $1,659
MeEXICO ..ttt it e e (4455) (3,364)

(4,480)  (1,705)

Deferfed tax (expense) benefit:

Burope ... e e (1,029 (1,307

MERICO . i e 1,420 {36)

United States . ... ... i e 769 697
1,160 (696)

Total INCOME LaX EXPENSE .+ .o\ v vttt eie et et iiiieeeeennn $(3,3200  $(2.401)

Minority Interests. We record minority interest income or expense based on the percentage of SH Funding
we do not own. The earnings or losses from the InterContinental Chicago and Miami hotels attributable to the
15% minority interest are also reflected as minority interest expense, Minority interest expense {excluding
discontinued operations) decreased by $1.5 million, or 50.1%, primarily due to the redemption of 7.2 million
SH Funding operating partnership units for common shares that occurred in the first quarter of 2006. .

Income from Discontinued Operations. As described under “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation—Recent Trends and Events—Sales of Hotels”, we
sold two hotels in the fourth quarter of 2005 and two hotels in the third quarter of 2006 and reclassified the
results of operations for these hotels as discontinued operations for the vears ended December 31, 2006 and 2005.
Income from discontinued operations amounted to $86.6 million and $21.3 million for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.. The increase of $65.3 million in income from discontinued
operations is primarily due to the gain of $88.9 million on sale of the two hotels sold in the third quarter of 2006
compared to the gain of $21.2 million on sale of the hotels in 2005.
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4

Operating Results
Comparison of Year Ended December 31, 2005 to Year Ended December 31, 2004

The following table presents our Total Portfolio and Same Store Assets, as defined on page 40, operating
results for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, including the amount and percentage change in these
results between the two periods. Our Total Portfolio represents the results of operations included in the
consolidated statements of operations (in thousands, except operating data).

Total Portfolio Same Store Assets
' . 2005 2004 Change($) Change (%) 2005 2004 Change ($) Change (%)
Revenues:
ROOMS ......oovvvvinnnennnn. $224,850 $220,231 § 4.619 2.1% $116,081 $118,079  $(1,998) 1.7%
Food and beverage ............ . 144,860 120,594 24,266 20.1% 73,541 69,151 4,350 6.3%
Other hotel operating revenue ... 43,045 39,811 3234 8.1% 27493 26,354 1,089 42%
412,755 380,636 32,119 8.4% 217,115 213,624 3,491 1.6%
Leaserevenue ................ 16,787 24,233 (7.446) 30.7% 12,647 6919 5,728 82.8%
Total revenues ............ 429542 404869 24,673 6.1% 229762 220,543 9219 4.2%
Operating Costs and Expenses:
Hotel operating expenses .. ...... 308,076 290,622 17,454 6.0% 161,800 157,655 4,145 2.6%
Leaseexpense ................ 13,178 6,446 6.732 104.4% 9.170 4,492 4,678 104.1%
Depreciation and amortization . ... 43,753 51,577 (7.824) 15.2% 21,552 22,939 (1,387) 6.0%
Corporate expenses ............ 21,023 28,845 (7,822) 27.1% — —_ — —_
Total operating costs and
EXPENSES ..\t 386,030 377490 8,540 2.3% 192,522 185,086 7.436 4.0%
Operating income .. ........ 43,512 27,379 16,i33 589% $ 37,240 § 35457 $ 1,783 5.0%
Interest expense, net ... ............. G31042) (57.117) 26075 45.7%
Loss on early extinguishment of debt .. (6,540) (21,551} 15,011 69.7%
Equity in earnings of joint ventures . . .. 2818 739 2,079 281.3%
Other income (expense), net ......... 5.541 (190) 5731 © 3016.3%
Income {loss) before income taxes,
minority interests and discontinued o :
operations . ... ... .. 14,289 (50,740) * 65,029 128.2%
Income tax expense ...............- {2,401y  (2,388) (13) 0.5%
Minority interests .................. 2,931 1,329 (4,266) 321.0%
Income (loss) from continuing
OpPErations . ............c.ovuaunnn 8,951 (51,799) 60,750 117.3%
Income from discontinued operations,
net of tax and minority interests . . . . . 21,309 65,132 ° (43.823) 67.3%
Netincome .........coovvuvuns . $ 30,260 $ 13333 §$ 16927 T 127.0%
Reconciliation of Same Store Assets Operating Income to Operating Income: . . p
Same Store Asset OPETling iNCOME . ... .ot veten it nrn e aa e aaeaieeaans $ 37.240 § 35457 § 1,783 5.0%
COTPONALE BXPEMSES . . ..o vttt et ittt tanarae s s naaaaasnnrrrsrsneeeaeaceaas (21,023) (28,845) 7,822 27.1%
Corporate depreciation and amoOrEZation . ..., ..ot rvinucearaiiaan s 137N (191) 54 28.3%
Non-Same Store ASSet operating inComme .. ... ...ovvieeenrnriaanreerreeneanns 27432 20958 6.474 30.9%
Operating Income .............. _.'. e e $ 43512 § 27379 $16,133 58.9%
Operating Data (1): P
Number of hotels .............. 13 10 7 7
Numberofrooms .............. 6,281 4,157 2419 2,435
RevPAR .............. ..., 514191 $13785 § 406 29% §$ 16030 $ 14798 § 1232 8.3%

(1) Operating data includes leased properties and excludes unconsolidated joint ventures and properties
included in discontinued operations. The number of hotels and rooms above exclude the Distributed
Properties, although the operations of the Distributed Properties are included in our results of operations
through June 29, 2004.
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In February 2004, we sold one hotel; in October 2005, we sold two hotels; in July 2006, we sold one hotel,
and in September 2006, we sold one hotel. The results of operations for these hotels are included in income from
discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004. The comments below regarding
reveitue and operating expenses do not address the operating results of the hotels that we sold that are mcludcd in
income from discontinued operations. Based on the continued cash flow we generated from our asset
management agreement with SHC LLC the Distributed Propertles are not reflected as discontinued operations in
our operating results.

Operating Income, Operating income for the Total Portfolio increased $16.1 million, or 58.9%. This
increase in operating income is due to the following events:

(a) a $7.8 million increase attributable to a decrease in cofporate expenses as described below;

(b) a $1.8 million increase attributable to the Same Store Assets as described below (éxcluding lease
expense at the Paris Marriott);

(c) a $2.6 million increase attributable to the Rn.z~CarIton Half Moon Bay, which we purchased in
August 2004;

(d) a $13.9 million increase attributable to the InterContinental hotels in Chicago and Miami, which we
purchased in the second quarter of 2005;

(e) a $4.1 million increase attributable to the Fairmont Chicago, which we purchased in September
2005; partially offset by

(f) a $0.5 million decrease at the Hamburg Marriott;

(g) an $8.7 million decrease attributable to the Distributed Properties to SHC LLC that are reflected in
the year ended December 31, 2004; and

(h) a $4.9 million decrease attributable to the Hyatt Regency New Orleans which ceased significant
operations in September 2005 due to Hurricane Katrina, -

On June 29, 2004, the Hyatt Regency New Orleans hotel was converted from an operating lease to a
management contract. For the year ended December 31, 2005 and the six months ended December 31, 2004,
results are reflected in each line item of hotel operating revenues and expenses (excluding lease revenue) in the
accompanying operating results. For the first six months of 2004, the results are only reflected in lease revenue in
the accompanying operating results.

On June 29, 2004, our leasehold interest in the Paris Marriott was subleased to a third party oberator. For the
year ended December 31, 2005 and the six months ended December 31, 2004, the rent payments are reflected in
lease revenue in the accompanying operating results. For the first six months of 2004, the results are reflected in
each line item of hotel operating revenues and expenses (excluding lease revenue) in the accompanymg operatmg
results.

Due to the events mentioned above, we believe that an analysis of changes in each line item comprising
Total Portfolio hotel operating income is not meaningful in addressing the factors that drive year-over-year
operating results. A more relevant approach is to analyze the changes of hotel operating income of the Same
Store Assets for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, as described below. :
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Roems. For the Tota} Portfolio, rooms revenue increased 2.1%. RevPAR from our Total Portfolio for the
year ended December 31, 2005 increased by 2.9% from the year ended December 31, 2004. The components of
RevPAR from our Total Portfolio for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 are summarized as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004
Occupancy .............. e e e i 70.7% T1.2%
Average daily rate ... .. ... e $200.59 $193.73
REVPAR ... i e e $141.91 $137.85

For the Same Store Assets, rooms revenue decreased 1,7% in 2005 when compared 2004. The decrease is
primarily due to the Paris Marriott hotel, which was converted to a lease on June 29, 2004. For the first six
months of 2004, $9.9 million of rooms revenue is attributable to the Paris Marriott. Excluding the rooms revenue
related to the Paris Marriott in 2004, the Same Store rooms revenue increased by 7.3%. RevPAR from our Same
Store Assets for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased by 8.3% from the year ended December 31, 2004.
The components of RevPAR from our Same Store Assets for the year ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 are
summarized as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004
OCCUPANCY ..\ e yerer e caeae e eneeteann e AP 72.0% 70.9%
Averagedailyrate ........ ... SN $222.67 $208.64
RevPAR . e © $160.30 $147.98

The 8.3% increase in RevPAR for the Same Store Assets resulted from an approximately 1.1 percentage-
point increase in occupancy and a 6.7% increase in the average daily rate. The increase in RevPAR seen in many
of our major urban markets is a reflection of the improving economic conditions in these markets this year.
Increases in RevPAR for the year include the Four Seasons Punta Mita with a 13.7% increase, the Loews Santa
Monica Beach Hotel with a 12.5% increase and the Hyatt Regency LaJolla with a 10.6% increase.

Food and Beverage. For the Total Portfolio, food and beverage revenue increased 20.1%. For the Same
Store Assets, food and beverage revenue increased 6.3%. This increase is primarily driven by the increase of
$2.2 million in food and beverage revenue at the Hyatt Regency LaJolla, $1.6 million at the Loews Santa Monica
Beach Hotel, $1.4 million at the Four Seasons Punta Mita and $0.7 million at the Hyatt Regency Phoenix. These
increases are partially offset by a decrease of $2.3 million in food and beverage revenue at the Paris Marriott
which we began recording as a lease on June 29, 2004.

Other Hotel Operating Revenue. For the Total Portfolio, other hotel operating revenue increased 8.1%. For
the Same Store Assets, other hotel operating revenue increased 4.2%. The increased occupancy led to increases
in many of the other hotel operating revenue streams at the properties; however, these increases continued to be
offset by the decline in telephone revenues, primarily caused by the increased use of cellular phones. On a per
occupied room basis, telephone revenues decreased 10.0% during 2005 compared to 2004.

Lease Revenue. For the Total Portfolio, lease revenue decreased 30.7% for the year ended December 31,
2005 as compared to the same period in 2004. For the Same Store Assets, lease revenue increased $5.7 million,
or 82.8% for the year ended December 31, 2005 as compared to the corresponding period of 2004. Lease revenue
for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 includes lease revenue from the Paris Marriott, which began
being recorded as a lease subsequent to June 29, 2004.
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Operating Costs and Expenses

Hotel Operating Expenses. The following table presents the components of our hotel operating expenses for
the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, including the amount and percentage changes in these expenses
between the two periods (in thousands),

Total Portfolio Same Store Assets
2005 2004  Change ($) Change (%) 2005 2004  Change($) Change (%)

Hotel operating expenses: .

Reoms ...................... 554493 § 55123 3 (630 1.1% $ 24499 § 24809 § (310} 1.2%
Food and beverage ............. 100,689 91,690 8,999 9.8% 52,016 50,344 1,672 13%
Other departmental expenses . .. .. 114,005 104,399 9,606 9.2% 63,436 60,948 2,488 41%
Management fees .............. _13.865 14,852 (987) 6.6% 9,005 . 10,010 (1,005) 10.0%
Other hotel expenses ........... 25 024 24,558 466 1.9% 12,844 11,544 1,300 11.3%
Total hotel operating expenses . ... $308,076 $290,622  $17.454 6.0% $161,800 $157,655 $4,145 2.6%

For the Total Portfolio, hotel operating expenses increased 6.0%. For the Same Store Assets, hotel operating
expenses increased 2.6%. Included in hotel operating expenses for the first six months of 2004 is $8.2 million
attributable to the Paris Marriott hotel, which was converted to a lease on June 29, 2004. Excluding these
expenses attributable to the Paris Marriott hotel, hotel operating expenses increased $12.3 million or 8.3%. The
increase in hotel operating expenses is pnmarily related to the increase in salaries, wages and related benefits
($5.1 million), administration and general costs ($1.8 million), marketing costs {$0.7 million), food and beverage
cost of sales ($0.6 million), utilities ($0.7 million), real estate taxes {($0.3 million), and repairs and maintenance
(30.2 million).

Lease Expense. In connection with the IPO, we recorded a sale and leaseback of the Paris Marriott and
Hamburg Marriott as of June 29, 2004 and now record lease expense on our statements of operatlons In
connection with these transactions, we also recorded a deferred gain.

For the Total Portfolio, net lease expense of $13.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 includes
an offset for the realized portion of the deferred gain of $4.4 million related to the Paris Marriott and the
Hamburg Marriott. For the Total Portfolio, net lease expense of $6.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2004 includes an offset for the realized portion of the deferred gain of $2.2 million related to the Paris Marrioit
and the Hamburg Marriott. See “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data——Note 3 Property and
Equipment” in the consolidated financial statements for more information.

»

For the Same Store Assets, net lease expense of $9.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 includes
an offset for the realized portion of the deferred gain of $4.2 million related to the Paris Marriott. For the Same
Store Assets, net lease expense of $4.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 includes an offset for the
realized portion of the deferred gain of $2.1 mitlion related to the Paris Marriott. See “Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data—Note 3 Property and Equipment” in the consolidated financial statements
for more information. ' :

.
t

Depreciation and Amortization. For the Total Portfolio, depreciation and amortization decreased 15.2%,
for the year ended December 31, 2005 as compared to the same period in 2004. For the Same Store Assets,
depreciation and amortization decreaséd 6.0% for the year ended December 31, 2005 as compared to the same
period in 2004. The decrease is attributable to an increase in fully depreciated assets.

1 .

Corporate Expenses. Corporate expenses decreased by $7.8 million. These expenses consist primarily of
payroli and related costs, unit appreciation rights and restricted stock unit plan expense, professional fees, travel
expenses and office rent. The decrease of $7.8 million is primarily attributable to:

¢ 2 3%$3.6 million decrease in severance expense;

+ 2 $2.2 million decrease in compensation expense related to restricted stock units issued,
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+ a $0.9 million decrease in tax and consulting services; and

« a$5.4 million decrease in legal fees as a result of our settled litigation with Marriott; offset by
+ 2 $2.4 million increase in professional fees due to Sarbanes-Oxley requirements; and
* a$1.6 million increase in salary expense
Interest Expense, Net. The $26.1 million decrease in interest expense, net for the year ended December 31,
2005 as compared to the year ended 2004 was due to:

» 2 $17.5 million decrease attributable to lower average borrowings;

« a %$4.1 million decrease due to lower average rates;

« a$1.3 million decrease in amortization of deferred financing costs;

» a303 million decrease related to the mark-to-market of derivative instruments; and
« a$0.8 million increase in interest income.

» a$2.1 million increase in interest capitalized

The components of interest expense, net for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 are summarized
as follows (in thousands):

Years ended December 31,
. 2005 2004

Mortgage debt .. ... ... s $(29,725)  $(48,791)
Bank credit facility .......... ... .. .. i i (2,702) (1,343)
Convertible debt . .. ...ttt i e — (3,967
Amortization of deferred financingcosts . ........ ... .. .. o il (2,598) (3,890)
Mark-to-market of derivative INSIrUMents . . . ...... e riveenennanan.. (104) (356)
V1S3 11 5 11 Lot o) o 1 -2 2,005 1,230
Capitalized interest ................ oo . 2,082 —

Total Interest eXPense, NEL . ... ..ottt ianinn e eranarrraen e nn 8(31,042) $(57.117)

The weighted average debt outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 amounted to
$580.3 million and $894.7 million, respectively, and the weighted average interest rates, including the effect of
interest rate swaps, were 5.59% and 6.05%. At December 31, 2005, including the effect of interest rate swaps,
24.1% of our total debt had variable interest rates and 75.9% had fixed interest rates.

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt. On November 9, 2005, we replaced a $175.0 million bank credit
agreement and wrote off the applicablé unamortized deferred financing costs. This write-off, which amounted to
$2.2 million, has been reported as loss on early extinguishment of debt in the consolidated statement of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2005. '

On November 9, 2005, we repaid 2004 floating rate mortgage loan financings. In connection with the
repayment, we sold the related caps and wrote off the unamortized deferred financing costs applicable to
issuing this debt. This amounted to $5.9 million and has been reported as loss on early extinguishment of debt
($4.3 million) and income from discontinued operations ($1.6 million) in the consolidated statement of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2003.

On June 29, 2004, we repaid the floating rate CMBS 2003 using a portion of proceeds from the IPO and
2004 mortgage loans, and wrote off the unamortized deferred financing costs applicable to issuing this debt.
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This write-off, which amounted to $22.9 million, has been reported as loss on early extinguishment of debt
($20.3 million) and income from discontinued operations ($2.6 million) in the consolidated statement of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2004. '

On June 29, 2004, the U.S. dollar denominated mortgage debt secured by one domestic hotel (fixed rate
loan) and our two Mexican hotels (variable rate toans) were repaid with proceeds of two mortgage loan
financings, and we wrote off the unamortized deferred financing costs applicable to issuing these loans. This
write-off, which amounted to $1.2 million, has been reported as loss on early extinguishment of debt in the
consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2004,

On January 30, 2004, we repaid an outstanding note and accrued interest payable to the City of Burbank. In
connection with the repayment, we recognized a gain of $2.2 million on the retirement of this debt that has been
reported in income from discontinued operations in the consolidated qtatemem of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2004,

Equity in Earnings of Joint Ventures. During the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, we recorded
$2.9 million and $0.8 million of income, respectively, in our equity in earnings of the joint venture that owned
the InterContinental Prague. The foilowing table presents certain components included in the calculation of
equity in earnings resulting from our 35% share of the operations of the Prague joint venture (in thousands):

Years ended
December 31,

. 2005 2004
NELINCOME ... ittt $2931 $ 832
Depreciation . ... ... s 2,096 3,171
|41 £ =11 A P 1,337 1,383
Tt TS b 774 922

1

Other Income, Net. Other income, net includes asset management fees, non-income related state, local and
franchise taxes, foreign exchange realized gains and losses, the change in value of our foreign currency forward
exchange contracts prior to their distribution, as well as other miscellaneous income and expenses. The net
change of $5.7 million is primarily attributable to the following factors:

»  Prior to June 29, 2004, we had two foreign curréncy forward exchange contracts with a combined
" notional amount of 1.62 billion Czech Koruna ($50.0 million) that were designated as hedges of our net

investment in the Prague hotel joint veriture. A portion of these contracts was deemed ineffective and,
as such, did not qualify for hedge accounting. Accordingly, changes in the value of these forward
exchange contracts were recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (to the extent
deemed effective) and to other income (expenses), net (to the extent deemed ineffective). When marking
these contracts to market we increased other expenses $2.7 million for the year ended December 31;
2004. All of our forward currency contracts were distributed to SHC LLC on June 29, 2004.

»  We had an asset management agreement with SHC LLC that'commenced on June 29, 2004, under
which we managed the day-to-day business of SHC LLC and its seven hotels for an annual fee of -
$5.0 million. During the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, we recognized $5.0 million and
$2.5 million, respectively, of asset management fees from SHC LLC; which is included in other
income, net in the accompanying statements of operations.

= We had non-income related state, local and franchise taxes of $1.0 million and $0.4 million for the
years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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*  We sold assets and recorded a gain of $42,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005 and a 1oss of -
$0.2 million for the vear ended December 31,-2004. -

»  We had foreign exchange gains (losses) of $68,000 and $(0.6 million) for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. .,

Income Tax Expenses. Prior to the TPO, we were not subject to U.S. federal and certain state income taxes,
which were the responsibility of the members of our accounting predecessor. We were subject to certain foreign
income taxes payable by our foreign subsidiaries. We were required to make tax distributions to our members
and holders of certain convertible limited partnership interests. These tax distributions were equal to each
member’s or holder’s allocable share of our taxable income times the highest U.S. federal and state income tax
rate applicable to any member.

We made an election to qualify, beginning in our 2004 tax year, as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860
of the Internal Revenue Code. As a REIT, we generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax if we meet
the REIT requirements of the code. If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, we will be subject to
U.S. federal income tax (including any applicable alternative minimum tax) on our taxable income at regular
corporate tax rates. Even if we qualify for taxation as a REIT, we may be subject to state and local income taxes
and to U.S. federal income tax and excise tax on our undistributed income. In addition, taxable income from our
taxable REIT subsidiaries is subject to U.S. federal, state and local income taxes. Also, the foreign countries
where we have operations do not recognize REITs under their respective tax law. Accordingly, we recognize
income taxes for these jurisdictions in accordance with GAAP, as necessary. In particular, our Mexican operation
has performed well and when its operating results are combined with inflationary and foreign exchange effects
particular to the Mexican tax code, our tax expense is impacted, driving significant current and deferred tax
expense. : . )

For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, income tax e){pense is summarized as follows
(in thousands):

2005 2004
Current tax benefit (expense): o - -
e o < N R R R RS - $1,659 § 139
| 025 & 1o« R U DU (3,364) 219
‘ | o | S (1,705) 358
Deferred tax (expense) benefit: . - .
Europe.............. S e e e (1,307) 947)
MEXICO .ot i it et et i e e e (86) (1,799
United SEAIES . . v i oee ettt e P A e 697 —
(696)' (2,746)
Total inCOME taX EXPEMSE . .ot veer s e innnns P $(2,40D)  $(2,388)

Minority Interests. Prior to the IPO, we acquired certain hotels through the formation of limited -
partnerships and a limited liability company that we controlled, but which had minority equity owners. Operating
profits allocated to the minority owners of the limited partnership and limited hablhty company units were
recorded as minority interests. Subsequent to the IPO, we record minority interest income or expense based on
the percentage of SHC Funding we do not own. The earnings or losses from the InterContinental Chicago and
Miami attributable to the 15% minority interest are normally reflected as minorily interest expense; however,
based on the partnership agreements with IHG, we receive a preferred retuifn of all the net cash flow (as defined -
in the agreements) at the properties through December 31, 2005, up to a certain threshold. That threshold was not
exceeded in 2005; therefore the results of those properties in 2005 did not have an effect on minority interest.
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Minority interest expense (excluding discontinued operations) increased by $4.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005 when compared to the year ended December 31, 2004.

Income from Discontinued Operations. As described under “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation—Recent Trends and Events—Sales of Hotels”, we
sold one hotel in the first quarter of 2004, two hotels in the fourth quarter of 2003, and two hotels in the third
quarter of 2006, and consistent with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, reclassified the results of operations for
these hotels as discontinued opérations for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004. Income from
discontinued operations amountcd to $21.3 million and $65.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2005 and
2004, respectively. - | :

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Qur short-term liquidity requirements consist pnmanly of funds necessary to pay for operating expenses and
other expenditures, including:-

* recurring maintenance expenditures necessary to mail_ltain_oilr properties properly;
* interest expense and scheduled principal payments on outstanding indebtedness;

* capital expenditures incurred to improve our properties;

* acquisitions; |

« future distributions paid to our common stockhq]ders to maintain our REIT status;
+ future distributions paid to our preferred stockholders; and

» future distributions to minority interests.

Historically, we have satisfied our short-term liquidity requirements through our existing working capital
and cash provided by our operations. We believe that our existing working capital, our revolving credit facility
described below and cash provided by operations will continue to be sufficient to meet our short-term hquldlty
requirements for at least the next 12 months.

Capital expenditures for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 amounted to $92.7 million,
$39.4 million and $23.4 million, respectively. Included in the 2006 and 2005 amounts are $8.3 million and $2.1
miilion of capitalized interest, respectively. Capital expenditures for the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005 include $33.1 million $7.7 million, respectively, to redevelop the Hyatt Regency New Orleans. For the year
ended December 31, 2007, we expect to fund hotel FF&E reserve projects of approximatety $44.0 million and
owner-funded projects of approximately $45.0 million. In addition, we expect to continue to fund expenditures
for reconstruction at the Hyatt Regency New Orleans through insurance proceeds and our line of credit,
depending on the timing of the receipt of the insurance proceeds.

Bank credit facility. On November 9, 2005, we entered into a bank credit agreement with a group of lenders
led by Wachovia Capital Markets, LLC and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. This agreement replaced the previous
agreement that was entered into on June 29, 2004. That agreement provided for a $125.0 million revolving loan
and was scheduled to expire November 9, 2009, subject to a one-year extension at the borrowers’ option. On
May 30, 2006 and August 28, 2006, we amended the agreement to increase the revolving loan to $150.0 and
$225.0 million, respectively. On August 28, 2006, we also amended the agreement to increase the size of the
letter of credit sub-facility from $25.0 million to $50.0'million. SHR guaranteed the loan and pledged its interest
in SH Funding as collateral for this loan. Certain subsidiaries of SH Funding also guaranteed the loan and SH
Funding’s interest in certain subsidiaries have been pledged as collateral for this loan. Interest is payable monthly
at LIBOR plus a spread of 1.50% to 2.75% (1.75% at December 31, 2006) depending on a leverage test.
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Additionally, there is an unused commitment fee of 0.20% to 0.30% per annum based on the average daily-
unused revolver balance. As of February 28, 2007, there was $126.0 million outstanding under'this facility. As of
February 28, 2007, there were outstanding letters of credit of $12.0 million.

" Qur bank credit facility contains financial and other restrictive covenants. As of December 31, 2006, our
ability to borrow under this facility is subject to financial covenants including: -

« minimum tangible net worth of $325.0 million, plus 75% of proceeds we receive from any new
issuance of common stock;

«  minimum ratio of consolidated EBITDA to cash interest expense of 2.0;
¢ minimum ratio of consolidated EBITDA to fixed charges, as defined, of 1.2;
« the ratio of consolidated indebtedness to gross asset value may not exceed 75%;

+  borrowings outstanding under the facility shall not exceed 2.5 times adjusted Net Operating Income
(NOI) for the last 12 months; v

« the net asset value of qualified properties must be more than 1.5 times the revolving loan commitment
amount;

+ total construction costs must not exceed 15% of the gross asset value of all properties combined
(excluding construction costs related to the Hyatt Regency New Orleans);

«+ the net asset value of unconsolidated subsidiaries must not exceed 25% of the gross asset value of all
properties combined; and

¢ the sum of total construction costs and the net asset value of unconsolidated subsidiaries described
above must not exceed 35% of the gross asset value of all properties combined.

Our compliance with these covenants in future periods will depend substantially on the financial results of
our hotels, including business interruption insurance proceeds related to damage at the Hyatt Regency New
Orleans, the timing and recognition of which is uncertain. The credit facility also contains customary restrictive
covenants, including the following: *

s asset sales must be for at least 85% cash or cash equivalents, on a bona fide arms length basis;

« restricted payments, including dividends, may not exceed 90% of funds from operations, as defined
(subject to dividend payments to preserve our REIT status);

» there may be no additional indebtedness or gdaranlies other than (i) property-level non-recourse
indebtedness on to-be-acquired assets, (ii) the $208.5 million fixed rate mortgage loan and the $350.0
million floating rate note that were issued pursuant o indentures with LaSalle Bank, N.A., as note
trustee for the benefit of the noteholders: (iii) certain existing mortgage indebtedness; and (iv) ordinary
course obligations; and o

« neither we nor SH Funding will be allowed to enter into a merger or a similar transaction unless SH
- Funding is the surviving entity and there is no change in the type of business conducted, or the
transaction is approved in advance by the lenders.

As of December 31, 2006, we are compliant with the above financial and other restrictive covenants.

Our long-terrh liquidity requirements consist primarily of funds hecessary to p'ay for scheduled debt
maturities, renovations, expansions and other non-recurring capital expenditures that need to be made
periodically to our properties, and the costs associated with acquisitions of properties that we pursue.

Historically, we have satisfied our long-term liquidity requirements through various sources of capital,
including our existing working capital, cash provided by operations, long-term property mortgage indebtedness,
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bank credit facilities and through the issuance of additional equity securities. We believe that these sources of
capital will continue to be available to us in the future to fund our long-term liquidity requirements. However,
there are certain factors that may have a material adverse effect on our access to these capital sources. Our ability
to incur additional debt is dependent upon a number of factors, including our degree of leverage, the value of our
unencumbered assets (if any) and borrowing restrictions imposed by existing lenders. Our ability to raise funds
through the issuance of equity securities is dependent upon, among other things, general market conditions for
REITs and market perceptions about us. We will continue to analyze which source of capital is most
advantageous to us at any particular point in time, but equity and debt financing may not be consistently
available to us on terms that are attractive or at all. '

Equity Securities

As of December 31, 2006, we had 760,912 restricted stock units outstanding, of which 460,040 were vested.
The following table presents the changes in our issued and outstanding shares of common stock and operating
partnership units since December 31, 2005 (excluding restricted stock units):

Operating Partnership
Common Units Represented by
Shares Minority [nterests Total
Outstanding at December 31, 2005 U 43,878,273 8,366,091 52,244,364
Common stock offerings .................... 24,100,000 — 24,100,000
Units converted into common shares . ... .. Pt . 7,300,236 (7,390,236) . —
Restricted stock units redeemed for common
shares . ... ... .. e 38,218 —_ 38,218
‘ Outstanding at December 31,2006 ............ 75,406,727 975,855 76,382,582

Cash Flows ' '

Operating Activities. Net cash provided by operating activities was $141.2 miltion for the year ended
December 31, 2006, including $14.7 million in insurance proceeds pertaining to incurred expenses that we
believe are covered by our Hyatt Regency New Orleans busiress interruption claim, compared to net cash
provided by operating activities of $76.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 and net cash used in
operating activities of $(7.8) million for the vear ended December 31, 2004, Cash flow from operations increased
from 2005 to 2006 primarily because of the increase in hotel operating income, offset by an increase in corporate
expenses and interest expense. Cash flow from operations increased from 2004 to 2005 primarily because of our
increase in hotel operating income as well as a decrease in interest expense. Due to the distribution of seven
hotels to SHC LLC in 2004, our historical cash flows are not indicative of our cash flows subsequent to the
completion of the IPO. ' ' -

Investing Activities, Net cash ;used in investing activities was $(1.5) billion for the year ended December 31,
2006, compared 1o net cash used in investing activitics of ${(430.0) miilion for the year ended December 31, 2005
and net cash provided by investing activities of $64.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The
significant investing activities during these periods are summarized below:

+  We completed our acquisition of a joint venture interest in the Hotel del Coronado for approximately
$50.1 million in January 2006.

*  We spent $31.4 million in connection with our acquisition of the LaSolana Hotel and Villas
development sites in 2006.

*  We purchased five hotels for $1,495.3 million in 2006..
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We purchased-our joint venture partner’s 65% interest in the entity that owns the [nterContinental
Prague hotel for appr0x1mately $75.8 mllhon in August 2006. '

We sold two hotels during the year ended December 31, 2006 for net sale proceeds of $178.1 million
and two hotels during the year ended December 31, 2005 for net sales proceeds of $76.3.

We received $43.5 million and $10.0 million of insurance proceeds in 2006 and 2003, respectively, as
a result of the hurricane that struck our Hyatt New Orleans property in August of 2005.

Increased restricted cash'and cash equivalénts by $33 0 million during the year ended December 31,
2006 primarily due to insurance proceeds received during 2006,

We acquired joint venture mterests in the Chicago and Miami InterContinental hotels for $285.4
million during the year ended December 31, 2005.

We purchased the Fairmont Chicago for approximately $158.6 million in September 2005.

During the fourth quarter of 2003, we purchased notes réceivable of approximately $17.9 mllhon in
connection with the acquisition of the LaSolana Hotel and Villa project.

During the fourth quarter of 2005, we paid $22.3 million in escrow deposits in connection with the
acquisitions of the LaSolana Hotel and Villa project ($1.0 million) and our joint venture interest in the
Hotel del Coronado ($21.3 million).

We disbursed $92.7 million and $39.4 million during the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, related to capital expenditures for renewals, replacements, room renovations and
redevelopment of the Hyatt Regency New Orleans in 2006 and 2005.

In 2004, our significant investing activity included a $5.2 million distribution received from the
InterContinental Prague joint venture, 2 $10.4 million distribution received from the Hamburg Marriott
joint venture as a result of the sale and léaseback transaction, $156.4 million of proceeds received from
the sale of a hotel, and change in restricted cash and cash equivalents of $58.7 million, which were
offset by the $123.2 million purchase of the Ritz-Carlton Half Moon Bay and $23.4 million paid for
capital expenditures. .

Financing Activities. Net cash provided by ﬁnancmg activities was $1.4 billion for the year ended
December 31, 2006 compared to net cash provided by financing activities of $379.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005 and net cash used in financing activities of $(126.1) million for the year ended December 31,
2004. The significant financing activities during these periods are summarized below:

In 2006 and 2005, we received proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of offering costs of
approximately $470.2 million and $217.4 million, respectively. 1

fn 2006 and 2005, we received proceeds from issuance of preferred stock, net of offering costs of
approximately $249.7 million and $97.6 million, respectively, and distributed $24.5 million and $6.8

million, respectively to preferred shareholders. J '

In 2006, we received net proceeds from mortgage and other debt of $976.4 million and made net
payments on mortgage debt and other debt of $268.9 million. In 2005, we received net proceeds from
mortgage debt of $422.0 million and made net payments on mortgage debt and other debt of $277.8
million.

In 2006 and 2005, we paid quarterly distributions to common shareholders amounting lo $58.3 million
and $29.8 million, respectively, and SH Funding also paid quarterly distributions to minority interest
holders amounting to $2.6 million and $8.0 million , respectively.

In 2006 we received net proceeds on the bank credit facility of $89.0 million and in 2005 we made net
payments on the bank credit facility of $28.0 million.
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» In 2004, our significant financing activities included payments on mortgage debt, other debt, and the
bank credit facility of $1.4 billion, distributions of $234.0 million to SHC LLC in connection with the
IPO and financing costs of $33.6 million, which were offset by $251.0 million received from issuance

- of common stock and $1.3 billion received from new mortgage debt and bank credit facility proceeds.

st

Contractual Obliéations

The following table summarizes our future payment obhgatlons and eornmttments as of December 31, 2006
(in thousands): '

Payments Due by Period
' Lot : . . ' Lessthan .. 1to3 4t05 More than
Total lyear  years years 5 years
Long-term debt obligations .. .................. $1,557.865 $ 6,195 $596,431 $807,534 $147,705
Interest on long-term debt obligations(1) .. ....... 399,032 89,217 247,021 52,429 10,365
Operating lease obligations—ground leases and . - .
officespace ......... ... ... .. ... .. 1,779 o 443 475 . 317 6,544
Operating leases—Paris Marriott and Hamburg
Marmiott(2) .. ......... .. ... 1 451,848 19,547 - 58,641 - 39,094 - 334,566
Marriott termination agreement(3) .. ............ . 5,000 . -.—- 5,000 — —
Acquisition agreement—portion of mixed use o ‘
building(2) .. ... 82,400 — . 82400 — L —

Total ... . <. $2,503,924 $115402 $989,968 $899,374 $499,180

-

(1) Interest on variable rate debt obligations is calculated based on the variable rates at December 31, 2006.

(2) See “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data—Note 3 Property and Equipment.”

(3) See “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data—Note 20 Termination of Management
Agreement.”

Reserve Funds for Capital Expenditures

We maintain each of our hotels in excellent repair and condition and in conformity with applicable laws and
regulations and in accordance with the agreed upon requirements in our management agreements with our
preferred operators. .

We are obligated to maintain reserve funds for capital expenditureé at our hotels (including the periodic
replacement or refurbishment of furniture, fixtures and equipment) as determined pursuant to the management
agreements with our preferred operators. As of December 31, 2006, $24.2 million was in restricted cash reserves
for future capital expenditures. Our agreements with hotel operators require us to reserve funds at amounts
ranging between 3.0% and 5.0% of the individual hotel’s annual revenues and require the funds to be set aside in
restricted cash. Expenditures are capitalized as incurred and depreciation begins when the related asset is placed
in service. Any unexpended amounts will remain our property upon termination of thé management and
operating contracts. : - o v -

Derivative Financial Instruments

We use derivative financial instruments to manage, or hedge interest rate risks related to our borrowings,
from lines of credit to medium- and long-term financings. Instruments that meet the hedging criteria are formally
designated as hedges at the inception of the derivative contract. We do not use derivatives for trading or
speculative purposes and only enter into contracts with major financial institutions based on their credit rating
and other factors. We use outside consulitants to determine the fair values of our derivative instruments. Such
methods incorporate standard market conventions and techniques such as discounted cash flow analysis and
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option pricing models to determine fair value. All methods of estimating fair value result in general
approximation of value, and such value may or may not actually be realized.

See “Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk” for additional disclosures
related to derivatives and interest rate risk.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

On January 9, 2006, our subsidiaries closed the acquisition of a 45% joint venture ownership interest in
SHC KSL Partners, LP (Hotel Venture), the existing owner of the Hotel del Coronado in San Diego, California,
and in HdC North Beach Development, LLLP (North Beach Venture), the owner of an adjacent land parcel under
development, for our pro rata share of an agreed upon market value of $745.0 million. The Hotel ‘Venture and the
North Beach Venture are collectively referred to as the Partnerships. We own the Hotel Venture and North Beach
Venture in partnership with KKR and KSL Resorts. We account for our investments in the Partnerships under the
equity method of accounting. The Hotel Venture has obtained $610.0 million of commercial mortgage-backed
securities and mezzanine debt financing and a $20.0 million revolving credit facility, concurrent with our
acquisition, which are secured by, among other things, a mortgage on the Hotet del Coronado. At December 31,
2006, there was $6.0 million outstanding on the revolving credit facility. There are letters of credit outstanding of
$2.3 million which are secured by the revolving credit facility. At December 31, 2006, our investment in the
Partnerships amounted to $67.9 million. Our equity in losses of the Partnerships is $2.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006.

Further, on January 9, 2006, the North Beach Venture entered into a $59.0 million construction loan with
GMAC Commercial Mortgage Corporation (GMAC) to be used in connection with the construction of a 78-room
beachfront, luxury condominium-hotel development on the North Beach Venture land parcel. The construction
loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 2.50% per annum. At December 31, 2006, there was $24.6 million outstanding
on the construction loan. As of January 9, 2006, the limited partners in the Hotel Venture issued a completion
guarantee (pro rata based on their limited partnership interests) to GMAC. Under this agreement, the Hotel
Venture limited partners have guaranteed the timely performance of the construction-related obligations
contained in the construction loan documents.

We earn fees under an asset management agreemé’m with the Parmershipé. We receive fees amounting to
1% of the Ventures’ revenues and 2% of the Ventures’ development costs. In addition, we earn financing fees of
0.325% of any debt principal placed on behalf of the Hotel Venture as well as certain incentive fees as provided
by the asset management agreements. We recognize income of 55% of these fees, represennng the percentage of
the Partnerships not owned by us.

We own a 31% interest in and act as asset managers for a joint venture with two unaffiliated parties that is
developing the Four Seasons Residence Club Punta Mita, a luxury vacation home product that will be sold in
fractional ownership interests on the property adjacent to our Four Seasons Punta Mita Resort hotel in Mexico.
We account for this investment under the equity method of accounting. At December 31, 2006, our investment in
the joint venture amounted to $3.1 million. Our equity in earnings of the joint venture is $0.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006,

Related Party Transactions

We have in the past engaged in and currently engage in transactions with related parties. See “liem 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data—Note 15 Related Party Transactions” for a discussion of our
transactions with related parties.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based vpon our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of these
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financial statements requires us to'make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.

We evaluate our estimates on an ongoing basis. We base our €stimates on historical experience, information
that is currently available to us and on various other assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. We
believe the following critical accounting policies affect the most significant judgments and estimates used in the
preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. We periodically review each property for possible impairment.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an
asset to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are
considered to be impaired, the impairment recognized is measured by the amount by which the
carrying amount of the assets exceeds the estimated fair value of the assets. In this analysis of fair
value, we use discounted cash flow analysis to estimate the fair value of our properties taking into
account each property’s expected cash flow from operations, holding period and proceeds from
disposing of the property. The factors addressed in determining estimated proceeds from disposition
include anticipated operating cash flow in the year of disposition, terminal capitalization rate and
selling price per room. Judgment is required in determining the discount rate applied to estimated cash
flows, growth rate of the properties, the need for capita) expenditures, as well as specific market and
economic conditions. Additionaily, the classification of these assets as held for sale requires the
recording of these assets at their net realizable value which can affect the amount of impairment
recorded. We recognized impairment losses on property and equipment of $8.6 million in 2004, There
was no impairment on property and equipment in 2006 or 2005.

Acquisition Related Assets and Liabilities. Accounting for the acquisition of a hote! property as a
purchase transaction requires an allocation of the purchase price to the assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed in the transaction at their respective estimated fair values. The most difficult
estimations of individual fair values are those invoiving long-lived assets, such as property and
equipment and intangible assets. We use all available information to make these fair value
determinations and, for hotel acquisitions, engage an independent valuation specialist to assist in the
fair value determination of the acquired long-lived assets. Due to inherent subjectivity in determining
the estimated fair value of long-lived assets, we believe that the recording of acqulred assets and
liabilities is a critical accountmg policy.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense. Depreciation expense is based on the estimated useful life of
our assets. The life of the assets is based on a number of assumptions including cost and timing of
capital expenditures to maintain and refurbish the asset, as well as specific market and economic
conditions. While management believes its estimates are reasonable, a change in the estimated lives
could affect depreciation expense and net income or the gain or loss on the sale of any of the assets.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. Derivative instruments and hedging activities require
management to make judgments on the nature of its derivatives and their effectiveness as hedges.
These judgments determine if the changes in fair value of the derivative instruments are reported in the
consolidated statements of operations as a component of net income or as a component of
comprehensive income and as a component of equity on the consolidated balance sheets. While
management believes its judgments are reasonable, a change in a derivative’s effectiveness as a hedge
could affect expenses, net income and equity.

New Orleans Estimated Property Damage. Subsequent to the hurricane in New Orleans, we estimated
the net book value of the property damage sustained by the property. In conjunction with our advisors,
consultants and insurance adjustors, we initially determined approximately $29.7 million of the book
value of the property was damaged. Subsequent to this determination we revised our estimate and have
written off an additional $3.0 million of the building’s net book value during the first quarter of 2006,

68




While we have substantially completed our evaluation of the impact of the hurricane on the hotel, our
estimate is subject to change as more information becomes available and could have an effect on our
financial statements in the future.

« Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. We classify assets as held for sale in accordance with the criteria stated
in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” Assets identified as held for sale are reclassified on the balance sheet
and the related results of operations are reclassified as discontinued operations on the income
statement. While these classifications do not have an affect on total assets, net equity or net income,
they affect the classifications within each statement. Additionally, a determination to classify an asset
as held for sale affects depreciation expense as long-lived assets are not depreciated while classified as
held for sale. There were no assets classified as held for sale at December 31, 2006 or 2005.

Seasonality

The lodging business is seasonal in nature, and we experience some seasonality in our business. Revenues
for hotéls in tourist areas, those with group business, and in areas driven by greater climate changes are generally
seasonal. Quarterly revenues also may be adversely affected by events beyond our control, such as extreme
weather conditions, terror attacks or alerts, airline strikes, economic factors and other considerations affecting
travel.

The Marriott domestic hotels report their results of operations using a fiscal year consisting of thirteen four-
week periods. As a result, for our domestic Marriott branded properties, for all years presented, the first three
quarters consist of 12 weeks each and the fourth quarter consists of 16 weeks.

To the extent that cash flows from operations are insufficient during any quarter, due to temporary or
seasonal fluctuations in revenues, we may have to enter into short-term borrowings to pay operating expenses
and make distributions to our stockholders. ' '

New Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (SFAS 157). SFAS 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and expimds disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for us on
January 1, 2008. We are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this statement.

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (FIN 48). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes recognized in a company’s financial statements and prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement
attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken
in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting
in interim periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 will be effective for us beginning in the first quarter of 2007.
The cumulative effect, if any, of applying FIN 48 is to be reported as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings in the year of adoption. We have evaluated the impact of the adoption of FIN 48 and do not
expect it to have a material impact on our financial statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.
Interest Rate Risk

Our future income, cash flows and fair values relevant to financial instruments are dependent upon
prevailing market interest rates. Market risk refers to the risk of loss from adverse changes in market prices and
interest rates. The majority of our outstanding debt, after considering the effect of interest rate swaps, has a fixed
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interest rate. We use some derivative financial instruments to manage, or hedge, interest rate risks related to our
borrowings, from lines of credit to medium- and long-term financings. We generally require that hedging
derivative instruments be effective in reducing the interest rate risk exposure that they are designed to hedge. We
do not use derivatives for trading or speculative purposes and cenly enter into contracts W1th major financial
institutions based on their credit rating and other factors.

See “Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data—Note 10 Derivatives™ for information on our
interest rate cap and swap agreements outstanding as of December 31, 2006.

As of December 31, 2006, our total outstanding mortgages and other debt payable and bank credit facility
was approximately $1.6 billion, of which approximately $485.1 million, or 31.1%, was variable rate debt. Total
variable debt excludes $871.0 million fixed by the interest rate swaps described above. If market rates of interest
on our variable rate debt increase by 20%, or approximately 107 basis points, the increase in interest expense on
the variable rate debt would decrease future earnings and cash flows by approximately $5.2 million annually. If
market rates of interest on our variable rate debt decrease by 10%, or approximately 54 basis points, the decrease
in interest expense on our variable rate debt would increase future earnings and cash flows by approximately $2.6
million annually. .

Interest risk amounts were determined by considering the impact of hypothetical interest rates on our
financial instruments. These analyses do not consider the effect of the reduced Ievel of overall economic activity
that could exist in that environment. Furthermore, in the event of a change of that magnitude, we may take
actions to further mitigate our exposure to the change. However due to the uncertainty of the specific actions that
would be taken and their possible effects, these analyses assume no changes in our financial structure.

Currency Exchange Risk

As we have international operations, currency exchange risk arises as a normal part of our business, We
reduce this risk by transacting our international business in local currencies. In this manner, assets and liabilities
are matched in the local currency, which reduces the need for dollar conversion. Generally, we do not enter into
forward or option contracts to manage our currency exchange risk exposure applicable to net operating cash
flows.

To managé the currency exchange risk api).licable to equity pos.itiorgs in foreign hotels, we may use long-

term mortgage debt denominated in the local currency. In addition, we may enter into forward or option
contracts. We do not currently have any currency forward or option contracts.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL' STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Strategic Hotels & Resorts, Inc.
Chicago, Illinois

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Strategic Hotel & Resorts, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2006. Our audits also included the financial staternent schedule listed in the Index at
Item 15. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements and financial statement
schedule based on our audits. '

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Strategic Hotel & Resorts, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion,
such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2006, based on the criteria established in Infernal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 1, 2007 expressed an
unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s _intei‘nal control over
financial reporting and an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting. '

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Chicago, Illinois
March 1, 2007
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STRATEGIC HOTELS & RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In Thousands, Except Share Data)

December 31,
2006 2005
Assets
Property and eQUIPIMENRL . . ...ttt i it e e e e e e 32,644,120  $1,300,250
Less accumulated depreciation .. ... o i i e e e e {268.991) (217,695)
Net property and eqUiPmMent .. ... ...t nr e i et e 2,375,129 1,082,555
Goodwill L e e e 421,516 66,656
Intangible assets (net of accumulated amertization of $3,166 and $I 340, rcspccnvely) ....... U 45,793 2,129
Investment in JOINT VENIUFES . ... ...ttt ittt st ettt e e e et e 71,349 - 15,533
Cash and cash equivalents . ... ..o . it it it ittt ee i et e e et 86,462 65,017
Restricted cash and cash equivalents . ... ... i it i i it i it e 73,400 32,115
Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $809 and $427, respectively) ................ 70,282 31,286
Deferred financing costs (net of accumulated amontization of $2,194 and $969, respectively) .. ............... 10,701 7.544
Deferred (X A5S80S ...ttt e e e e e e e e e 43,555 35,594
Otherassets .........covvvuiuuns. e e e e e e e ey 57.522 ‘84,093
Insurance recoveries receivable .. ... i e — 25,588
3T P e $3.255709 $1.448,110
Liabilities and Shareholders® Equity
Liabilities:
Mortgages and other debt payable ... B 51,442,865 $ 633,380
Bank credit facility .. ... .. .. e 115,000 26,000
Accounts payable and accrued eXpeNsSes ... ... ... ... i 186,293 85,247
Distributions payable .................. ... .. ... e e e, 18,175 11,531
Deferred tax tiabilities .. ........ ek e et e e e e e e e e b e et be e - 24,390 5,239
Defcrredgamonsaleofholels.................................................7 ............ 107,474 99,970
Insumnce proceeds received in excess of insurance recoveries receivable ... ... i TR 20,794 —

‘ Tou.\l liabilities ................. e ey e e 1,914,991 861,367
Minority interests in SHR's operating partnership . ... ... ittt s U 12,463 76,030
Minority interests in consolidated affiliates ................. AT SRR 10,965 11,616
Shareholders™ equity:

8.50% Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (30.01 par value; 4,000,000 shares issued and .
vutstanding; liquidation preference $25.00 pershare) .. ........ vt i i e 97,553 97,553
8.25% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (80.01 par value; 4,600,000 shares issued and
outstanding; liquidation preference $25.00 pershare} .. ... e 110,775 —
8.25% Series C Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock ($0.01 pur value; 5,750,000 shares issued and )
outstanding; liquidation preference $25.00 pershare} . ... ..o e . 138,940 —
Common shares ($0.01 par value; 150,000,000 common shares authorized; 75,406,727 and 43,878,273
common shares issued and outstanding, respectively) ....... .. i e 753 439
Additional paid-in capital . ... e e et 1,224 400 688,250
Deferred COmMPenSalion . ..ottt it ettt ettt et e e e ie e — (1,916)
Accumulated defiCit ... .. . e e e e e e (265.435) (294,755)
Accumulated other comprehensive income . ... ... 10,304 9,526
Total shareholders’ equity . .. .. ... o o e 1,317,290 499,097
Total liabilities and shareholders” equity ...... . .. .. .. i i it it e $3,255,709 $1.448,110

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
are an integral part of these statements.
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STRATEGIC HOTELS & RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Revenues:

Rooms ............. T I
Food and beverage
Other hotel OPErating fEVENUE . . . ..o e ittt e a e e o ast s

Lease revenue

OBl TEVEIES &+ o v\ o v et ettt e e e ts s s nsraasmaatasasteeesaastitoisnsonenss

Operating Costs and Expenses:

2T 13 R R R R
Food and beverage
Other departmental expenses
Management fees
Other HOtEl EXPEISES . . . .ottt u ittt s v r e ae st a et b

[Lease EXPEISE .. ... .. ittt it e e LN

Depreciation and amortization
L L e 1 S PP EEERE

Total operating costs and EXPENSES .. ... v v v inr e orr e o it e

Operating income
TILEFESTEXPEIISE . . . .ottt trinns it s a et e e ot et e s e a
Interest income
Loss on early extinguishment of debt
Equity in (losses) eamnings of JOINE VENIUTES . . ... 0ieun i e s
Other income {expenses), net

Income (loss) before income taxes, minority interests and discontinued cperations
[NCOME EAX EXPEIISE . . . o oot ettt a i e g s e n i b
Minority interest (expense) income in SHR’s operating partnership
Minority interest (expense) income in consolidated affiliates

Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax and minority interests

NetInCome . ... ... it iia i ir et PP
Currency translation adjustments
Mark to market of QeriVatives .. ... et ey

Comprehensive Income

b Lol 1T ¢+ L A UG USRS I
Prefemred shareholder dividends

Net Income Available to Commeon Shareholders ... ... ... ... ... oot

Basic Income Per Share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations available to common shareholders per share
Income from discontinued operationS per Share ... ... ... it iiiin it

Net income available to common shareholders pershare .. ....... .. .ol

Weighted-average common shares outstanding

Diluted Income Per Share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations available to common shareholders per share . ..........
Income from discontinued operations per share

Net income available to common shareholders pershare . ... vl

Weighted-average common shares outstanding

For the years ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004
$381,019 $224.850 $220.231
244,022 144,860 120594
74075 43,045 39811
699.116 412,755 380,636
20257 16787 24233
719373 429,542 404,869
95,161 54,493 55123
170,141 100,689 91690
181,495 114,005 104,399
26774 13,865 14,852
47,659 25024 24,558
3,682 13178 6,446
75135 43,753 51577
25383 21,023 28845
635430 386,030 377490
83,943 43512 27,319
GLITD  (33.047)  (58,348)
4,263 2005 1231
(2.150) (65400 (21551
(1,066) 2,818 739
4,400 5,541 (190
38,279 14289  (50,740)
(3,320 {2401) (2,388
(703) (2937 1,305
(763) — 24
. 33,493 8951  (51.799)
86,636 21,309 65,132
120,129 30,260 13333
8.519 3,127 11,320
(1.787) 4,896 1,323
$120,861 .§ 38283 § 25976
120,129 30260 13,333
(24,543)  (6,753) —
$ 95.586 § 23,507 $ 13,333
$ 013 $ 006 5 (212
127, 060 2.67
$ 140 $ 066 $ 055
68,286 35376 24390
5 043 § 006 $ (212)
126 , 060 2.67
$ 139 $ 066 $ 055
68,569 35577 24,390

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

are an integral part of these statements.
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STRATEGIC HOTELS & RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In Thousands)
2006 2005 2004

Members’ Capital

Balance, beginning of year ... ... . e e L3 — 3 —  $875.767
Formation and structuring transactions . . . ... ...y r e it -— — {875,767)

Balance, end of year ... ... ... ... e 5 — — § —

Distributions to members .

Balance, beginning of year . ... e e $ — % — 343931
Formation and structuring transactions .. ....... ..ottt e — — 439,377

Balance, end of Year ... ... ... e 3 — % — 5 —

8.5% Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock

Balance, beginning of year .. .. ... L e e $ 97553 % — —
Offering of shares (net of offering costs of $2,447) .. ... .ot — 97,553 —

Balance, end of year ... ... ... e e e $ 97553 % 97553 § —

8.25% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock

Balance, begimning of year ... ... ... i $ — 8 — —
Offering of shares (net of offering costs 0f $4.225) .. ... .. i it e it 110,775 —_ —

Balance,endof year ..................... e e e $ 110775 % - $ —

8.25% Series C Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock

Balance, beginnming of YEar ... .. ..ottt e e $ — 5 - § —
Offering of shares (net of offering costs of $4,810) ... ... . ... .. ... .. ... 138,940 — —

Balance, end of year .. ... . e e e § 138940 § —  § —

Common shares

Balance, beginning of year . ... ... .. i e $ 439 % 00 % —
Initial public offering of common shares ...:. ... .. .. ... .. it — _ T 289
Public offerings of common shares ... .. ... i e e 241 128 —
Operating partnership units redeemed for commonshares ... ............iiiennreninnn. 73 11 11

Balance, end Of Year .. ... ..o e e e e 3 753 % 439 3 300

Additional paid-in capital .

Balance, beginning of year .. ... ... . L e e e $ 683250 $483691 $ —
Distributions from (1o} SHC LLC ... ... ... i e e aianaes — 446  (246,308)
Formation and structuring transactions . .. ...t vivnnnnns e — — 463,205
Issuance of common shares . .. ... e 489,736 228,994 283,071
eI g COSIS . . .t ittt e e e e e e {19,870) (11,726) (32,320)
Restricted stock units and stock options granted, net of forfeitures ........................ 231 2,244 6,056
Amontization of restricted stock units and stock options ............... R N 3,571 = —
Reclassification from deferred compensation ... ... .. .. ... . i i, (1.916) — —
Adjustment for minority interest ownershipin SHFunding .. ............ ... o iaa. 64,398 (15,399) 10,487

Balance, end of year .. ... e $1,224,400 § 688,250 ¥ 483,691

Deferred compensation

Balance, beginningof year ........ ... e § (916 § 1,731y $ —

Reclassification to additional paid-incapital . ... ... . . e 1,916 — —

Restricted stock units granted, net of forfeitures . ... ... ... i — (2,151) (5,903)

Amortization of restricted SOCK UNIS .. ... Lo e e — 1,966 4,172

Balance, end Of Year ... ... ... e e e et S — % (1916 $ (1,731

Accumulated deficit

Balance, beginning of year ... ... ... e e $ (294,755) $(285,320) %$(285,206)
Nt ICOIIE . ittt et et e e e e e e 120,129 30,260 13,333
Distributions to shareholders . . ... .. o i i i e e (90,809) (39,695}  (13,447)

Balance, end of year ... ... e 3 (265,435) $(294,755) $(285.320)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

Balance, beginning of Year .. .. ... ... e e e e i e 3 93526 5§ {(387) % (12,116)
Currency translation adjustments .. .. ... ..ottt it e i i s 8,519 3127 ‘11,320
Mark to market of derivatives and other adjustments . .....................iiiiiin.n.. (7,910) 4,896 1,323
Adjustment for minority interest ownershipin SHFunding .. ........................... . 169 1,860 (914}

Balance, end of year ... ... . . . e F $ 10304 § 9526 § (387)

Total Shareholders’ Equity ......... .. .. . e $1,317.290  § 499,097 $ 196,553

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
are an integral part of these statements.
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STRATEGIC HOTELS & RESORTS, INC: AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In Thousands)
For the years ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Operating Activities:
Netincome .............. e e e e e e e e i $ 120129 $ 30260 $ 13333
Adjusiments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
(including discontinued operations):

Minority interest expense (income) in SHR's operating partnership . ........................ 1,827 1,356 (4.807)
Minority interest expense (income) in consolidated affiliates ............. ..ol 763 — (24)
Deferred income tax (benefit) eXPENSe . ... ... .. ittt e e (5,141) (407) 2,746
Depreciation and amortization .. .........eearenrnmrattrniraiar et 71,670 52,606 61,463
Amortization of deferred financing Costs ... ... ..t e 1,954 2,960 4,447
Loss on early extinguishmentofdebl .. .. .. oo i 3,150 8,115 19,066
Impairment losses on goodwill and hotel property . ... ..o v — — 12,675
Equity in losses (eamnings) of joint ventures .. .. ... 1,066 (2,818) (739)
Deferred cOMPENSAON EXPEMSE . o\ttt v v e ieatae e anen et tat e 3,571 1,966 4,172
Gain 0N SAle OF BS5BES . . . .. ittt it e e e e e (88,871) (21,202) (75,982)
Recognition of deferred and other gains, net . ... ... (4,405) (3,594) (1,895)
Mark to market of derivatives included in other income (expenses), net .. ...........ooieiaes —_ —_ 2,691
Mark to market of derivatives included in interestexpense . ............voirioiniieiaia. — 134 384
Increase in ACCOMMES TECEIVADLE . . ..o\ it it arne s e et e it nnrar e (21,248) (13,597) (2,583}
Insurance proceeds FECEIVED . ... ... .ottt 14,735 — —_
INCrease N OTHET AS5BIS . .o v vttt ittt ieie it a e sttt tnareaae sty (6,1835) (3,425) (2,407)
Increase (decrease) in accoutits payable and accrued expenses . ....... ... il 42,191 18,062 (40.379)

Net cash provided by (used in} operating activities ........... ... ..o 141,206 76,456 (1,839
Investing Activities: :
Proceeds from sales 0f 385818 . ... v oot it e et e o ia it ey 178,095 76,302 156,354
Distributions from JOIRT VENIUIES . .. v v ecventeiat et s i eees e anaraanee o eanarnosss — — 15,602
Acquisition of hotel property and equipment ..., ... . il i e (1.571,660) (158,217) (125,453)
Acquisition of land held for development . .......... e et a s (31,425) — -
Acquisition of interest in JOiDE VEDMUIES ... .. ... .. iuiuiit it (50,112) (112) (162)
Acquisition of interest in consolidated affiliates .......... .. o o — (285,389) —_
Restricted and unrestricted cash acquired . ... ... ..o e e 16,771 7,399 7,743
Cash received from JOINE VENIITE . ... ... ...t i e aaeres 1,509 - —
Issuance of NOtE FECEIVIBIE . . oo v ittt it it it ie ettt ie ettt i et raian et inaes — —_ (1,874)
Acquisition of notes receivable ... ... e — (17.852) -
ESCIOW QEPOSIS .+« v vttt et e e et et i i s a e r e e (200)  (22,250) —
Decrease (increase) in security deposits related to sale-leasebacks ............... e 1,921 1,447 {22,600)
Insurance proceeds received .. ... ... e 43479 10,000 —
Capital expendilllIeS .. ... ...\ iui it et e e (92,732) (39.427) (23,385)
(Increase) decrease in restricted cash and cash equivalénts ............... e P (32,974) (1,860) 58,704
Other investing activities .. ... ... .ttt e s (4,135) — —

Net cash (used in} provided by investing activities ............oviivinieianonnns (1,541,463)  (429,959) 64,929
Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock. net of offeringcosts .............. ..ol 470,180 217,396 251,040
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock, net of offeringcosts . .......oovviiiiiions 249,715 97,553 —
Proceeds from bahk credit acility .. ..ooi ot in it e e 510,500 135,500 90,500
Payments on bank credit facility ............ o 421,500)  (163,500) (36.500)
Proceeds from mortgages and otherdebt .. ... ... i 976,377 422,000 1,208,500
Payments on mortgages andotherdebt . ... {268,932y (277,760) (1.363,097)
T R R R (8.068) (6,983) {33.622)
Distributions to common shareholders ... ..o ii it et i et (58,318) (29,798) (6,652)
Distributions to preferred shareholders . . ........... i (24,543) 6,753) —
Distributions to holders of minority interests in SHR's operating partnership . ................. (2,610) (8.047) (2,069)
Distributions to holders of minority interests in consolidated affiliates ....................... (3,327 — (274)
Distributions to SHC LLC ... ottt iait i i a s — an (233,956)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ................. . oot 1,.419474 379,57 (126,130)
Effect of translation adjustmentoncash ... ... 0o s 2,228 (1,122) 1.674
Net change in cash and cash equivalents ........... ... ..o i 21,445 24,946 (67,366)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginningof year ....... ... ... ... .o 65,017 40,071 107,437
Cash and cash equivalents,end of year. .. ... i i i e $ 86462 $ 65017 % 40,071

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
are an integral part of these statements.
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STRATEGIC HOTELS & RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS-—(CONTINUED)
{In Thousands)

LT . For the years ended
_ o 3. December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Supplemental Schedule of Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities:

Acquisition of interest in joint venture , .. ... . ... . e '
—Building .- ... EE - NP $F — 3 — 545482
— FiRafice OBHERON « v ...t vt ee ettt ettt e e e e § — $5 —  $(50672)
— Investment in JOINT VERIIME .. ... ... ... . uouuure et aeieiam e nit e eanannns 5 — § — % 2230
=~ Net working capital . ... ... ..t e e $8 — $ — § 3122
Acquisition of interests in consolidated affiliates |
— InveStiNG aCtVIHES . . .. ...t e e £ —  $(1e616) 3 —
— Financing activities . .. ... ... e e § — §l6167§% —
Sale of hotel§ :
— ASSEIS ........ e e e e e e e e e $ — 5 — 5138014
| _Liabilides ... .. O PRI $ — § — s41m
—Deferred Bain . .. ... e e e $ — $ — 8109260
M:;rk to market of d(;,rivative instmuments (seenotes 2and 10) .......... ...t 5(7,724) § 5381 § 1232
Redemption of units of non-managing member limited liability company interests in SH Funding

(seencte 9) ..... B R R LR E PR T PR TRRTRPRRRPRS 568124 § — § —
Distributions payable to common shareholders (see note L) T $17404 3 9691 3§ 6641
Distributions payable to holders of minority interests in SHR's operating partnership '

(seenotesBand®) ........ NP $§ 226 % 1840 § 2,068
Distributions payable to holders of minority interests in consolidated affiliates (seenote 8) ............ 5§ 545 § — § —
qugage and other debt assumed upon acquisitions of properties (seenote7) .............. ... ... $94441 8§ — §
Hyant Regency New Orleans property damage (seenote 19) ......vvviiniioniniirnennnnannn.n. m 52068 § —
Distribution of net liabilities (assets)to SHCLLC (seenote 9y . ... ... i, $ — § 483 812852
Cash Paid For: :

T £ N M) W) $(63,194)

.- Income taxes: netofrefunds. .. .................. N $ (3.888) 3 (6,271) $(34,506)

-3 ' k -

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
are an integral part of these statements.
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STRATEGIC HOTELS & RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL : .

Strategic Hotels & Resorts, Inc. and subsidiaries (SHR or the Company), formerly known as Strategic Hotel
Capital, Inc., is a real estate investment trust (REIT) that was formed in January 2004. SHR conducts its business
activities through its operating subsidiary, Strategic Hotel Funding, L.L..C. (SH Funding).

SHR acquires and asset manages luxury and upper upscale full-service hotels that are subject to long-term
management contracts. SHR’s portfolio includes 20 full-service hotel interests located in urban and resort
markets in the United States; Paris, France; Mexico City and Punta Mita, Nayarit, Mexico; Hamburg, Germany;
London, England; and Prague, Czech Republic. SHR opcrates in one reportable business segment, hotel
ownership. . !

As of December 31, 2006, SH Funding owned or leased the following 20 hotels:

1. Fairmont Chicago 11. Marriott Champs Elysees Paris

2. Fairmont Scottsdale Princess 12. Marriott Hamburg

3. Four Seasons Mexico City 13. Marriott Lincolnshire

4. Four Seasons Punta Mita Resort 14. Marriott London Grosvenor Square

5. Four Seasons Washington D.C. 15. Ritz-Carlton Half Moon Bay

6. Hyatt Regency La Jolla 16. Ritz-Carlton Laguna Niguel

7. Hyatt Regency New Orleans 17. Westin St. Francis :

8. Hyatt Regency Phoenix 18. InterContinental Chicago Hotel {consolidated affiliate)
9, InterContinental Prague 19. InterContinental Miami Hotel (consolidated affiliate)} |
10

. Loews Santa Monica Beach Hotel  20. Hotel del Coronado (unconsolidated joint venture)

On June 29, 2004, SHR completed its initial public offering (the IPO) of common stock by issuing
17,600,000 shares at a price of $14.00 per share. Prior to the IPO, 21 hotel interests were owned by Strategic
Hotel Capital, L.L.C. (SHC LLC). Concurrent with the [PO, SHC LLC was restructured into two compames a
new SHC LLC, a privately-held entity, with interests, at that time, in seven hotels, and SHR, a public entity with
interests in SH Funding, the operating partnership in an UPREIT structure that held interests, at that time, in the
remaining 14 hotels. Contemporaneous with the IPO, SH Funding became owned by SHR, SHC LLC and
Strategic Hotel Capital Limited Partnership (SHC LP). For accounting purposes, this transaction is presented as a
reverse spin-off whereby SHR is treated as the continuing entity and the assets retained by the new SHC LLC,
and not contributed to SH Funding, are accounted for as if they were distributed at their historical carrying value
through a spin-off to the new SHC LLC. These transactions are collectively termed the “Formation and
Structuring Transactions.” See additional information in note 9.

Subsequent to the IPO, SHR exercises control over SH Funding as its managing member and majority
membership interest holder and consolidates SH Funding. SHC LLLC prior to the IPO is referred to as SHR’s

predecessor.

As of June 29, 2004, SHC LLC owned the following seven hotels:

1. Ritz-Carlton Laguna Niguel 5. Westin Santa Clara )
2. Hyatt Regency San Francisco 6. The Essex House, a Westin Hotel
3. Park Hyatt San Francisco 7. Marriott Eastside New York

4. Loews Beverly Hills
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STRATEGIC HOTELS & RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation:

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the financial position and the results of
operations of SHR and its substdiaries.

If SHR determines that it is the holder of a variable interest in a variable interest entity (VIE) within the
meaning of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) revision to Interpretation No. 46, “Consclidation
of Variable Interest Entities” and that its variable interest will absorb a majority of the entity’s expected losses,
receive a majority of the entity’s expected residual returns, or both, then SHR will consolidate the entity. For
entities that are not considered VIEs, the Company consclidales those entities it controls. It accounts for those
entities over which it has a significant influence but does not control on the equity method. At December 31,
2006, SH Funding owned the following interests in joint ventures, which are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting: a 45% interest in the joint venture that owns the Hotel del Coronado and a 31% intezest in
the joint venture that owns the Resort Club Punta Mita (see note 5). At December 31, 2006, SH Funding also
owned 85% controlling interests in two affiliates that own the InterContinental Chicago and Miami hotels, which
are consolidated in the accompanying financial statements.

Material intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation, Certain amounts
included in the consolidated financial statements for prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the
current financial statement presentation.

Use of Estimates;

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. '

Property, Equipment and Depreciation:

Property and equipment consists of land, leasehold interest, buildings, building improvements, site
improvements and furniture, fixtures and equipment.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the following useful lives:

Leasehold interest Life of lease (51 years)
Buildings 37-39 years

Building improvements 5 years

Site improvements 15 years

Furniture, fixtures & equipment  3-5 years

Hotel improvements in progress include costs incurred for capital projects for hotels that are in the process
of being developed, renovated, rehabilitated or expanded. Completed renovations and improvements are
capitalized and depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Interest expense and certain other costs as well as
project related salary and benefit costs incurred during a renovation or development period are capitalized and
depreciated over the lives of the related assets. Costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed.

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used
is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future net undiscounted cash flows expected to
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment recognized is measured by
the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the estimated fair value of the assets calculated
using a discounted cash flows approach. In 2004, SHR recognized impairment losses on property and equipment
of $8,594,000 related to deteriorating performance and local market conditions at a property. This amount is
included in income from discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2004. There was no
impairment on property and equipment in 2006 or 2005.

Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or estimated fair value less costs to
sell. The Company classifies the operations of hotels sold or to be sold as discontinued operations (note 4).

Goodwill:

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment using a variety of methods at least annually and whenever
circumstances or events indicate potential impairment, and at least annually. In 2004, SHR fecognized
impairment losses on goodwill of $4,081,000. This amount is included in income from discontinued operations

for the year ended December 31, 2004. Based on the Company's review, there was no impairment of goodwill in
2006 or 2005.

Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets consist of a golf course use agreement, advanced bookings, and a below market ground
lease. Amortization of intangible assets is computed on a straight-line basis over the following periods:

Below market ground lease Life of lease (51 years)
Golf course use agreement * 14 years
Advanced bookings 3-8 years

Deferred Financing Costs: ' |

Deferred financing costs consist of loan fees and other costs incurred in connection w:th obtaining various
loans. The deferred financing costs have been capitalized and are being amortized to interest expense over the
life of the underlying loan assuming all extension options exercised using the straight-line method, which
approximates the effective interest method. Upon early extinguishment of the various loans, any related
unamortized deferred financing costs are written off and included in the loss on early extmgulshment of debt.

Deferred Fees on Management Contracts:

In connection with the negotlatlon of new management contracts on four hotels, certain management
companies paid $16,500, 000 to the Company. The amounts received had been recorded as deferred fees on
management contracts and were amortized against management fees over the life of the management contracts
using the straight-line method. In connection with the Formation and Structuring Transactions described above,
three of these hotels, and their respective deferred fees on management contracts, were distributed to the new
SHC LL.C. The remaining hotel with deferred fees on its management contract was sold on October 7, 2005 (see
note 4). ‘ ,

Inventories:

Inventories located at the hotel properties consist primarily of food and beverage stock. These items are
stated at the lower of cost, as determined by an average cost method, or market and are included in other assets
on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
The Company considers all cash on hand, demand deposits with financial institutions and short-term highly

liquid investments with purchased or original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents:

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, restricted cash and cash equivalents include $24,239, 000 and
$20,919,000, respectively, that will be used for property and equipment replacement i in accordance with hotel

'
-
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management or lease agreements. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, restricted cash and cash equivalents also
include reserves of $49,161,000 and $11,196,000, respectively, required by loan and other agreements.

Deferred Transaction Costs:

The Company incurs costs directly related to potential hotel acquisftions, joint ventures or other investment
opportunities. These costs are included in other assets in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet pending
determination that a transaction will be consummated or abandoned. If a transaction is consummated, these costs
are capitalized as a cost of the hotel acquisition costs or investments in joint ventures. If a potential hotel
acquisition, joint venture or other investment opportunity is abandoned, these deferred costs are charged to
expense when the transaction opportunity is abandoned. The Company expenses any internal costs related to the
pursuit of acquisitions. At December 31, 2006, other assets include $6,187,000 of deferred costs related to a
potential transaction.

Foreign Currency:

Foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities, where the functional currency ts the local currency, are
translated into U.S. doliars at the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates during the respective periods. Gains and losses from foreign currency
translation, where the functional cuirency is the local currency, are recorded as a separate component of
accumulated other comprehensive income, within shareholders’ equity. Foreign currency gains or losses on the
hedges of long-term investments are recorded in the currency translation adjustment component of accumulated
other comprchensive income, within shareholders’ equity or other income (expenses) net, as appropriate. Gains
and losses on hedges of short-term investments or working capital are recorded currently in the consolidated
statements of operations.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenues include rooms, food and beverage and other hotel operating revenue such as internet access,
telephone, parking, golf course, spa and space rentals. These revenues are recorded net of taxes collected from
customers and remitted to government authorities and are récognized as the related services are delivered. Lease
revenues are based on a percentage of hotel revenues or a percentage of adjusted operating profit, as defined in
the lease agreements. Lease revenues are recognized on an accrual basis pursuant to the terms of each lease.

Minority Interests:

1

SHR’s minority interests pertain to its operating partnership (SH Funding) and its other consolidated
affiliates, or for periods prior to the IPQ, SHR's predecessor, SHC LLC. The other consolidated affiliates include
{a) two joint ventures that own the InterContinental Chicago and Miami hotels and (b) SHC Prague
InterContinental B.V. (Prague B.V.) and its Czech subsidiaries that own and operate the InterContinental Prague
hotel. (see note 8) '

Income Taxes:

The Company has elected to be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the Code). As a REIT, SHR generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax if
it distributes 100% of its annual taxable income fo its sharehalders. As a REIT, SHR is subject to a number of
organizational and operational requirements. If it fails to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, it will be subject
to U.S. federal income tax (including any applicable alternative minimum tax) on its taxable income at regular
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corporate tax rates. Even if it qualifies for taxation as a REIT, it may be subject to foreign, state and local income
taxes and to U.S. federal income tax and excise tax on its undistributed income. In addition, taxable income from
SHR'’s taxable REIT subsidiaries is subject to federal, foreign, state and local income taxes. Also, the foreign
countries where SHR has operations do not recognize REITs under their respective tax laws, Accordingly, SHR
will be subject to tax in those jurisdictions.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are established for temporary differences between the financial reporting
basis and the tax basis of assets and liabilities at the enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when the temporary
differences reverse. A valuation allowance for deferred tax assets is provided if the Company believes all or
some portion of the deferred tax asset may not be realized. Any increase or decrease in the valuation allowance
that results from a change in circumstances that causes a change in the estimated realizability of the related
deferred tax asset is included in income. ' ‘

Per Share Data:

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 128, “Eamings Per Share,”
basic income per share is computed based on the weighted average common shares outstanding during each
period. Diluted income per share is computed based on the weighted average common shares, restricted stock
units and stock options (note 11) and conversion of minority interests deemed outstanding during the period
excluding the impact if anti-dilutive. The Company considered the shares and units issued to the holders of the
old SHC LLC units to be outstanding during the periods prior to the IPO for purposes of the weighted average
share calculation. Conversion of minority interests that could potentially dilute basic income per share in the
future that were not included in the computation of diluted income per share because they would have been anti-
dilutive are 976,000, 8,366,000 and 9,402,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004,
respectively. Restricted stock units and stock options that could potentially dilute basic income per share in the
future that were not included in the computation of diluted income per share because they would have been anti-
dilutive are 670,000 and 145,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2004, respectively. The following
table sets forth the components of the calculation of income (loss) from continuing operations available to
common shareholders for the yéars ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 (in thousands): ' )

. , 2006 2005 2004
Income (loss) from continuing operations, ... . .............. oo $33493  $8951  $(51,799)
Preferred shareholder dividends . . ......... ... .. oot (24,543)  (6,753) —
Income (loss) from continuing operations available to common -
shareholders . ...... ... it i i e $ 8950 $2,198 $(51,799)

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income:

SHR'’s accumulated other comprehensive income results from the mark to market of certain derivative
financial instruments and other adjustments and unrealized gains or losses on foreign currency translation
adjustments (CTA). .
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" The following table provides the detailed components of accumulated other comprehenswe iricome (in
thousands)

T ‘ ‘ Accumulated
B - . Derivative Currency . Other
and Other Translation Comprehensive
Adjustments  Adjustments (L.oss) Income
Balance at Janvary 1,2005 ...................... .8 (910 $ 523 $ (387,
. Mark to market of derivative instruments and other _ ‘ '
adjustments ................ i 4,466 — 4,466
‘Reclassification to carnings: . .
Intérest expense . . ... ... e e 108 — 108
Loss on early extinguishment of debt .. ... ... 322 — 3
CTAactivity ........ ... .. — 3,127 3,127
Adjustment for minority interest ownership in SH _
Funding ............. .. .. il 1,002 888 1,890
Balance at December 31,2005 .................... ' 4,988 4,538 . 9526
Mark to market of derivative instruments and other ; _ : . :
adjustments ........... .. ... ..., ©(8,045) — (8,045)
Reclassification to equity in (losses) earnings of . o e
jointventures . .... .. ..ot 135 L = 135
CTA activity ....... e et Y — 8,519 8.519 .,
+ Adjustment for minority interest ownership in SH . .
. Funding .............. e e . 62 107 . . 169

Balance at December 31 2006 .-..... i ¢ $(2.860) " $13,164  $10,304

Derivative Instruments and Hedgmg Actlvmes

The Company recognizes all derivatives as enher assets or hablhnes on 1he balance sheet and measures
those instruments at fair value. If certain condltlons are met, a derivative may be spec:ﬁcally desxgnated as{a)a,
hedge of the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or an unrecognized firm ’
commitment, (b) a hedge of the exposure to variable cash flows of a forecasted transaction, or (c) a hedge of the
foreign currency exposure of a net investment in a foreign-currency-denominated forecasted transaction. The
accounting for chariges in the fair value of a derivative depends on the intended use of the derivative and.
resulting designation.

New Accounting Standards: -

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements" (SFAS 157). SFAS 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for the
Company on January 1, 2008. The 'Company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this statement.

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretatlon No. 48. “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (FIN 48). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes recognized in a company’s financial statements and prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement
attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken
in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting
in interim periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 will be effective for the Company beginning in the first
quarter of 2007. The cumulative effect, if any, of applying FIN 48 is to be reported as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings in the year of adoption. The Company has evaluated the impact of the
adoption of FIN 48 and does not expect it to have a material impact on its financial statements.
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_ In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159 “The Fair Value
Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” (SFAS 159). SFAS 159 permits companies to choose to
measure many financial assets and liabilities at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair
value option has been elected are reported in earnings at each reporting date. SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after-November 15, 2007. The provisions of this statement are required to be applied
prospectively. The Company is currently assessing the impact of SFAS 159 on its consolidated financial
statements. -

3. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT ' '

The following summarizes SHR’s investment in property and equlpment as of December 31, 2006 and ’
2005, excluding unconsolidated joint ventures (in thousands): '

‘ 2006 2005
Land ... oo e e sl $ 394914 S 171,486
Land held for development ................ e I . 61787 . —
Leasehold interest ...........o.vvvenenenn.. FUPT e 11,633~ 11,633
BUildings . .......uuiuuunnne ot e 1,715,938 866,037
Building improvements . ................ e e 22,392 23,965
Site improvements . ... ......... ..., e e - 56,112 14,197
Furniture, fixtures and equipment ........ ..o vrieee e 300,865 192,889 .
IMPIOVEMENES i PIOZIESS . - -« v e oe ettt neeeaenanaaneiie s eenns 80,479 20,043
Total property and equipment .. ...........oooi... Ee e 12,644,120 1,300,250
Less accumulated depreciation ................. e e v, .- (268,991) (217,695)
Net property and equipment . ....................... .. Lo oons 82,375,129 $1,082,555 ¢
Consolidated hotel properties (unaundited) ........ e e .. . 19 15
Consolidated hotel rooms (unaudited) ............... e 9,321 . 1,213

The table below demonstrates the geographic distribution of the Company’s portfolio based on its -
undepreciated carrymg amount as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, excluding unconsohdated joint ventures:

2006 2005
Southern Califormia .. ...oouvetiiiie i I e 19.1% 26.5%
Northern California ...:..... e e S 18.4 9.4
Phoenix/Scottsdale, AZ . . . . . il 143060
Chicago, IL ... ... . ... ... .cciiiiiiannn.. e AP 13.5 297
Washington, D.C. .. . e e o . 55+ —
New Orleans, LA . ..o i i it et ce et it st a ey _ 5.1 9.1
MBI, FL .ot e .. 40 88
United States ................. [ OP L., T99 895
Mexico ... ...t e, e 6.7 9.6
London, Bngland .. ... ... oo iiveirir it e L 66  —
Prague, Czech Republic ....... ... ... i i 6.3 —
Paris, France . ..... oottt i e e e e 0.5 .9
3] 7 1 [ OO 100.0% 100.0%

Hotel Acquisitions

On September 1, 2006, the Company purchased the Fairmont Scottsdale Princess with 651 rooms and an
adjacent 10-acre development parcel for $350,725,000, including acquisition costs. The acquisition was funded
using mortgage debt and borrowings on the bank credit facility (see note 7).

83




STRATEGIC HOTELS & RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

" On August 31, 2006, the Company purchased the Marriott London Grosvenor Square hotel with 236 rooms
for $207,594,000, including acquisition costs. The acqutsmon was ﬁnanced usmg mortgage debt and borrowmgs
on the bank credit facility (see note 7) : ' .

On August 3, 2006, the Company purchased its joint vénture partner’s 65% interest in the entity that owns
the InterContinental Hotel with 372 rooms in Prague, Czech Republic, for $75,791,000, including’ acquisition
costs, and assumed debt of $85,891,000. The purchase brings the Company's interest in the entity that owns the
property to 100%. As this purchase was a step acquisition, the carrying value of property and equipment and
goodwill was determined by recording 35% of the assets and liabilities at historical cost and 65% at fair value.
The acquisition was financed using bonowmgs on the bank credit fac111ty (see note 7.

On July 7, 2006, the’ Company purchased the Ritz-Carlton Laguna Niguel with 393 rooms from SHC LLC
for $327,690,000, including acquisition costs, and assumed debt of $8,550,000. The acquisition was financed
using cash on hand which included proceeds from offerings of preferred and common stock (see note 9) and
mortgage debt proceeds.

On June 1, 2006, the Company purchased the Westin St. Francis located in San Francisco, California with
1,195 rooms for $439,270,000, including acquisition costs. The acquisition was funded using avallable cashasa
result of common and preferred stock offerings (see note 9). N

On March 1, 2006, the Company purchased the Four Seasons Washington D.C. with 211 rooms for
$169,976,000, including acquisition costs. The acquisition was funded using available cash as a result of - :
common and preferred stock offerings (see note 9).

On September 1, 2005, the Company purchased the Fairmont Chicago with 692 rooms'for approxifately
$158,643,000, including acquisition costs, The acquisition was funded using’available cash as a result of a
common stock offering (see.note 9). S . ) : . ,

On April 1; 2005, the Company purchased controlling interests in the InterContinental hotels in Chicago and
Miami with a total of 1,448 rooms for an agreed aggregate value of approximately $301,001.000, resulting in a
total investment by SHR of $285,389,000, including acquisition costs. The hotels are each held in partnerships in
which SHR owns a controlling 85% interest with InterContinental Hotels Group (IHG) holding the remaining
15%. SHR funded the acquisition using mortgage debt (see note 7), proceeds from a preferred stot:kloffering (see
note 9), and the bank credit facility. ' .

On August 24, 2004, the Company purchased the Ritz-Carlton Half Moon Bay located south of San
Francisco, California with 261 rooms for approximately $123,168,000, including acquisition costs. The
acquisition was financed using mortgage debt, the bank credit facility and available cash. See note 7 for
additional information regarding the amended loan agreement resultmg from the acquisition of the Ritz-Carlton
Half Moon Bay.
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The following is a summary of the allocations of the purchase price, assumption of debt and minority
interests and elimination of investment in joint venture for acquisitions completed in the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 (in thousands):

I Ritz-
Marriott Ritz- . Four Inter- Carlton
Fairmont London Inter- Carlton Westin Seasons Continental  Half

Scottsdale Grosvenor Continental Laguna St.  Washington Fairmont Chicago Moon
Princess  Square Prague Niguel Francis D.C. Chicago and Miami  Bay

Land............ N - $22900 § — $32516 $ 76700 § 61,400 §$ 44900 ' § 17,347 § 59.894 § 20,100

Building ............... ..., 233,300 85,400 68435 163,500 287,600 74500 128952 195,795 75,700
Site improvements . .......... 26,300 68 352 12,800 200 1,100 201 415 3.700
Fumniture, fixtures and ) ; ’

equipment ......... ote.. 25,600 6,134 8.289 21,600 29,600 9,900 10,128 41,114 8,000
Improvements in progress . .. .. — . — - 81 — = —_— —_ — —_
Goodwill ... b 50617 67211 71,537 61,780 - 56900 40,285 — — 15484
Intangible assets ............ 200 - _ 2,100 3,200 —_— — 1,771 1,700
Intangible asset—below market

groundlease ............. — 38,830 — —_ —_ _— 1 _— — —
Elimination of investment in ¢ , . . )

joint venture . ............ —_ — (14,987) _ = = == —
Mortgage and other debt

assumed .. ..., .. ..o — — (85.891) (85500 — —_— — - -
Deferred tax fiability .. ....... — —_ (18.319) —_— — — _ — —_
Minority interests assumed . . .. _ — (1,786) — R — . . {11,616) —
Net working capital .......... (8.692y 1 9951 14,834 (2,240)° 370 (709) 2,015 (1,984)  (1.516)

$350,725 $207,594  §$75,791 ' $327,690 $439,270 $169,976 $158,643 $285389 $123,168

. . [

Pro forma Information

The hotels acquired during the year ended December 31, 2006 described above were accounted for under
the purchase method of accounting, and the assets and liabilities and results of operations of the hotéls have been
consolidated in the financial statements since the dates of purchase. On an unaudited pro forma basis, revenues,
net income {loss) available to common shareholders and basic and diluted income (loss) available to common
shareholders per share for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows.if these acquisitions, and
the purchase of the 45% interest.in the Hotel del Coronado described in note 5 had occurred at the beginning of
each of the respective periods (in thousands):

2006 © 2005

Total revenue ............ P IO L. $922571  $773,829
Net income ..... A e Co... $111,720 % 9,125
Preferred shareholder dividend .................... . e $(29,847) ~ $(28,100)
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders .. ....... ... .. ... $ 81,873 $(18975)
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders per share: ' ,

BaSiC . .iriii e o PP U $ 109 $ (032

Diluted ............. PRR s SN U $ 108 § (032

Purchase of the LaSolana Hotel and Villas Development Sites (LaSolana)

In 2005, the Combany signed letters of intent 't‘b purchase the LaSolana Hotel and \{iilas dev;alopmeni sites
adjacent to the Company’s existing Four Seasons Punta Mita Resort for an initial purchase price of
approximately $30,879,000 (including net working capital) and the assumption of an installment agreement to ,
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purchase the Villa development site. The LaSolana Hotel development site includes a fee simple ‘interest in 20.5
acres of land with plans to develop approximately 70 hillside hotel suites, spa, restaurant, pool and retail (Hotel
Site} and the LaSolana Villa development site includes the right to develop 55 for-sale residences on 27 acres of
land (Villa Site). The Company acquired existing promissory notes totaling $17,852,000 (including accrued
interest) as well as the equity interests for $13,027,000 (including acquisition costs).

In 2005, the Company. purchased the promissory notes and made a refundable deposit of $1,000,000 on the
equity investment. This amount aggregating $18,852,000 is included in other assets in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2005. On March 8, 2006, the Company acquired the remaining
equity interests to take full ownership and control of the development sites. Upon purchase of the equity
interests, title to the Hotel Site transferred to the Company and the previously acquired promissory notes were
converted to equity. In 2006 the previous installment agreement was terminated and the Company entered into a
new agreement that required a single payment of $17,980,000 which, along with acquisition costs, was paid in
the third quarter of 2006.

As of December 31, 2006 the carrying amount of the Company’s investment in LaSolana amounted to
$55,605,000, which inciudes capitalized interest of $2,387,000.

Acquisition Agreement

On September 26, 2006, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire an interest in a to-be-built mixed
use building adjacent to the Fairmont Chicago property. Our interest consists of approximately 15 floors that will
primarily house 210 hotel suites, meeting and prefunction space, hotel lobby and related areas and associated
improvements for approximately $82,400,000. The acquisition, expected to close in late 2009, remains subject to
contractual closing conditions. Letters of credit were issued as an earnest money deposit under SHR’s agreement
to acquire the interest (see note 16).

Sale and Leaseback of the Hamburg Marriott :

On February 24, 2004, the joint venture (Bohus) that owned the Hamburg Marriott sold its interest in the
hotel to Deutsche Immobilien Fonds Aktiengesellschaft (DIFA} for (all amounts converted based on the foreign
exchange rate as of February 24, 2004 unless noted otherwise) €50,000,000 (362,765,000} cash. Bohus paid a.
subsidiary of SHR €4,625,000 (35,626,000 based on the actual amount received in dollars) for a guarantee fee,
finders fee and as a sales commission, all of which were recorded by SHR as a reduction in its investment in
Bohus. DIFA leased the hotel back to Bohus. The lease’s initial term runs through June 14, 2030 and is subject to
extension. Under the terms of the lease, Bohus makes monthly minimum rent payments aggregating €3,437,000
($4,537,000 based on the foreign exchange rate as of December 31, 2006) annually (increasing by an index
formula) and pays additional rent based upon the performance of the hotel. '

Bohus initially accounted for the sale and leaseback of the Hamburg Marriott as a finance obligation. Bohus
maintained the Hamburg Marriott on its consolidated balance sheet and continued to consolidate its results,
including its depreciation. Based on the effective interest method, a portion of the monthly lease payments was
reported as a reduction of the finance obligation with the remainder charged to interest expense.

Subsequent to the sale, on March 1, 2004, a subsidiary of SHR paid €130,000 ($162,000) to acquire the
remaining 65% of Bohus it did not previously own. This transaction was accounted for as a purchase and SHR's
basis in the assets and liabilities of Bohus have been adjusted to fair value to the extent of the 65% of Bohus it
did not previously own. SHR accounts for Bohus as a consolidated subsidiary. Additional consideration of
€86,000 ($112,000) was paid upon final settlement of working capital amounts in the first quarter of 2005.
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In conjunction with the IPO, SHR recorded a sale of the Hamburg Marriott and the leaseback has been '
reflected as an operating lease as of June 29, 2004. SHR eliminated the finance obligation on its consolidated
balance sheet and from June 29, 2004 forward records lease expense instead of mortgage interest and - !
depreciation expense. SHR recorded a deferred gain of $5,619,000 in connection with this transaction, which is
being recognized over the life of the lease. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, SHR
recognized $174,000, $182, 000 and $111,000 of the deferred gain, respectively. The realized portion of the
deferred gain is included as a reduction of lease expense in the accompanying consolidated statéments of
operations. SHR also funded a Euro-denominated security deposit with DIFA initially representing
approximately 18 months of the minimum rent, This amount at December 31, 2006 and December 31,2005 was
$6,601,000 and $5,920,000, respectively, and is included in other assets on the accompanymg consohdated’
balance sheets. .

Lo L . : + L
The Hamburg Marriott is subject to an operating lease agreement and SHR records lease revenue f.[‘OIl”l this
hotel. ' '

Sale and_ Leaseback of the Paris Marriott

In July 2003, the Company sold the real estate (building and land) applicable to the Paris Marriott to DIFA,
for (all amounts converted based on the foreign exchange rate as of July 11, 2003 unless noted otherwise)
€163,000,000 ($185,820,000) cash, DIFA then leased this real estate to another subsidiary of the Company (the
Tenant) with the right to continue to operate the hotel for an initial term expiring on December 31, 2029. Under
the terms of the lease, the Tenant makes monthly minimum rent payments aggregating €11,370,000 ($15,010,000
as of December 31, 2006) per year (increasing by an index-related formula) and pays additional rent based on the
performance of the hotel. '

\

SHR initiaily accounted for the sale and leaseback of the Paris Marriott as a finance obligation. SHR
maintained the Paris Marriott on its consolidated balance sheet and continued to consolidate its results, including
its depreciation, Based on the effective interest method, a portion of the monthly lease payments was reported as
a reduction of the finance obligation with the remainder charged to interest expense. -

In conjunction with the IPO, a sale of the Paris Marriott was recorded and the leaseback was reflected ds an
operating lease as of June 29, 2004, SHR eliminated the finance obligation on the consolidated balance sheet and
from June 29, 2004 forward records lease expense instead of mortgage interest and depreciation expense. SHR
recorded a deferred gain of $103,590,000 in connection with this transaction, which is being recognized over the
life of the lease. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, SHR recognized $4,231,000,
$4,173,000 and $2,069,000 of the deferred gain, respectively. The realized portion of the deferred gain is
included as a reduction of lease expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. SHR aiso
funded a Furo-denominated security deposit with DIFA initially representing approximately 16 months of the
minimum rent. This amount at December 31, 2006 and 2005 is $12,649,000 and $13,206,000, respectively, and
is included in other assets on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

As a result of a sublease arrangement effective June 29, 2004, SHR subleases the investment in the Paris
Marrioit to a third party and records lease revenue from this hotel.

.

’,.
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4. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The results of operauons of hotels sold have been clasmﬁed as discontinued operations and segregated in the
consolidated statements of operations for all periods presented SHR has sold the following hotels:

. Net Sales
Hotel ’ Location Date Sold Proceeds
Hilton Burbank Airport . ............ _ Burbank, CA . September 7,2006  $123,321,000
Marriott Rancho Las Palmas Resort . Rancho Mirage, CA  July 14, 2006 $ 54,774,000
Embassy Suites Lake Buena Vista . ... Orlando, FL October 27,2005 = $ 54,820,000
Margiott Schaumburg .............. Chicago, IL October 7, 2005 $ 21,482,000
Hyatt Regency Washington, D.C. .. ... Washington, D.C. February 6, 2004 $156,354,000

The followmg is a summary of income from discontinued operations for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005, and 2004 (in thousands):

2006 2005 2004
Hotel operating revenues .............coviiieirnnnnienernn.. $42,822 $88458 $85.,841
JLeaserevenue ...........:...... . ..., e — . — 257
Total TEVENUES . ... ittt et e e e 42,822 88,458 86,098
Operating costs and expenses . . ........ccovenenn.... e 42,655 69,958 70,719
Impairment losses on goodwill and hotel property ............. . — — 12,675
-Depreciation and amortization .. ....1. .. ... .00 ..., ‘ 2,535 8,853 9.886
Total operating costs and EXPENSES . ...cvviriinniin, e 45,190 78,811 93,280
Operating (loss) INCOME . ... .. .ottt (2,368) 9,647 (7,182)
Interestexpense ..................... e e e, (1,855) (4,702) (6,807)
Interestincome ......................... e 131 128 39
Loss on early extinguishment of debt ........................ (1,000) (1,575) (383)
Other expenses, net ........ e e e — R ) (19)
Incometax benefit ........ ...t i, 3,981 1,103 —_
Gain onsale ... .. . e e e 88,871 21,202 75,982
MINOTity INTEIEStS . . ... ittt it i e (1,124) (4,459) 3,502

‘Income from discontinued operations ........................ $86,636  $21,309 $65,132

Because of the continued cash flow SHR generated from its asset management agreement with SHC LLC,
the seven hotel properties distributed to SHC LLC are not reflected as discontinued operatlons in the
accompanying consolidated ﬁnanc1al statements.

5. INVESTMENT IN HOTEL JOINT VENTURES
Investment in the InterContinental Prague

Through August 3, 2006, the Company owned a 35% interest and acted as asset manager for a joint venture
that owned the InterContinental Prague hotel and accounted for the investment using the equity method of
accounting. On August 3, 2006, the Company purchased its joint venture partner’s 65% interest in the entity that
owns the InterContinental Prague and ceased accounting for the investment using the equity method of
accounting (see note 3). SHR’s investment in the entity totaled $12,886,000 at December 31, 2005. As of
August 3, 2006, SHR eliminated its investment ($14,987,000) in the joint venture in connection with recording
the acquisition described above. SHR’s equity in earnings of the joint venture amounted to $222,000, $2,931,000,
and $832,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.
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In August 2002, SHR entered into two foreign currency forward contracts for a combined notional amount of
$50,000,000 to manage the risk of change in the U.S. dollar equivalent value of forecasted Czech Koruna proceeds
on the future sale of the InterContinental Prague hotel. The above contracts were designated as hedges of a net
investment in a foreign operation under SFAS No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities” (SFAS 133). As prescribed by SFAS 133, a portion of these contracts in excess of carrying value of the
net investment was deemed ineffective and as such.did not qualify for hedge accounting. Accordingly, changes in
the value of the forward contracts were recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (to the extent deemed
effective) and other income (expenses}, net (to the extent deemed ineffective) with an offsetting entry to accounts -
payable and accrued expenses. These forward currency contracts were distributed to SHC LLC in conjunction with
the IPO. For the year ended December 31, 2004, the credit to accumulated other comprehensive income amounted
to $3,714,000 and the charge to other income (expenses), net amounted to $(2,725,000).

Investment in the Hotel del Coronado

On January 9, 2006, subsidiaries of SHR closed-the acquisition of a 45% joint venture ownership interest in
SHC KSL Partners, LP (Hotel Venture), the existing owner of the Hotel del Coronado in San Diego, California, and-
in HAC North Beach Development, LLLP (North Beach Venture), the owner of an adjacent land parcel under
development, for a pro rata share of an aggregate agreéd-upon market value of $745,000,000. The Hote! Venture
and the North Beach Venture are collectively referred to as the Partnerships. The Company, through its subsidiaries,
paid $71,362,000 (including $21,250,000 of escrow deposits paid in 2005) to fund its investment in the
Partnerships, which was funded with borrowings under the Company’s bank credit facility, and immediately prior to
SHR’s investment, the Hotel Venture refinanced the property with $610,000,000 of proceeds from the mortgage and
mezzanine financings discussed below as well as borrowings of $10,500,000 on the bank credit facility. SHR earns
fees under an asset management agreement with the Partnerships. SHR receives fees amounting to 1% of the Hotel
Ventures’ revenues and 2% of the Partnership’s development costs. In addition, SHR earns financing fees of
0.325% of any debt principal placed on behalf of the Hotel Venture as well as certain incentive fees as provided by
the asset management agreements. SHR recognizes income of 55% of these fees, representing the percentage of the
Partnerships not owned by SHR. These fees amounted to $2,214,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006 and are
included in other income (expenses), net on the consolidated statements of operations. The Company accounts for
the Partnerships using the equity method of accounting. .

In connection with the acquisition, the entities entered into partnership agreements, which contain provisions
regarding allocations of net income and loss to the partners and the distribution of cash to the partners. These .
allocations are based on the partners’ pro-rata ownership interests in the Hotel Venture and North Beach Venture.

On January 9, 2006, the Hotel Venture entered into mortgage and mezzanine loans with German American
Capital Corporation (GACC), as lender. The principal amount of the loans is $610,000,000 and they accrue
interest at LIBOR plus a blended spread of 2.08% per annum (7.43% at December 31, 2006). In addition, the
Hotel Venture entered into a $20,000,000 revolving credit facility with GACC that bears interest at LIBOR plus
2.50% per annum (7.85% at December 31, 2006). At December 31, 2006, there was $6,000,000 outstahding on
the revolving credit facility. There are letters of credit outstanding of $2,300,000, which are secured by the
revolving credit facility. The mortgage loan is secured by a mongage on the Hotel del Coronado and the
mezzanine loans and revolving credit facility are secured by a pledge of the equity interest held by the borrowers
in their subsidiaries.

On January 9, 2006, as required by the loan agreements described above, the Hotel Venture purchased
interest rate caps with a LIBOR strike price of 5.00% from January 9, 2006 to January 15, 2008 and 5.50% from
January 15, 2008 to January 15, 2009, These caps expire on January 15, 2009. The interest rate caps were
purchased with notional amounts covering the entire $630,000,000 of the mortgage and mezzanine loans
(including the bank credit facility).
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Concurrently with the purchase of the interest rate caps described above, SH Funding entered into an
agreement to sell a cap with a strike price of 5.00%. This cap expires on January 15, 2009. The interest rate cap
was sold with a notlonal amount of $9,000,000.

Further, on January 9 2006, the North Beach Venture entered into a $59,000,000 construction loan with
GMAC Commercial Mortgage Corporation (GMAC) to be used in connection with the construction of a 78-room
beachfront, luxury condominium-hotel development on the North Beach Venture land parcel. The construction
loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 2.50% per annum (7.85% at December. 31, 2006). At December 31, 2006, there
was $24,643,000 outstanding on the construction loan. As of January 9, 2006, the limited partners in the Hotel
Venture issued a completion guarantee (pro rata based on their limited partnership interests) to GMAC. Under
this agreement, the Hotel Venture limited partners have guaranteed the timely performance of the construction-
related obligations contained in the construction loan documents.

At December 31, 2006, SHR's investment in the Partnerships totaled $68,215,000. SHR’s equity in (losses) of
the Partnerships amounted to $(1,776,000) for the year ended December 31, 2006. This amount includes the
Company’s 45% interest in the Partnerships after elimination of fees earned under the asset management agreement.

The following is the.‘summary combined statements ot‘ operations of the Hotel and North Beach Ventures,
which, through their affiliated subsidiaries, own and operate the Hotel del Coronado and North Beach Venture
development, for the pericd from January 9, 2006 to December 31, 2006 (in thousands):

Revenues -.......... e e S S $132,480
 Expenses: - v '

. OPErating EXPENSES .« oo\ vttt e e et e ettt i et - 80,406

Depreciation and amortization . ............... ... oo 11,447

Interest €xpense .. .............. e e 43,809

Otherexpense 37 (N 2,143

Income tax EXPENSE ........ooinnnnnnnn e 400

_Total expenses .................. e [ P .. 138205

£ O 0 .. $ (5,725

The following is the summary combined balance sheet of the Hotel and the North Beach Ventures as of
December 31, 2006 (in thousands) f

Property and equlpment, S 5 313,813
Intangible assets, net . ........... P, P 49,353
Goodwill .. ... e s . 23,401
Condominium hotel deve]opment prQ]ect e e 41,430
Cash and cash equivalents ... ., et SREEEE 7,053
Restricted cash and cash equivalents ........_........ [P e 5,409
OB ASSELS .\ o oottt ee ettt et e e e e 21,344
Total aSSEES . oot e e e e '$ 461,803
" Mortgageandotherdebt ... $ 616,000
Construction 108N . ..ot e e e 24,643
Other liabilities .............. e e e e 30,738
Total Habilities . .. . . ot et P 671,381
Partners” deficit . ... A U (209,578)
Total liabilities and partners’ defiCit . oo R $ 461,803
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Investment in Four Seasons Residence Club Punta Mita

The Company owns a 31% interest in and acts as asset manager for a joint venture with two unaffiliated
parties that are developing the Four Seasons Residence Club Punta Mita, a luxury vacation home product that is
being sold in fractional ownership interests on the property adjacent to the Company’s Four Seasons Punta Mita
Resort hotel in Mexico. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, SHR’s investment amounted to $3,134,000 and
$2,647,000, respectively, and is included in investment in joint ventures in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. SHR's equity in earnings (losses) of the joint venture amounted to $488,000, $(113,000) and $0
for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and is included in equity in (losses)
earnings of joint ventures in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations,

6. MANAGEMENT AND OPERATING LEASE AGREEMENTS

Most of the Company’s hotels are subject to management agreements that SHR assumed upon acquisition of
the hotels, These agreements generally provide for the payment of base management fees of 1% to 4% of Gross
Revenues (as defined in the agreements). In addition, an incentive fee may be paid if certain criteria are met. The
terms of these agreements generally require management of the hotels to furnish the hotels with certain services,
which include on-site management and may include central training, advertising and promotion, national
reservation system, payroll and accounting services, and such additional services as needed. At December 31,
2006, the remaining terms {not including renewal options) of these management agreements range from three to
30 years and average 15 years.

The Hamburg Marriott hotel is subject to an operating lease agreement and SHR records lease revenue from
this hotel. As a result of a sublease arrangement effective June 29, 2004, SHR subleases the investment in the
Paris Marriott to a third party and records lease revenue from this hotel. As of December 31, 2003, three of
SHR's hotels were subject to lease agreements whereby the lessee paid rent to SHR for an amount approximately
equal to 80% of operating profit as defined in the lease agreements. One hotel was sold February 6, 2004, Its
resulis are reported as discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of gperations. In connection with
the IPQ, one hotel was distributed to SHC LLC and one hotel was converted to 2 management coniract. For the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, SHR recorded revenue of $20,257,000, $16,787,000, and
$24,233,000, respectively, from the lease arrangements described above,

7. INDEBTEDNESS
Bank Credit Facility:

On November 9, 2005, SH Funding entered into a bank credit agreement with a group of lenders led by
Wachovia Capital Markets, LLC and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. This agreement replaced the previous
$175,000,000 bank credit facility agreement that was entered into on June 29, 2004. SHR wrote off the
unamortized deferred financing costs applicable to the $175,000,000 bank credit facility. This write-off, which
amounted to $2,212,000, is included in loss on early extinguishment of debt in the accompanying consolidated
statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2005. The new agreement provides for a $125,000,000
revolving loan and expires November 9, 2009, subject to a one-year extension at the borrower’s option. On
May 30, 2006 and August 28, 2006, SHR amended the agreement to increase the revolving loan to $ 150,000,000
and $225,000,000, respectively. Under the amended agreement, SHR has a letter of credit sub-facility of
$50,000,000, which is secured by the bank credit facility. The facility is based on a minimum of seven qualified
properties (as defined in the agreement). SHR guaranteed the loan and pledged its interest in SH Funding as
collateral for this loan. Certain subsidiaries of SH Funding also guaranteed the loan and SH Funding’s interest in
ceriain subsidiaries have been pledged as collateral for this loan.
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Interest is payable monthly at LIBOR plus a spread of 1.50% to 2.75% (1.75% as of December 31, 2006)
depending on a leverage test. Additionally, there is an unused commitment fee of 0.20% to 0.30% per annum of
the average daily-unused revolver balance. Under the agreement, dividend payments may not exceed 90% of
funds from operations, subject to dividend payments required to preserve the Company s REIT status. The
agreement also requires maintenance of certain other financial covenants, all of which SH Funding and SHR
were in compliance with at December 31, 2006. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, $115,000,000 and '
$26,000,000, respectively, was outstanding under this facility and the welghted-average interest rate for the year
ended December 31, 2006 was 6.72%. The Company had oulstandmg letters of credit of $12,000,000 at
December 31 2006 (see note 16).

Mortgages and Other Debt Payable:

Mortgages and other debt payable as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 are summarized as follows (in
thousands}):

2006 2005
Mortgage Loans, Commercml Mortgage Backed Securities and Mezzanine
Debt ... $1,434315  $626,462

Other et . oottt e e e it e e 8,550 6,918
' ’ $1,442,865  $633,380

Mortgage Loans, Commercial Mortgage-Backed Securities (CMBS) and Mezzanine Debt

On September 1, 2006, the Company entered into loan agreements with Citigroup Global Markets Realty
Corp. Aggregate proceeds from these financings amounted to $270,000,000, consisting of CMBS totaling
$180,000,000 and mezzanine loans totaling $90,000,000. The CMBS loan is secured by a mortgage on the
Fairmont Scottsdale Princess hotel (carrying amount of $356,141,000 at December 31, 2006) and the mezzanine
loan is secured by the Company’s equity interests in the hotel. ‘The CMBS loan matures on September 9, 2008,
subject to three one-year extensions at the Company’s option. The mezzanine loan matures on March 9, 2007,
subject to the Company’s option to extend to September 9, 2008. Interest on the CMBS loan is payable monthly
at LIBOR plus 0.56%. Interest on the mezzanine loan is payable monthly at LIBOR plus 0.70% through March 9,
2007. If the mezzanine loan is extended to September 9, 2008, interest will accrue after March 9, 2007 at LIBOR
plus 3.50%. Principal and any unpaid interest are payable at maturity. The blended interest rate at December 31,
2006 was 5.96%.

On August 31, 2006, the Company entered into a facility agreement with Barclays Bank PL.C, as lender and
Barclays Capital Mortgage Servicing Limited, as security agent. The facility agreement provides the Company
with a £77,250,000 ($151,256,000 based on the foreign exchange rate as of December 31, 2006) revolving loan
maturing on August 30, 2007 with the option to convert to a term loan maturing on October 15, 2013. Interest is
payable quarterly at GBP LIBOR pius 1.10%, until maturity, at which time the principal and any unpaid interest
are payable. The interest rate at December 31, 2006 was 6.36%. The loan is secured by among other things, the
Marriott Grosvenor Square hotel (carrying amount of $202,991,000 at December 31, 2006).

On July 6, 2006, the Company entered into a mortgage loan with Metropolitan Life Insurance Company.
The principal amount of the loan is $220,000,000 and interest accrues at LIBOR plus 0.70%. The loan is secured
by, among other things, the Westin St. Francis hotel (carrying amount of $434,567,000 at December 31, 2006).
Proceeds from the loan were used to partialty fund the acquisition of the Ritz-Carlton Laguna Niguel. The loan
matures on August 12008, subject to three one-year extensions at the Company’s option. Interest is payable
monthly, until maturity, at which time the principal and any unpaid interest are payable. The interest rate at
December 31, 2006 was 6.05%. :
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In connection with the purchase of the InterContinental Prague hotel, SHR assumed a €68,319,000
{$85,891,000 based on the foreign exchange rate as of August 3, 2006) loan with Aareal Bank: The loan is.
secured by, among other things, the InterContinental Prague hotel (carrying amiount of. $193,953,000 at
December 31, 2006). The loan bears floating interest at EURIBOR plus 1.5% and matures July 15, 2007, subject
to a one year extension at the Company’s option. Interest and principal are payable quarterly with a final
payment of €62,650,000 ($82,704,000 based on the foreign exchange rate as of December 31, 2006) due on
July 15, 2008 (assuming the extension option under the loan). At December 31, 2006, the principal balance was |
€66,501,000 ($87,788,000 based on the forelgn exchange rate as of December 31, 2006) The interest rate at
December 31, 2006 was 4.88%." . - ‘ : .. .

On November 9, 2005, subsidiaries of SHR (the Borrowers) completed a $350,000,000 Floating Rate
CMBS financing with German American Capital Corporation (GACC). Initial funding of $220,000,000 was
received on November 9, 2005, a secondary draw of $20,000,000 was received on June 28, 2006 and a final draw
of $38,290,000 was received on August 25, 2006. Proceeds from the original funding, together with available
cash, were used to retire the floating rate loan that was entered into on June 29, 2004 and amended on August 24,
2004 as described below, The new notes are secured by mortgages on six hotel properties owned by the
Borrowers (carrying amount of $528,626,000 at December 31, 2006). The notes mature on November 9, 2007,
subject to three one-year extensions at the Borrower’s option. Interest is payable monthly at LIBOR plus 0.85%,
until maturity, at which time the principal and any unpaid interest are payable. The interest rate at December 31,
2006 was 6.20%. :

On July 14, 2006 and September 7, 2006, $13,290,000 and $42,505,000, respectively, of the floating rate,
loan that was entered into on November 9, 2005 was repaid using proceeds received from the sales of the . -,
Marriott Rancho Las Palmas Resort and the Hilton Burbank Airport Hotel, respectively. After these repayments,
the principal balance was $292,494,000.at December 31, 2006. In connection with the repayment, SHR wrote off
the unamortized deferred financing costs and paid prepayment penalties. These costs amounted to.$1,000,000
and have been included in income from discontinued operations for the year ended December 31,-2006.

On April 1, 2005, the joint ventures (the Ventures) that own the InterContinental Chicago and Miami hotels
completed three mortgage loan financings with GACC, which were used to acquire the two properties. Aggregate
proceeds from these financings amounted to $202,000,000, consisting of CMBS totaling $149,000,000 and -
mezzanine loans totaling $53,000,000. Interest on these loans was payable monthly at the 30-day LIBOR plus a -
blended interest rate of 1.75%, until maturity, at which time the principal and any unpaid interest were payable.

v
.

On October 6, 2006, the Ventures completed two new mortgage loan financings, the InterContinental -
Chicago and InterContinental Miami loans, with Citigroup Global Markets Realty Corp. Proceeds fromither
financings were used to retire the loans entered into on April 1, 2005. The principal amount of the - . :
InterContinental Chicago loan is $121,000,000 (as amended on October 20, 2006). Interest is payable monthly at
LIBOR plus 0.31%, until maturity, at which time the principal and any unpaid interest are payable. The interest
rate at December 31, 2006 was 5.66%. The loan is secured by the InterContinental Chicago hotel (carrying
amount of $165,335,000 at December 31, 2006). The principal amount of the InterContinental Miami loan is
$90,000,000. Interest is payable monthly at LIBOR plus 0.73%,; until maturity, at which time the principal and
any unpaid interest are payable. The interest rate at Decémber 31, 2006 was 6.08%. The loan is secured by the
InterContinental Miami hotel (carrying amount of $116,025,000-at December 31, 2006). The loans mature on ~
October 9, 2008, subject to three one-year extensions at the Ventures’ option. In connection with the repayments,
SHR wrote off the unamortized deferred financing costs and paid prepayment penalties applicable to the debt.
These costs amounted to $2,150,000 and are included in loss on early extinguishment of debt for the year ended
December 31, 2006. : :
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On June 29, 2004, certain subsidiaries of the Company (the Subsidiaries} completed two mortgage loan
financings with GACC (the fixed rate loan) and a group of lenders led by LaSalle Bank National Association
acting as trustee (the floating rate loan). Aggregate proceeds from these financings amounted to $408,500,000,
consisting of a fixed rate loan totaling $208,500,000 and a floating rate loan totaling $200,000,000.

The fixed rate loan is secured by mortgages on three hotels (carrying amount of $279,754,000 at
December 31, 2006) owned by the Subsidiaries. The loan matures July 1, 2011 and bears interest at a fixed
blended interest rate of 5.43%. Interest and principal are payable monthly on a thirty-year amortization schedule.
The unamortized principal balance at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was $201,777,000 and $204,462,000,
respectively.

. ]

On August 24, 2004, the Subsidiaries entered'into an Amended and Restated Indenture for the issuance of
$275,000,000 of floating rate notes of the Subsidiaries. This new indenture amended and restated the floating rate
loan completed on June 29, 2004. The new notes were secured by mortgages on nine hotel properties owned by
the Subsidiaries, including the eight properties from the prior loan transaction and the Ritz-Carlton Half Moon
Bay, which was acquired on August 24, 2004. The notes had a maturity date of September 9, 2006, subject to
three one-year extensions at the Subsidiaries’ option. Interest was payable monthly at the 30-day LIBOR plus
1.41%, until maturity, at which time the principal and any unpaid interest were payable.

On October 7, 2005 and October 27, 2005, $17,250,000 and $18,865,000 of the floating rate Joan that was
entered into on June 29, 2004 and amended on August 24, 2004 was repaid using proceeds received from the
sales of the SchaumburgMarriott and the Embassy Suites Lake Buena Vista, respectively. The remaining
principal balance of $238,885,000 was repaid on November 9, 2005 using the proceeds of the $350,000,000
Floating Rate CMBS financing described above. In connection with the repayment, SHR sold the related caps
and wrote off the unamortized deferred financing costs applicable to issuing this debt. This amounted to
$5,903,000 and has been reported as loss on early extinguishment of debt ($4,328,000) and income from
discontinued operations ($1,575,000) in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the year
ended December 31, 2005.

On January 29, 2003, SHR completed a mortgage and mezzanine loan financing with certain affiliates of
Deutsche Bank, Goldman Sachs Mortgage Company (GSMC), two life insurance companies and a commercial
bank. Aggregate procéeds from this financing amounted to $1,170,000,000, consisting of senior loans totaling
$910,000,000 and a mezzanine loan of $260,000,000. The senior loans were secured by mortgages on 15 hotels
owned by the Borrowers and the mezzanine loan was secured by the Borrowers’ equity interests in the 15 hotels.
Effective February 20,2003, the holders of the “investment grade” portion ($700,000,000) of the senior loans
assigned their loans to a group led by Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. and Goldman, Sachs & Co. (GS&Co.) who
then sold this portion of the senior loans in a private offering of CMBS 2003. GSMC and GS&Co. are affiliates
of certain SHR shareholders. See note 9 for information on the sale of SHR stock by these shareholders. The
loans had a maturity date of February 9, 2005, subject to three one-year extensions at the Borrowers’ option,
Interest was payable monthly at LIBOR plus a blended spread of 4.30%. The 2003 mortgage and mezzanine loan
financing was repaid on June 29, 2004 using a portion of the net proceeds of the IPO and the proceeds of the
mortgage loan financings discussed above. SHR wrote off the unamortized deferred financing costs applicable to
issuing this debt. This amounted to $22,900,000 and has been reported as loss on early extinguishment of debt
($20,329,000) and income from discontinued operations ($2,571,000) in the accompanying consolidated
statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2004.

As of December 31, 2003, the Company had U.S. dollar denominated mortgage debt of $118,877,000,
which was secured by one domestic hotel (fixed rate loan) and SHR’s two Mexican hotels (variable rate loans).
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The fixed rate debt bore interest at 9.25%. The $25,000,000 floating rate loan was secured by the Four Seasons
Punta Mita Resort and SH Funding’s $10,000,000 guarantee, with interest at LIBOR plus 3.80%. The other
$27.000,000 floating rate loan was secured by Four Seasons Mexico City with interest at LIBOR plus 3.50%
until the first anniversary and LIBOR plus 3.35% for years two through five. Monthly payments were interest
only until maturity. The Borrower entered into an interest rate cap agreement for a notional amount of
$27,000,000 with a LIBOR strike price of 5.0%. The cap agreement was effective December 11, 2001. On
June 29, 2004, the U.S. dollar denominated loans described above were repaid with proceeds of the financings
described above, and SHR wrote off the applicable unamortized deferred financing costs. This write-off, which
amounted to $1,222,000, has been reported as loss on early extinguishment of debt in the accompanying
consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Other Debt

In connection with the purchase of the Ritz-Carlton Laguna Niguel hotel, SHR assumed a loan payable to an
affiliate of the hotel manager. Interest accrues at LIBOR plus 3.5%. Interest is payable monthly and principal
payments are based on available FF&E reserves with all unpaid principal and interest due December 31, 2015.
As of December 31, 2006, the outstanding loan balance was $8,550,000, and the interest rate was 8.75%.

A subsidiary of SHR had a loan payable to an affiliate of one of SHR's hotel managers. Loan proceeds were
used to acquire certain furniture, fixtures and equipment (FF&E). Through June 29, 2004, interest accrued at
7.0% per annum. On June 29, 2004, the loan agreement was amended to reflect a new interest rate of LIBOR
plus 3.0%. The principal outstanding at December 31, 2005 was $6,918,000. The loan was paid off in full during
the first quarter of 2006.

In connection with acquiring the Hilton Burbank Airport hotel, SHR assumed a note payable to the
Redevelopment Agency for the City of Burbank, California, Interest accrued at 8.0% per annum. On January 30,
2004, SHR paid off the note and the related accrued interest payable to the City of Burbank. In connection with
the payoff of the loan SHR recognized a gain of $2,188,000 on the retirement of this debt that has been reported
as income from discontinued operations in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the year
ended December 31, 2004.

The following table summarizes the aggregate maturities (assuming all extension options exercised) for all
mortgages and other debt payable as of December 31, 2006 (in thousands):

Years ended

December 31,

200 L e e e e e e b 6,194
2008 . e 177,869
2000 L e e e et e e, 3,421
2000 L e e e e e e, 300,142
1. 3 803,501
Thereafter ............ e e e e e e e 151,738
72 $1,442.865

Finance Obligations

Prior to the IPO, as a result of provisions in the lease agreement that provided for continuing involvement
by SHR, SHR accounted for its sale and leaseback of the Paris Marriott (see note 3) as a finance obligation
(initially €163;000,000 ($185,820,000 based on the foreign exchange rate as of July 11, 2003)), in its
consolidated financial statements. As described in note 3, at the time of the [PO, SHR eliminated the provisions
that required recording this finance obligation.
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Prior to the 1PO, as a result of provisions in the lease agreement that provided for continuing involvement
by Bohus, SHR also accounted for the sale and leaseback of the Hamburg Marriott Hotel as a finance obligation
(initially €50,000,000 ($62,765,000 based on the foreign exchange rate as of February 24, 2004)) in its financial
statements. As described in note 3, at the time of the IPO, SHR eliminated the provisions that required recording
this finance obligation.

Convertible Debt:

SHR'’s 6.5% and 7.5% subordinated debentures accrued interest at an annual rate of 6.5% and 7.5%,
respectively, and required semi-annual cash interest payments. On June 29, 2004, in conjunction with the PO,
these debentures totaling $122,030,000 were distributed to the new SHC LLC.

Interest Expense

Total interest expense includes a reduction related to interest capitalized for the years ended December 31,
2006 and 2005 of $8,317,000 and $2,082,000, respectively. Total interest expense in continuing and discontinued
operations includes amortization of deferred financing costs of $1,954,000, $2,960,000 and $4,447,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. ’

8. MINORITY INTERESTS

SHR's minority interests pertain to its operating partnership (SH Funding) and its other consolidated
affiliates. The other consolidated affiliates include (a) two joint ventures that own the InterContinental Chicago
and Miami hotels and (b) SHC Prague InterContinental B.V. (Prague B.V.) and its Czech subsidiaries that own
and operate the InterContinental Prague hotel.

Minority interest in SH Funding on the consolidated balance sheets is calculated by dividing the number of -
units held by the minority interests by the sum of SHR’s units and the units held by the minority interests, all
calculated based on the units outstanding at the end of the period. Net income and other comprehensive income
are allocated to minority interests in SH Funding based ot their weighted average ownership percentages during
the period. The ownership percentage is calculated by dividing the number of units held by the minority interests
by the sum of SHR’s units and the units held by the minority interests, all calculated based on the weighted
average days outstanding.

SHR reflects minority interests related to the InterContinental Chicago and Miami hotels on the balance
sheet for the 15% portion of the properties consolidated by SHR, but not owned by the Company. The original
minority interest balance of $11,616,000 was established based on the historical book value of the assets at the
time of the transaction. Minority interest (expense) income attributable to net earnings (loss) from these
properties amounted to $(763,000) for the year ended December 31, 2006, which is reflected as minority interest
(expense) income in consolidated affiliates in the statements of operations. Based on its partnership agreement,
no earnings or losses from these properties were allocated to minority interests in 2005. Included in distributions
payable in the accompanying December 31, 2006 balance sheet is $545,000 payable to minority interests related
to the InterContinental Chicago and Miami hotels.

The minority interest applicable to consolidation of Prague B.V. pertains to a 3.7% interest in one of the
Prague B.V.’s Czech subsidiaries. There were no earnings or loss attributable to this minority interest for the
period August 3, 2006 to December 31, 2006

Prior to the IPO, SH Funding was the sole general partner of two limited partnerships formed to acquire
hotel properties. Minority interests represented the limited partners’ interests in limited partnershlps that were
controlled by SHR’s predecessor, SHC LLC.
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9. EQUITY AND DISTRIBUTION ACTIVITY
Common Shares:

The following table presents the changes in the issued and outstanding common shares since January 1,
2005 (excluding 975,855 and 8,366,09! units of SH Funding outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, which are exchangeable for common shares on a one-for-one basis, or the cash equivalent thereof,
subject to certain restrictions and at the Company’s option) (in thousands):

Outstanding at January 1,2005 ... .. ... ........... e 30,036
Restricted stock units redeemed for commonshares ... ... ... ... o et 42’
Operating partnership units redeemed for common shares ................. ... ... 1,035
Common SLOCK ISSUEA . . . ..ot i ettt e e e e e e 12,765

Outstanding at December 31,2005 ... ... .0 tuneneeie e e 43,878
Restricted stock units redeemed for commonshares ......... ... ... i, 38
Operating partnership units redeemed for commonshares ........................ 7,391
Common Stock A85UEd . . . oottt e e 24,100

Outstanding at December 31,2006 ............. ... ... ... ... e 75,407

Initial Common Stock Offering:

On June 29, 2004, SHR issued 17,600,000 shares of common stock, with a par value of $0.01, for $14.00
per share. Gross proceeds of $246,400,000 were reduced by an underwriters’ discount of $17,248,000 and
additional offering costs of $12,485,000 (recorded as a reduction of additional paid in capital (APIC)), resulting
in net proceeds of $216,667,000. In addition to the 17,600,000 shares issued to the public, 8,654,034 shares were
issued to prior members of SHC LLC, in exchange for their operating partnership units of SH Funding.

On July 9, 2004, the underwriters of the IPO exercised their over-allotment option, which resulted in the
issuance of an additional 2,640,000 shares at $14.00 per share. Gross proceeds from the over-allotment option of
$36,960,000 were reduced by an underwriters’ discount of $2,587,000 resulting in net proceeds of $34,373,000.

In connection with the PO, distributions totaling $227,829,000 were made to SHC LLC, in éonjunction
with the reverse spin-off described in note 1. Seven hotel properties’ assets and liabilities, cash and cash

equivalents, convertible debentures, and certain corporate assets and liabilities were distributed to new SHC LLC

as follows (in thousands):

Description _Amount
Property and eqUIPMEnt .. .........cuuuraineariiireanennn. e $ 965,432
Less accumulated depreciation .. ......... .. ... i, (296,101)
Net property and eqUipment . .. .......oouuirieenennreiinns 669,331
Goodwill ... ... ... .. e 163,039
Cashand cashequivalents .. ... ... ... . iiiuennirinnnraeananans 142,843
Restricted cash and cash equivalents . ... ... ......... ... ... .o 49,461
Accounts receivable, net . ... ... . e e 38,213
Deferredcosts,net . .........ocvieven... [ 11,244
L0113 T3 = CJ 16,260
Accounts payable and accrued expenses .. ........ ... . i e (36,109)
Mortgages and otherdebtpayable ................ ... oo (725,000)
Convertible debt . . ... ... . ... e (122,030)
Deferred fees 0N Management CONMIACES ... ...\ v iuuin e (9,423)
Net distribution atIPOdatetonew SHCLLC ... .. ..oovuevenenn S $ 227,829
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In 2005, SHR distributed $37,000 of cash and $483,000 of liabilities to the new SHC LLC as final
settlement on the reverse spin-off transaction described above. In 2004, SHR distributed $6,127,000 of cash and
$12,852,000 of net assets to the new SHC LLC as settlement on the reverse spin-off transaction described above.

Redemption of Units of Non-Managing Member Limited Liability Company Interests in SH Funding:

On September 27, 2005 and September 24, 2004, respectively, approximately 1,035,000 and 1,142,000,
operating partnership units were redeemed for common shares, respectively. On January 20, 2006, the Company
offered all holders of units of non-managing member limited liability company interests in SH Funding an
opportunity to redeem their interests by its waiver of the transfer restrictions in the limited liability company
agreement of SH Funding. On January 20, 2006, holders of 7,229,590 limited liability interests in SH Funding
redeemed their interests in exchange for an equal number of shares of the Company’s common stock. Subsequent
to January 20, 2006, holders of an additional 160,646 limited liability interests in SH Funding redeemed their
interest in exchange for an equal number of shares of the Company’s common stock. After these exchanges,
SHR’s ownership share of SH Funding increased to approximately 99%.

Secondary Common Stock Offerings:

On May 24, 2006, a public offering of common stock was completed at a price of $20.50 per share. The
shares consisted of 16,100,000 shares of common stock sold by the Company (including the over-allotment
option issuance). After discounts, commissions and estimated expenses, the Company raised net proceeds of
approximately $318,280,000. These proceeds were used to repay existing indebtedness under the bank credit
facility, to partially fund the acquisition of the Westin St. Francis and the Ritz-Carlton Laguna Niguel and for
general corporate purposes. .

On January 30, 2006, a public offering of common stock was completed at a price of $20.00 per share. The
shares consisted of 8,000,000 primary shares of common stock sold by the Company (including the over-
allotment option issuance) and 12,731,640 secondary shares of common stock sold by stockholders affiliated or
associated with Prudential Financial, Inc. and Whitchall Street Real Estate Limited Partnerships VII and IX,
affiliates of Goldman, Sachs & Co. Goldman Sachs & Co. received approximately $1,996,000 of discounts and
commissions related to this transaction. After discounts, commissions and estimated expenses, the Company
raised net proceeds of approximately $151,900,000. These proceeds were used to repay existing indebtedness
under the bank credit facility, to partially fund the acquisition of the Four Seasons Washington D.C. and for
general corporate purposes.

On August 16, 2005, the Company completed a secondary public offering of common stock by issuing
12,765,000 shares at a price of $17.95 per share. After discounts, commissions and expenses, the Company
raised net proceeds of $217,407,000. The net proceeds were used to repay existing indebtedness under the
Company’s credit facility and to fund the acquisition of the Fairmont Chicago.

Distributions to Shareholders and Unitholders: ‘

Distributions are declared quarterly to holders of common shares and operating partnership'unitholders. For
the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and the six months ended 2004, the per share and per unit distributions
were $0.92, $0.88 an $0.44, respectively.

Preferred Stock:

On May 17, 2006, SHR completed a public offering of 5,750,000 shares of 8.25% Series C Cumulative
Redeemable Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share (liquidation preference $25.00 per share). After discounts,
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commissions and expenses, the Company raised net proceeds of approximately $138,940,000. These proceeds
were used to repay existing indebtedness under the Company’s credit facility, to partially fund the acquisition of
the Westin St. Francis and the Ritz-Carlton Laguna Niguel and for general corporate purposes. :

The Serleq C Preferred Stock haq a perpetual life and is not redeemable before May 17, 2011. Begmmng
May 17, 2011, SHR may redeem Series C Preferred Stock at $25.00 per share plus accrued distributions.
Distributions on the Series C Preferred Stock will be cumulative from the date of issnance and are payable
quarterly, starting June 30, 2006. '

On January 31, 2006, SHR completed a public offering of 4 600 000 shares of 8.25% Series B Cumulative
Redeemable Preferred Stock, par value $0.0t per share (liquidation preference $25.00 per share) After discounts,
commissions and expenses, the Company raised net proceeds of approximately $110,775,000. These proceeds
were used to repay existing indebtedness under the Company’s credit facility, to partially fund the acquisition of
the Four Seasons Washington D.C. and for general corporate purposes. '

The Series B Preferred Stock has a perpetual life and is not redeemable before January 31, 2011. Beginning
January 31, 2011, SHR may redeem Series B Preferred Stock at $25.00 per share plus accrued distributions.
Distributions on the Series B Preferred Stock will be cumulative from the date of issuance and are payable -
quarterly, starting March 31, 2006.

On March 9, 2005, SHR completed a private placement offering of 4,000,000 shares of 8.5% Series A
Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares, par value $0.01 per share (liquidation preference $25.00 per share).
After discounts, commissions and expenses, the Company raised net proceeds of $97,553,000. The net proceeds
were used to repay existing indebtedness under the Company’s credit facﬂlty and to partially. fund the acquisition
of interests in the Chicago and Miami InterContinental hotels (see note 3). :

The Series A Preferred Shares have a perpetual life and are not redeemable before March 16, 2010.-
Beginning March 16, 2010, SHR may redeem Series A Preferred Shares at $25.00 per share plus accrued
distributions. Distributions on the Series A Preferred Shares will be-cumulative from the date of issuance and are
payable quarterly, starting June 30, 2005.

10. DERIVATIVES

SHR enters into derivative financial instruments with high credit quality counterparties and diversifies its
positions among such counterparties in order to reduce its exposure to credit losses. To date SHR has not .
experienced any credit losses on derivatives.

SHR manages its interest rate risk by varying its exposure to fixed and variable rates while attempting to
minimize its interest costs. SHR manages its fixed interest rate and variable interest rate risk through the use of
interest rate caps and swaps. The caps limit SHR’s exposure on its variable rate debt that would result from an
increase in interest rates. The Company’s lenders, as stipulated in the respective loan agreements, generally
require such caps. SHR uses interest rate swaps to effectively convert portions of its existing variable rate debt to
fixed rate debt. Certain of the Company’s derivatives are designated as cash flow hedges and to the extent
effective, changes in the fair value of these instruments are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive
income. To the extent these instruments are not designated as hedges or are ineffective as hedges, changes in the
fair value of these instruments are recorded in interest expense or other income, net, as appropriate. Upon
extinguishment of debt, income effects of cash flow hedges are reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income to interest expense, equity in (losses) camings of joint ventures, loss on early
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extinguishment of debt, or-income from-discontinued operations as appropriate. The Company recognizes all
derivatives as either assets or liabilities.on the balance sheet, classifies those instruments as either other assets or
in accounts payable and accrued expenses and measures those instruments at fair value. Relating to these
instruments, the following amounts were recorded for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 (in
thousands). . .. - ' . St

T UL K K ’ 2006 2005 2004
Interest expense . . . .. .. DU e AT $— %104 $ 356
Other income (eXpenses), DEt . .. ....... ...t eireinenneanereans an — —
Equity in (losses) earnings of joint ventures . . ....................... (151) — (83)
Loss on early extmgmshmenl of debt . ... vii i — 387 1,569
Income from dlsc;ontmued operauons e e — )] (198)

The market values of the Company's mterest rate eaps and swaps as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 were
as follows (in thousands):

. CoL L _ 2006 2005
INEErest rate CaPS. . .ov v e e et e $ (36 % 1

Interest rate swaps ........ L S A e 2,467y 5,015

Interest Rate Caps. '

On October 6, 2006, the joint ventures that own the lnterContmemal Chlcago and Miami hotels purchased
interest rate caps with a LIBOR strike price of 7.50%..These caps expire on October 15, 2008. The interest rate
caps have notional amounts covering the entire $211,000,000 balance of the mortgage debt related to the
InterContinental Chicago and InterContinental Miamihotels. ,

On September 1, 2006, SHR purchased an interest rate cap with a LIBOR strike price of 7.50%. This cap
expires on September 15, 2008. The interest rate cap, with a notional amount of $180,000,000 covers the CMBS
loan secured by the Fairmont:Scottsdale Princess hotel. .

On August 3, 2006, SHR assumed an interest rate cap with a LIBOR strike price of 5.00%. This cap expires
on July 15, 2007. The interest rate cap has a notional amount covering the entire €68,319,000 of the mortgage
debt related to the InterContinental Prague hotel.

b ! T ! Y - : ‘ kT [l

On November 9 2005 SHR purchased an mterest rate cap with a LIBOR strike price of 8.50%. This cap
expires on November 15, 2007. The interest rate cap has a notional amount covering the entire $350,000,000 of
the CMBS Floating Rate loan.

X * .o
S . L}

On April 1, 2005, the joint ventures that own the InterContinental Chicago and Miami hotels purchased
interest rate caps with LIBOR strike prices ranging from 5.48% to 7.42%. These caps expire on April 15, 2007.
The interest rate caps were purchased with notional amounts covering the entire $202,000,000 of the CMBS and
mezzanine loans. Concurrently with the purchase of the interest rate caps described above, SH Funding entered
into an agreement to sell caps with strike prices ranging from 5.48% to 7.42%. These caps explre on April 15,
2007 The interest rate caps were sold with notional amounts of $202,000,000. A

On 'August 18, 2004 SHR purchased aninterest rate cap with a LIBOR strike price of 5.00%. This cap had
an expiration date of July 15, 2006. Originally, an interest rate cap was purchased with a notional amount
covering the entire $200,000,000 of floating rate notes, but SHR sold an offsetting cap due to the execution of a
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swap agreement for a notional amount of $96,000,000 with Credit Suisse First Boston. On August 18, 2004, SHR
purchased an additional interest rate cap with a LIBOR strike price of 5.00%. This cap had an expiration date of
September 15, 2006 and was purchased with a notional amount covenng the additional $75 000 000 of principal.

The Company’s caps as of December 31 2006 have not been designated as hedges and therefore the mark
to market of the caps is recorded in earnings. : . '

Interest Rate Swaps:

At December 31, 2006, the aggregate notional amount of SHR's interest rate swaps was $871,000,000.
These swaps have fixed pay rates against LIBOR ranging from 3.62% to 5.50% and maturity dates ranging from
June 2007 to August 2013. The Company’s swaps as of December 31, 2006 have been designated as cash flow
hedges. .

Forward Currency Contracts: ' '

SHR may designate certain forward currency contracts as hedges agamsl its exposure to vanabllny in
exchange rates on investments in foreign subsidiaries. To the extent effective, changes in the falr value of these
instruments are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income and will subsequently be reclassified to
other income {(expenses), net, at the time the Company sells or disposes of its hedged foreign investment in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. To the extent ineffective, changes in the fair value of these
instruments are recorded in other income (expenses), net. There were no amounts recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005. The amount recorded in other income
(expenses), net was $0, $0 and $(2,725,000) for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004,
respectively.

SHR may also use forward currency contracts to manage its risk in the variability of exchange rates where
its strategy does not qualify for hedge accounting. In such instances, SHR hedges current or anticipated restricted
cash deposits denominated in foreign currencies and records the changes in fair value in other income (expenses),
net. The amount recorded in other income (expenses), net was $0, $0 and $34,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

SHR’s forward currency contracts were distributed to SHC LLC on June 29, 2004 and as of December 31,
2006 and 2005, SHR does not have any forward currency contracts.

11. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION PLANS

On June 21, 2004, the Compady adopted the 2004 Incentive Plan {the Plan). This Plan provides for the grant
of equity-based awards in the form of options to purchase shares (Options), restricted stock units (RSUs}, and
stock appreciation rights (SARs), which are collectively referred to as the Awards. The Plan authorizes the
issuance of 3,000,000 shares of common stock, which is subject to adjustments defined within the Plan
provisions. ' "

The Plan is administered by a Compensation Committee (the Committee) appointed by the board of °
directors. The Committee consists of two or more members of the board of directors, The Committee has the
authority and sole discretion to determine the type, extent, and terms (including vesting) of Awards granted, as
well as those eligible to receive Awards. Options granted have an exercise price determined by the Committee
but cannot be less than 100% of the fair market value of the shares on the grant date. The term of the Options is
determined by the Committee but is generally ten years from the date of grant.
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The Company recorded compensation expense of $3,571,000, $1,966,000, and $4,172,000 related to share-
based employee compensation (net of estimated forfeitures) for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively. As of December 31, 2006, there was $9,924,000 of total unrecognized compensation expense
related to nonvested RSUs, performance-based RSUs and stock options granted under the Plan. That cost is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 3.4 years, Effective January 1, 2006, the Company
adopted SFAS No. 123R (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment.” The adoption of this new accounting
pronouncement did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Stock Options:

On Septémber 7, 2006, SHR granted the first Options under the Pian 1o its Chief Executive Officer to
purchase 669,797 shares of common stock at a $20.40 per share exercise price. The Options will vest in three
equal annual installments beginning on December 31, 2008, subject to acceleration upon certain events, and once
vested, will remain exercisable for up to ten years after the grant date subject to earlier termination upon certain
events and other terms. The Company measures compensation expense for the Options based upon the fair value
at the date of grant as calculated by a binomial option pricing model. Compensation expense is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the service period, net of estimated forfeitures, if any. Compensation expense related to
the Options is included in corporate expenses in the consolidated statément of operations. Total unrecognized
compensation expense related to nonvested Options at December 31, 2006 was $2,616,000 and is expected to be
recognized over a period of four years.

The fair value of $4.22 per share for the Options granted was calculated by a binomial option-pricing rhodel
based on the following assumptions:

Assumptions:

Risk-free interestrate .......................... 478%
Expected dividend yleld ........................ 4.51%
Volatility e e 2391%
Expectedlife ............ ... .. ... . il 7 years

Restricted Stock Units (RSUs):

SHR has issued restricted stock units (RSUs) to certain employees, officers, and directors under its 2004
Incentive Plan. RSUs represent awards of shares of the Company’s common stock that generally vest over four
years or as otherwise approved by the Committee, provided the participant continues as an employee or director.
Unvested RSUs will be forfeited upon termination. RSUs are essentially the same as restricted stock except that
instead of actual shares, RSUs represent a promise to distribute shares at some future date. Participants holding
RSUs will have no voting rights until such time as the underlying shares are issued. Dividends will accrue on all
RSUs, and will either be reinvested in additional RSUs or paid in cash.

The Company mcasurc_:'s compensation expense for restricted shares based on the fair market value of its
common shares at the date of grant, adjusted for estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense for RSUs is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the service period and is included in corporate expenses in the
consolidated statement of operations. Total unrecognized compensation expense related to nonvested RSUs and
performance-based RSUs at December 31, 2006 was $7,308,000 and is expected to be recognized over a
weighted average period of 2.65 years.

102




STRATEGIC HOTELS & RESORTS;INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Information regarding RSU awards is summarized in the following table: P _
2006 2005 2004

U T Weighted " Weighted i Weighted
Lo Average Lo Average Average = .
Grant Date Grant Date Grant Date
Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares ' ° Fair Value
RSUs outstanding at the P
beginning of the year ... 521,520 $15.15 432,286 . $14.02 — § —
Granted ............... 308,370 20.61 190,356 18.80 432,286 14.02
Issued .......... PP S (48,382) 15.81 (55,045) 14.01 C e —
Forfeited . ... ... cole.. o (20,596) 19.22 (46,077) 1530 ., . — —
RSUs outstanding at the'
end of the year ........ 760,912 $17.00 521,520 $15.15 ' - 432,286 $14.02

On September 7, 2006 SHR granted performance-based RSUs to its Chief Executive Officer providing a
right to earn 117,647 shares of common stock (Target Shares) at target performance (Performance Shares).
Performance Shares are eamed based on the achievermnent of specified budgeted levels of Funds from Operanons
(FFO) per share and total shareholder returns measured agamst the Bloomberg Hotel REIT Index Two th}rds of
the Performance Shares are earned based on SHR’s performance versus budgeted FFO with one third eamed
based on SHR shareholder return measured against the Bloomberg REIT Index. The Performance Shares are
earned in equal amounts on three anhual measurement dates beginning Décember 31; 2007. Performance ‘Shares
actually earned will vary depending on the relativé percentage achievement compared to the targeted Coe
achievement levels. Such shares vest one year after they are earned subject to acceleration upon certain events
and other terms.

Unit Apprec:atwn nghts (UARs) and Stock Apprecnatlon nghts (SARs)

Pnor to the IPO SHR’s predecessor SHC LLC hada Unit Apprecnatmn nghts Plan for certam employees.
Awards of Unit Appreciation Rights (UARs) were earnmgs—based which allowed ehglble employees to share in
the Company’s success. The UAR Plan was accounted for under FASB Interp‘retauon No. 28 “Accounting for
Stock Appreciation Rights and Other Variable Stock Option or Award,Plans” (FIN 28). On June 29, 2004, the
UAR Plan and all outstanding UARs were cancelled. For the year ended December 31, 2004, UAR Plan expense
amounted to $l 151 000 and is included in corporate expenses in the consohdated statement of operations.

The Company ] 2004 Incentive Plan allows the Compensation Committee to grant stock appreciation rights
(SARs). As of December 31, 2006, no SARs have been issued under the Plan.

12. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Company has a defined contribution plan that covers employees meeting eligibility requirements. Prior
to July 1, 2006, the Company matched 50% of the first 6% of compensation that an employee elected to defer.
The Company’s matching contribution vested at 33.33% per year of service. Effective July 1, 2006, the Company
matches 100% of the first 6% of compensation that an employee elects to defer. The Company’s matching
contribution vests immediately. For 2006, employees’ full year compensation was considered in calculating the
Company match increase. The Company can make additional discretionary contributions up to 4% of ;
compensation. Any discretionary matching contributions vest at 33.339% per year of service. Contributions by the
Company were $490,000, $133, 000 and $103,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. .

103




STRATEGIC HOTELS & RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

13. OPERATING LEASES

Minimum future rental payments die under non- -cincelable operating leases, related to office space, hotel
ground leases, and building leases having remaining terms in excess of one year as of December 31, 2006 are as
follows (in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2007 e e $ 19,990
2008 .. e 19,705
2000 ... e e 19,705
010 .. L 19,705
2000 e e 19,705
Thereafter ..........c.ccitiint i iieneinenn 360,815

3459625

Included in the table above are the future minimum lease payments to DIFA related to the sale-leasebacks of
the Paris and Hamburg hotels (see note 3). These lease payments are included in lease expense on the
consolidated statements of operatlons .

Lease payments related to office space are included in corporate expenses on the consolidated statements of
operations and lease payments related to hotel ground leases are included in other hotel expenses on the
consolidated statements of operations.

14. INCOME TAXES

As a REIT, SHR generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax if it distributes 100% of its annual
taxable income to its shareholders. Prior to the IPO, SHR operated as an LLC and elected partnership status for
U.S. Federal and state income taxes. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements do not include a
provision for U.S. Federal income taxes. However, SHR is subject to certain state income taxes and foreign
income taxes payable by its foreign subsndxanes :

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, income tax expense from continuing operations is
summarized as follows (in thousands); : . :

2006 2005 2004
Current tax (expense) benefit:
BUTOpE . o e el $ (25 $1659 $ 139
MeEXICO . ooi it it e s e (4,455)  (3,364) 219

(4.480) . (1,705) 358

Deferred tax (expense) benefit: . .
Europe ... ... . Loue T (L029) (1,307 947)

Mexico ..... P e 1,420 - (86)  (1,799)
United States .................. R R R T 769 697 _

A ' - 1,160 (696)  (2,746)

Total INCOME (AX EXPENMSE . . . ..\ttt inir et irannenss $(3,3200 $(2,401) $(2,388)
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Deferred income taxes consist of the following as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 (in thousands):

. . . 2006 2005

Deferred gain on Paris Marriott sale ..............cooioiiiaiiiianno..s S $ 31,925 $29.878
Asset tax credit carry forwards—Mexico ..... ... oo e 1,697 1,952
Advanced deposits—MEXICO . . ...t 1,950 1,469
Net operating loss carry forwards on taxable REIT subsidiaries . . ..................... 6,550 1,800
Net operating loss carry forwards on foreign operations . ...................oiann. 7,533 —
0 11+ P 1,933 . 495

Grossdeferred tax assels ... oottt e e 51,588 35,594
Valuation allowance . . ... .ot e e e (8,033) —

Deferred tax asset after valuation allowance ...t onn-- $ 43,555 $35,594 !

Gross deferred tax liability-—book property basis in excess of tax basis ................ $(24,390) $(5,239)

The transaction involving the Paris Marriott (see note 3) was treated as a sale for French income tax
purposes. For financial reporting purposes the transaction was recorded as a sale-leaseback and the related gain
on sale has been deferred. As a result, SHR incurred a significant current tax liability and deferred tax asset. The-
deferred tax asset is reduced as the deferred gain is amortized over the life of the lease.

In 2006, the Company recorded a $4,750,000 net deferred tax benefit primarily relating to net operating loss
carryforwards in SHR’s taxable REIT subsidiaries. A significant portion of these carryforwards was generated
from expenses associated with the termination of the hotel management agreement with Marriott Hotel Services,
Inc. (see note 20) and was included in income (loss) from discontinued operations (see note 4). As a result, the
deferred tax asset applicable to the United States was $6,550,000 at December 31, 2006.

In connection with the acquisition of its joint venture partner’s 65% interest in the entity that owns the
InterContinental Hotel in Prague, Czech Republic, SHR recorded a deferred tax liability of $18,319,000 relating
to book property basis in excess of tax basis. SHR also recorded a gross deferred tax asset of $1,300,000 relating
to net operating loss carryforwards. SHR has provided a valuation allowance against the deferred tax asset which
results in a net deferred tax asset of $0 as of December 31, 2006 due to the uncertainty of realization.

In connection with the acquisition of the Marriott London Grosvenor Square hotel on August 3, 2006, SHR
recorded a gross deferréd tax asset of $2,700,000 relating to net operating loss carryforwards. SHR has provided
a valuation allowance against the deferfed tax asset which results in a net deferred tax asset of $0 as of
December 31, 2006 due the uncertainty of realization. Accordingly, no income tax expense or benefit is reflected
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations related to this property.

In 2006, the Company recorded a $3,533,000 gross deferred tax asset primarily relating to net operating loss
carryforwards pertaining to the Company’s LaSolana Hotel and Villas. The Company provided a valuation
allowance against the deferred tax asset which results in a net deferred tax asset of $0 as of December 31, 2006
due to the uncertainty of realization. Accordingly, no income tax expense or benefit is reflected in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations related to this property.
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For federal income tax purp()ses,'the cash distributions paid to the Company's common and preferred
shareholders may be characterized as ordinary income, return of capital (generally non-taxable) or capital gain.
The following characterizes distributions paid per common share and preferred share for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 (see note 9 for additional distribution information):

2006 2005 . . 2004
$ % iR % $ X
Common shares: '
© Ordinary inCOmMe .. ... ... 5023 25.48% $0.16 18.02% $0.00 0.0%
Returnof capital ...... ... ... ... ... . ... o oL 069 7452% 0.64 7294% 044 100.0%
Capital gain (Unrecaptured Section 1250 gain) ........ 000 0.00% 008 504% 0.00 0.0%
H . . 50.92 100.0% $0.88 100.0% $0.44 -100.0%
Preferred shares (Series A): . . ', )
Ordinary iNCOME ... ... ittt $2.13 100.0% $1.54 90.96% N/A N/A
Capital gain (Unrecaptured Section 1250 gain) ........ 000 000% 0.15 904% NA NA

$2.13 100.0% $1.69 100.0%

] Y Il

Preferred shares (Series B): ‘ ' '
Ordinary income .......0........... s JU $1.89 1000% N/A NA NA NA
Capital gain (Unrecaptured Section 1250 gain) ........ 0.00 0.00% NA NA N/A  N/A

$1.89  100.0%

Preferred shares (Series C): o C
100.0% N/A N/A N/A N/A

Ordinary inCOME .5 ... i .. e iiiianaeens $1.28
Capital gain (Unrecaptured Section 1250 gain) ........ - 000 000% NA NA N/A  N/A
: $128  100.0%
15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS ' ‘ n

Laurence Geller, SHR’s Chief Executive Ofﬁcer has an ownership interest in SHC LLC with which SHR
had an asset management agreement described below.

Under the Company’s asset management agreement with SHC LLC, the Compan); has managed the day-to-day
business of SHC LLC and its hotels for an initial annual fee of $5,000,000, payable monthly in arrears. The term of
the agreement commenced on June 29, 2004. As a result of the disposition of properties during the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2006, the asset management fee was reduced to $703,000 on an annual basis. On .
November 15, 2006, SHC LLC voluntarily terminated the agreement. Under terms of the agreement, SHC LLC paid
a one time termination fee to the Company of $250,000. For the years ended Decemnber 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
SHR recognized $1,863,000, $5,000,000 and $2,500,000, respectively of income related to its asset management
agreement with SHC LLC, which is included in other income (expenses), net. .

The Company has a lease agreement with SHC LLC The Company subleases ofﬁce space from SHC LLC
for approximately $341,000 per year, payable monthly in advance. This lease agreement commenced on July 1,
2004 and expires October 31, 2007.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, Goldman, Sachs & Co., an affiliate of certain shareholders of
SHR, received $1,996,000 in discounts and commissions (see note 9). During the year ended December 31, 2005,
Goldman, Sachs & Co., an initial purchaser in the Series A preferred offering, received $1,000,000 of the initial
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purchasers’ discount, which was recorded as a reduction of the preferred stock proceeds. In 2005, Goldman,
Sachs & Co. also received $1,446,000 in fees as an underwriter for the August 2005 common stock offering.
During the year ended December 31, 2004, Goldman, Sachs & Co., the lead underwriter of the [PO, received a
portion of the underwriting discount of $19,835,000, which was recorded as a reduction of equity. Goldman,
Sachs & Co. also received $2,530,000 in fees for financial advisory services related to the refinancing of the debt
in 2004, which was recorded as deferred financing costs. In addition, during the year ended December 31, 2004,
Prudential Real Estate Investors, a shareholder of SHR, earned $1,000,000 for financial advisory services in
connection with the IPO. These fees were recorded as a reduction of equity.

Included in the severance costs for 2004 is $127,000 relating to the resignation of SHR’s Chief Financial
Officer on August 30, 2004 and $640,000 relating to a severance agreement with Tanya Geller, the daughter of
Laurence Geller. These costs are included in corporate expenses on the accompanying consolidated statement of
operations. '

16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Environmental Matters:

Generally, the properties acquired by SHR have been subjected to environmental reviews. While some of
these assessments have led to further investigation and sampling, none of the environmental assessments has
revealed, nor is SHR aware of any environmental liability that SHR believes would have a material adverse
effect on its business or financial statements. '

Litigation:

SHR is party to various claims and routine litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. Based on
discussions with legal counsel, SHR does not believe that the results of these claims and litigation, individually
or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on its business or financial statements.

Letters of Credit:

As of December 31, 2006, SHR had provided $12,000,000 in letters of credit. Letters of credit for
$11,000,000 were required to be issued as an earnest money deposit under SHR's agreement to acquire an
interest in a to-be-built mixed use building adjacent to the Fairmont Chicago property {see note 3). Under the
agreement, subject to the progress of the construction, the letters of credit commitment will increase to
$23,000,000 during the next two years, The letters of credit commitment will decrease upon the first of two
scheduled closings under the construction timeline in 2008. The project is expected to close in late 2009. A letter
of credit for $1,000,000 was provided related to a construction project at one of SHR’s properties.

Retirement Fund:

As a result of the acquisition of the Marriott London Grosvenor Square hotel on August 31, 2006, the
Company assumed the liability to fund the London Marriott Retirement Fund, a defined benefit plan that covers
certain current and former Marriott employees. On August 31, 2006, the plan was frozen 10 new participants and
there will be no future earning of benefits relative to service. The Company recorded the net obligation in respect
to the plan in accordance with SFAS No. 158, “Accounting for Defined Benefit and Postretirement Benefit
Obligations”. The unfunded pension liability at December 31, 2006 was £281,000 ($550,000 based on the foreign
exchange rate as of December 31, 2006) and is recorded in accounts payable and accrued expenses. '

17. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

* As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the carrying amounts of certain financial instruments employed by
SHR, including cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, insurance
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recoveries receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses were representative of their fair values because of
the short-term maturity of these instruments. At December 31,2006 and _2005,'the fair values of the fixed-rate -
mortgage debt were approximately $9,563,000 and $11,259,000; respectively, lower than the book values of
approximately $201,777,000 and $204,462,000, respectively, primarily due to the general increase in market
interest rates. Thé additional mortgage debt, other debt, and bank credit facility have relatively current issuance’
dates and have interest rates that fluctuate based on published market rates; therefore, management believes the
carrying values of the additional mortgage debt, other debt, and bank credit facility are’a reasonable estimation of
their fair value as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, Interest rate swap and cap agreements have been recorded at
their estimated fair values. .

18. GEOGRAPHIC AND BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION "

SHR operates in one reportable business segment, hotel ownership. As of December 31, 2006, SHR’s
foreign operations consisted of two Mexican hotel properties, the LaSolana Hotel and Villas Development Sites,
a 31% interest in a Mexican joint venture, two European properties and leasehold interests in each of a French
and a German hotel property. _ .

The following table preserlts revenues and assets for the geographical areas in which SHR operates
(excluding the unconsolidated joint ventires and discontinued operatlons) (in thousands):

Years ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004 |
Revenues: | . L _ PR P . -
United States .................... i $ 598390 $ 351,143 $326,175
International .............. e 120,983 78,399 78,694
Total ... e e $ 719,373 $ 429,542  $404,869
T ' : December 31,

. } , . - ' o ,2006, . 2005
Long-lived Assets: R Co : ' -
United States . ............ S T S .. $2.261,706  $1,039,269-
International ................... P S - 580,732 112,07}
Total ..ol R I $2,842,438  $1,151,340

19. HYATT REGENCY NEW ORLEANS o

In August 2005, Hurricane Katrina caused substannal damage to the Hyatt Regency New Orleans property.
The hurricane damage also caused sngmficant mterrupuon to the busmess and the hotel has effectively ceased
operations. . . L, .

The Company has comprehensive i 1nsurance coverage (both property damage and business mterrupuon) for
this loss providing for an aggregate of $350,000, 000, subject to a deductible of approx1mate]y $11,000,000. The
Company’s damage assessment teams, working with the insurance provider adjusters, have inspected the
property and are implementing a restoration plan. The recovery effort is expected to include replacing portions-of
the building, landscaping and furniture. The net book value of the property damage is currently estimated to be at
least $32,685,000; however, while the Company has substantially completéd its evaluation of the impact of the
hurricane on the hotel and is in the process of planning reconstruction activities, the actual net book value
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write-off could vary from this estimate. Changes to this estimate will be recorded in the periods in which they are
determined. A $3,000,000 increase in the property damage was recorded during the first quarter of 2006. As of
December 31, 2006, the Company has recorded a net fixed asset write-off and a corresponding insurance
recoveries receivable for this $32,685,000 net book value amourit because the Company believes that itis -
probable that the insurance récovery, net of deductibles on a replacement cost basis, wﬂl exceed the net book
value of the damaged pomon of the assets.

Certain deductibles and limitations will apply to insurance proceeds. No determination has been made as to
the total amount or timing of those insurance payments and those insurance payments may not be sufficient to
cover the costs of the entire restoration. To the extent that insurance proceeds, which are on a replacement cost -
basis, ultimately exceed the net book value of the damaged property, a gain wilt be recorded in the period when
all contingencies related to the insurance claim have been resolved.

! .

The Company has hired consultants to assess business interruption claims who are currently negotiating
with the insurance carrier regarding coverage for these income losses sustained. To the extent the Company is
entitled to recover incurred expenses under the insurance policies, the Company recognizes a receivable when it
can be demonstrated that it is probable that such insurance recovery will be realized, and such insurance recovery
will then be reflected as a component of operating income. Any gain or profit component resullmg from business
interruption insurance for lost income will not be recognized until the relevant payments have been received and
all contingencies related to the insurance recoveries are reso]ved This income recognition criteria will likely
result in business interruption insurance recoveries being recorded in a period subsequent to the period that the
Company experiences lost income from the affected property, resulting in fluctuations in the Company’s net
income that may reduce the comparabnhly of reported quarterly and annual results for some periods into the
future. .-

Through December 31, 2006, the Company had received $68,214,000 relating to property damage and
business interruption insurance proceeds. The Company has recorded a receivable of $47,420,000, comprised of
$32,685,000 of assets destroyed and the probable recovery of $14,735,000 of expenses incurred. The difference
between the insurance proceeds received and the above-mentioned receivable represents advance claim payments
from the insurance company and is recorded as a deferred credit of $20,794,000 at December 31, 2006 in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The cost recoveries are recorded on the expense line item to which
they relate, and therefore there is no net impact to any expense line item or the Company’s resules. Since the
property has ceased significant operations, the Company discontinued depreciating property and equipment
starting in September 2005. In addition, the Company has capitalized interest expense amounting to 35,103 000
and $1,746,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, and will continue to capitalize
interest on the property’s debt as long as the property is undergoing active reconstruction activities to return to
normal operations.

The following is a summary of hurricane-related activity recorded (in thousands):

Fixed assets net book value write dOWI .. . ...t rn et i iae e $ 32,685
Recovery of costs incurred .. ... 14,735
Insurance proceeds received as of December 31,2006 ...... ... ..o i (68,214)

Insurance proceeds received in excess of insurance recoveries receivable as of
December 31, 2000 . ...ttt e e s $(20,794)
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20. TERMINATION OF MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

During the first quarter of 2006, the Company reached an agreement with Marriott Hotel Services, Inc.
(MHS), the manager of its Marriott Rancho Las Palmas Resort, to terminate the hotel management contract with
MHS on or before December 29, 2006. Under the agreement, the Company was required to pay MHS an initial
termination fee of $5,000,000 upon termination, and an additional termination fee of $5,000,000 in 2009,
provided that the additional termination fee will not be required if the Company has entered into a qualifying
hotel management contract with MHS, or an affiliate, by December 31, 2008, Upon disposition of the Marriott
Rancho Las Palmas Resort on July 14, 2006, the Company paid MHS the initial termination fee of $5,000,000.
The Company also agreed to reimburse MHS for certain severance and relocation costs for MHS employees at
the resort. For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company recorded a charge of $9,851,000 for the present
value of the termination fees and estimated severance and relocation costs. The charges are included in
discontinued operations in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2006. The amount payable at December 31, 2006 was $4,694,000 and is recorded in accounts
payable and accrued expenses.

21. QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS (UNAUDITED)

~ The Company’s unaudited consolidated quarterly operating data for the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005 follows. Certain 2006 and 2005 items have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation of '
discontinued operations. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals)
necessary for a fair presentation of quarterly results have been reflected in the data. It is also managemer_p’s
opinion, however, that quarterly operating data for hotel enterprises are not indicative of results to be achieved in
succeeding quarters or years. ' '
Year ended December 31, 2006

(Dollars in thousands,
except per share data)

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

REVETILES .« .ot i e et et e it ensnananannns e $122.780 $152.604 $201.440 $242.549
Income (loss) from continuing operations available to common shareholders .. ........... $ 2041 $ 9072 § 3495 § (5658)
(Loss) income from discontinued Operations . ............ooueenienerneriarailoan. (3.464) 2,636 87.932 (468)
Net (loss) income available to common shareholders ............... ... . ... ... L. $ (1,423) $ 11,708 § 91 427 % (6,126)
Eamings per weighted average common share outstanding—Basic . . '

Income (loss) from continuing operations available to common shareholders per share .. ... $ 004 $ 014 3§ 005 $ (0L.OT)
(Loss) income from discontinued operations pershare _............... . 00 ea (0.07) 0.04 1.16 (0.01)
Net (loss) income available to common shareholders pershare ........................ $ (03 § 018 % 121 § (0.08)
Weighted average common shares outstanding—Basic ............... ... 460,763 66,187 75576 75,713
Eamings per weighted average common share outstanding—Diluted

Income (foss) from continuing operations availabte to common shareholders per share .. ... $ 004 $ 014 3§ 005 § (0.07)
(Loss) income from discontinued operaticns pershare ........ . ... .. .0 iiiiiiia, 0.07) 0.04 1.16 (0.01)
Net (loss) income available to common shareholders pershare . ..................... L. % (003 $ 018 § 121 § (0.08)
Weighted average common shares outstanding—Diluted ................... ..., 46,939 66,387 75,780 75,713
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STRATEGIC HOTELS & RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Year ended December 31, 2005

(Dollars in thousands,
except per share data)

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Revenues ................... e e e e e e $88,331 85114295 $107,196 $119,720

Income (loss) from continuing operations available 1o common shareholders ............. $4162 § 2714 § (60T § (4,071
Income (loss) from discontinued Operations . ........ ..o iiii e 2.588 1.264 (620) 18,077

Net income (loss) available to common sharehoiders . .................... ... .. .0 $6750 § 3978 % (1.227) % 14,006

Eamings per weighted averaéc common share cutstanding—Basic

Income (loss) from continuing operations available to common shareholders per share ... .. $ 014 $ 009 3 (001) $ (0.09
Income (loss) from discontinued operations pershare ....... ... ... i 0.08 0.04 (0.02) 0.41

Net income (loss) available to common shareholders pershare ................ ... ... $§ 022 $ 013 § (003 5 032

Weighted average common shares cutstanding—Basic ........... ... 30247 30,257 36,691 44,086

Eamings per weighted average common share outstanding—Diluted

Income (loss) from continuing operations available to common shareholders per share . .... $ 014 $ 009 5 (00D 3§ (009
Income (loss) from discontinued operations pershare . ........ ..o iana L. 0.08 0.04 (0.02) 041

Net income (loss) available to common shareholders pershare . ... ... ... ... o0 $ 022 $ 013 § (03 % 0.32

Weighted average common shares outstanding—Diluted ... 30,357 30,406 36,691 44,086

The Marriott domestic hotels report their results of operations using a fiscal year consisting of thirteen four-
week penods As a result, for SHR’s domestic Marriott branded properties, for all years presented the first three
quarters consist of 12 weeks each and the fourth quarter consists of 16 weeks. f

22. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On February 20, 2007, the Company entered into a facility agreement with Aareal Bank as lender. The
facility agreement provides the Company with a €104,000,000 ($136,700,000 based on the foreign exchange rate
as of February 20, 2007) revolving loan. The Company plans an initial draw on the facility in early March 2007.
Draws on the facility will be used to retire the existing mortgage loan {principal balance of €66,501,000at
December 31, 2006) and for general corporate purposes. At the Company’s option, this revolving loan will
mature 364 days after the initial draw or be converted to a term Joan that would mature in 2012. Interest is
payable quarterly at EURIBOR (3.38% at December 31, 2006) plus 1.25% during the revolving term and
EURIBOR plus 1.20% during the term-loan period. At maturity, the principal and any unpaid interest are due.
The loan is secured by, among other things, the InterContinental Prague hotel.
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STRATEGIC HOTELS & RESORTS, INC.

REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

December 31, 2006
(In Thousands)

Notes:

(A) Thé change in total cost of properties for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 an'd 2004 is as.

follows:

December 31,2006-  December 31,2005  December 31, 2004

Balance, beginning of period . . ..
Additions:
Acquisition of property ........
Improvements . ..............
Deductions:
Distributed properties’ .........
Restructuring of the Paris
Marriott ..................
Dispositions .. ... e
Property damage writedown ...
Impairment of hotel property . . ..

Balance, end of period ... ... ..

$1,087,142

1,258,287
9,537

(88.597)
3,774)

$ 779,734 $1,646,786 -
402,037 99,500

1,531 ' -

—_ . (780,195)

— (86,278)

. (59,378) (92,377)
(36,782) - - —
— (1,702)

$ 779,734

51,087,142

(B) The change in accumutated depretiation and amortization of real estate assets for the years ended

December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 is as follows:

December 31, 2006

December 31, 2005 - December 31, 2004

Balance, beginning of period . . ..
Depreciation and amortization . . .
Distributed properties .........
Restructuring of the Paris
Marriott . .................
Property damage writedown .. ..
Dispositions .................

Balance, end of period ....... ..

$112,525
32,976

$108,755 $ 278,039

20,512 16,978

— {143,643)

— (17.494)
(11,481) —

(5,261) (25,125)

$112,525 $ 108,755

(C) The aggregate cost of properties for Federal income tax purposes is approximately $2,228,000 at

December 31, 2006.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
S (o ; . .

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of

SHC Prague InterContinental B.V.

Amsterdam, The Netherlands

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of SHC Prague InterContinental B.V. and
subsidiaries (“the Company”) as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 dnd the related consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the two years in the
period ended December 31, 2005. These financial statemients are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Qur-responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain.reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required
to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits
included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion cn the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall balance sheet presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position ofi the Company and subsidiaries as of December-31, 2005 and 2004 and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2005, in conformity with
accounting principles generally.accepted in the United States of America.

.- . N . ',
Deloitte s.r.o. . . e

Prague, Czech Republic
February 24, 2006
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SHC Prague InterContinental B.V. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In $ thousands)

Assets

Property and equipment, net (Note 3) .. ... . . . . i s
Goodwill ........ ... . .. i, e e e e e
Cashand cashequivalents .. ......... . i
Restrictedcash (Note 4} ... . .o i i it e it

Receivables (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $ 254 and $ 284,

TESPECHIVElY ) . . . e e
Deferred financing costs (Note 5) ... ... . i i
L0 T g LY -

O Al BSOS . . .. ittt ittt e e e e

Liabilities

Bank debt (NOte 5) ... i i e e e
Interest accrued onbank debt . ... ... . e
Notes payable to affiliates (Note 5) . ... ... ... ... ... . .
Interest accrued on notes payable to affiliates . . ............. ... ... ... ... ...,
Accounts payable . . ... ... e
Accrued Habilities .. ...... ... o ot e
AdvanCE dePoSitS . .. ... it e i e e
Current income taxes payable . ... ... . . e
Deferred tax liabilities (INOIE 7) . .. .. i e e e e

Total liabilities . ... ....... .. i i e
Minority interest (Note 8) .. ... i e

Shareholders’ equity
Common stock—90,000 shares authorized, 18,500 issued and outstanding with a par

value of EURO 1 ... . et e
Additional paid-incapital ........ . e e
Retained eamnings ... ... .. i i i e
Accumulated other comprehensive income . ........ ... ... . ... il

Total shareholders’ equity ............. ... .. ... . i
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ... ... ... ... ......................

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Unaudited
July 31, December 31,
2006 2005
$ 96,662 § 90438
33,255 30,334
10,902 10,703
7.226 6,621
3,522 . 2929
47 335
2,098 1,319
$153,712  $142,679
$ 85891 $ 82,440
187 668
1,542 1,542
301 225
2,091 2,274
2,664 1,998
1,910 1,115
27 400
15,025 14,243
109,638 104,905
1,786 1,631
20 20
24,350 24,350
1,177 923
16,741 10,850
42,288 36,143
$153,712  $142,679




SHC Prague InterContinental B.V, and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income

(In $ thousands)

Revenues

ROOTIS - v v v e e s e e e e e et et e e e ettt
Food and DEVETAgE . .« ..ottt e
Other operated dePartMents . . ... .o v v e rueanr e aaiai s s
RENUAI FEVEILIE . .. v ot te ettt te s nmaa et inm e eaa s an s asas ity

Total revenues .............cvnvruaeannnnsns S

Caosts and expenses

Rogms .......... P S R L L LR R R R R R
Food and BeVErage . ...\ .ei ottt i e
Other operated dePaMmMENLS . . ... .ottt tiarrnteiaarrateeaaians et
Depreciation and amortization . . .............. .. e
Management fees and other services (Note 10) . ........oviiincici i
Administrative and general . ... ...
Property operation and MaifeNance ............coveeermnremnrararioieaeean.
COTPOTALE EXPETISES ..o u vt v vneanearasesrs s s st e an st an s r st
Marketing . ......... e A e
UBIIEY COSIS « vttt v e e e et e e s saee et

Total costs and expenses ................ PR e

Insurance proceeds, net of flood costs (the 1) TSP

Operating income ... ...
IOETES ICOIMIE .« o v v v v e et ot ee et etass s st s s s s tacaeasennasass
Interest expense—affiliales . .......... oo
Interest expense—bank foan ............. U
Other financial expense (income), net (Note 11} ............. e e
Gain ondisposal of subsidiary .. ... .

Income before income taxes and minority interest \.......... I . P
Income tax expense (benefit)

CUITENL EAX EXPENSE . o v v v e eee e eseab e aata s st e e e mtstanarars st
Deferred tax benefit, DEL ... ... oot

Total income tax expense (Note 7) ............. e e
MINOILY INEETESL L ..ot te it et a s e e st st s

NET ICOMIE . ...ttt v e arn e naseaaassnnsaasseneaatasatassnsnennns :

Other comprehensive income (loss)
Revaluation of hedging derivatives (Note 6) . ... ...t
Foreign currency translation adjustment . ....... ...

Comprehensive iNCOME .. ... .....oirimion e

The accompanying notes are an integral part.of these consolidated financial statements.
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Unaudited
Seven months  Year ended Year ended
ended December 31, December 31,
July 31, 2006 2005 2004
$12,800 $21,672 $21,401
4,917 7937 7,581 .
1,383 2,385 2,692
802 1,537 1,280
19,902 33,531 32,954
2,169 3,628 3,233
3.155 5,049 5,123
625 978 1,000
3,217 6,139 8,910
849 1,618 1,448
2.434 3499 4,506
i,142 1,920 2,027
176 642 1,052. .
1,003 1.722 1.279
675 927 776
15,445 26,122 29,354
— — 3,255
4,457 7,409 6,855
(24) (48) (61)
97 97 452
2,265 3,848 3,902
1,040 6,391) - (2,059)
— — (454)
3,378 (2,494) 1,740
1,079 9,903 5,115
1,401 2,978 4,196
(575) (775) (1,465)
826 2,203 2,731
1 (1} - ()
254 7,701 2,385
— — (&3
5,891 (8,541) 7.835
$ 6,145 $ 2,160 $10,215




SHC Prague InterContinental B.V. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

(In $ thousands)
Accumulated
v Additional Other Total
Common Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Shareholders®
. . —. Stock Capital Earnings Income Equity
Balance as of January 1,2004, restated .................. $20 24,350 (9,163) 8,561" T $23,768
Netincome .. ..ot — — 2,385 — 2,385
Change in fair value of derivatives ....................... —_ — — - (5) S (5)
Foreign currency translation adjustments . ................. — — — 7,835 ° 7,835 7
Balance as of December 31, 2004, restated .. ............. $ 20 24,350 (6,778) 16,391 $33,983
Netincome . ....cooriii e e e — — 7,70t - 7,701
Foreign currency translation adjustments .................. — — — (5,541 ' (5,541}
Balance as of December 31,2005 ....................... $20 24,350 1923 10,850 - $36,143
Netincome/{loss) (1) ... .. ii i s — — 254 t— 254
Foreign currency translation adjustments (1) ............... — — = 5,891 5,891
Balanceas of July 31,2006 (1) ............... ... ... .. $20 24350 1,177 16,741 $42,238
] 4
(1) Amounts as of and for the seven months ended July 31, 2006 are unaudited.
| '
L ) 1
[ ¢ T
! ' vy
f f . * . ' ot
¢ Y L2 ! -
A f ! [ ot

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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‘SHC Prague InterContinental B.V,
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows '

(In $ thousands)
. Unaudited Year ended Year ended
. . i 7 months ended December 31, December 31,
) . July 31, 2006 2005 2004

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES : )
Netincome ...................... S $ 254 $ 7,701 $ 2,385
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization . ... ...........vueiiinriarrrerarararrirs 3,217 6,139 8,910
Amortization of deferred financing costs ...l 196 591 552
Deferred LaXes . . . .. .ottt e s (575) (775) (1,465)
Foreign exchange loss (gain) ... ... ...t s (732) (5.953) (1.270)
Amortization of hedging derivative . ....... .. o i i i — — - 87
Loss on disposal of property and equipment ....... L — 12 20
Gains on disposal of subsidiary ......... ... i i i — — (494)
Change in operating assets and liabilittes
Accounis receivable ... 311) (473) @7
Otherassets . ....... PP e e e e (584) 107 214
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities .............. ... oo 611 294 (365)
Accrued IBIEresl .. ..o vttt ittt s b (405) 34 (222)
KBS ..\ttt e it e e e (412) (2,080) 3,629
Net cash provided by operating activittes ........................... ... ... 1,259 5,597 11,564
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of subsidiary, netofcash.............. ... ... —_— — 485
Decrease (increase) of restrictedcash ........................ N 33 21 (1,549)
Purchases of property and equipment . .. ........... ... ... i i {803) (850) (737
Net cash used in investing activities ....................... . .. ... .. ... (770) (829) (1,801)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowing under agreements .. ......... ... e — - 6.238
Repayments of notes payable toaffiliates .................... .. ... ..ol —_— — (14,061)
Bank debt repayments . . ...t e e (2,397) (3,065) (2,945)
Deferred financing coStS . ... ..o ot i e — — (157)
Net cash used in financing activities .................... . ...l (2,397) (3,065) (10,925)
Effect of foreign exchange differencesoncash .......... ... .. ... .. ... ... 2,107 (908} 808
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASHEQUIVALENTS ..................... 199 795 (354)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD . ... .. 10,703 9,908 10,262
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE PERIOD ............. $10,902 $10,703 $ 9908
Cash paid forinterest ... ... e § 2436 $ 3328 3 4018
Cash paid fOr INCOME tAXES .« oot ettt erna e aiaaeaa s $ 1,879 $ 5,062 $ 1.067

The accompanying notes are-an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SHC Prague InterContinental B.V. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. The Consolidated Group

SHC Prague InterContinental B.V. (“the Company™) is a Dutch joint stock company that was incorporated
on August 13, 1999, The Company either wholly or majority owns or has a controlling financial interest in the
following entities: Strategic Hotel Capitai Prague, a.s. (formerly Hotel InterContinental Prague, a.s.), SHC
Management Prague, s.r.o., SHC Property Prague, s.r.o., SHC Prague TRS, a.s., SHC Prague (Gibraltar) Limited
and, until May 5, 2004, Strategic Hotel Capital Prague Holding a.s. (together these entities are collectively
referred to as “the Group™). The Group owns and operates the 364-room InterContinental Hotel in Prague, Czech
Republic. The Company’s outstanding shares are held by Eu-Hotel Pte Ltd. (owning 65% of the Company and
registered in Singapore) and SHC Prague Intercontinental, L.L.C. (owning 35% and registered in Delaware,
United States).

On August 17, 1999, the Company acquired a 92.88% share in Hotel InterContinental Prague a.s., a joint
stock company incorporated in the Czech Republic, which was later renamed Strategic Hotel Capital Prague, a.s.
(“Prague AS”™). Prague AS owned and operated a hotel located at Ndm. Curieovych 43/5, Prague 1, Czech
Republic. The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method. Since that date, the Company bhas
increased its ownership to 96.30% and the total cost of the investment at July 31, 2006 amounted to $97,450,000.
During the six month period ended July 31, 2006, the Company acquired no further shares.

After the initial acquisition in 1999, Prague AS formed two wholly-owned Czech Republic limited liability
subsidiaries, a hotel operations company, SHC Management Prague s.r.o., and a property ownership company,
SHC Property Prague s.r.o., (together “the Hotel™), by contribution of selected assets and liabilities to each
(consisting of the hotel property and all hotel operating assets and liabilities). The property ownership company
leases the hotel property to the hotel operations company under a 15-year operating lease.

On February 9, 2000, Prague AS contributed 100% of the hotel operation company and 99% of the property
ownership company to SHC Prague (Gibraltar) Limited. The contribution was valued at $98,581,000. In
exchange for the contribution, Prague AS acquired 39,999 ordinary shares of $1 par value stock in SHC Prague
(Gibraltar) Limited, which represents a 100% interest in this class of shares; however, those shares bear voting
rights lower than 0.01%. Ten thousand deferred shares and almost 100% of the voting rights in SHC Prague
(Gibraltar) Limited are owned by a company outside of the Group.

On Aungust 9, 2000, the 100% share in the hotel operations company and the 99% share in the property
ownership company were sold by SHC Prague (Gibraltar) Limited to the Company for a total consideration of
$110,000,000.

During 2004, the Company purchased 100% of a dormant Czech company, renamed SHC Prague TRS, as,,
for $77,000 (2,000,000 Czech crowns). SHC Prague TRS, a.s. had net assets at the date of acquisition totaling
$75,000 (1,970,000 Czech crowns). On June 24, 2004, SHC Prague TRS, a.s. purchased 100% of the hotel
operation company from the Company in exchange for a note payable. This note was later converted to equity, of
SHC Prague TRS, a.s. by the Company.

The investments in SHC Prague (Gibraltar) Limited and SHC Prague TRS, a.s. have been eliminated in
consolidation and the resulting increases in the values of the assets arising from the aforementioned inter-group
transactions which were recorded in the local statutory financial statements of those companies, have also been
climinated.
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The structure of the Group as at July 31, 2006 was as follows (voting interests shown):

SHC PRAGUE MINGRITY
INTER-CONTINENTAL
INVESTORS
BV,
1
' .
100% s 86.30% 3.70%
y ¥
STATEGIC HOTEL
SHC PRAGUE CAPITAL PRAGUE,
TRS, AS.
AS.
<1%
h 4
A SHC PRAGUE
' (GIBRALTAR)
. LIMITED
100% 9% 1%
h 4
SHC MANAGEMENT SHC PROPERTY
PRAGLUE, $.R.0. PRAGLUE, S.R.0.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a) Basis of Presentation
The financial statements presented are the consolidated accounts of SHC Prague InterContinental B.V. and
its subsidiaries.’
All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated as part of the consolidation process.
The consolidated financial statements are prepan‘:d under Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the

United States of America (“US GAAP*).

The financial statements are presented in U.S. Dollars and are prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
derivative financial instruments, which are measured at fair value.

All balances and amounts disclosed in the Notes to Conselidatéd Financial Statements as of and for the
seven months ended July 31, 2006 are unaudited. \

b) Revenue Recognition

Revenues are generally recognized as services are performed.

¢) Property and Equipment and Depreciation

Property and equipment consists of the hotel, acquired land and site improvements and associated furniture,
fixtures and equipment, which are carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization.

Property and equipment purchased in the normal course of business is recorded at its acquisition cost which
includes freight, customs duty and other related costs,
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The costs of improvements that extend the useful life of property and equipment are capitalized. Repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. ) .

Small tangible items are expensed upon purchase.l

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis over the future estimated useful life of the asset as

follows: . . : _ .
CBuildings ... B 37
Machinery and equipment . .. ... .. P S '4-15

Fumiture and fixtures .................. e e e 5

d) Income Taxes

The provision for income tax due is calculated in accordance with the local tax regulations of each Group
company and is based on the profit or loss reported under local accounting regulations, adjusted for appropriate
permanent and temporary differences from local taxable income.

The Group utilizes the asset and liability method of accounting for deferred income taxes. Under the asset
and liability method, deferred income taxes are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to
differences between the financial statement carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases. Realization of the future tax benefits related to deferred tax assets is dependent on many factors,
including the individual company’s ability to generate-taxable income in future periods.

e) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make '
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

f} Cash and Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments with a maturity at the time of purchase of three months or less are considered
to be cash equivalents. Temporary cash investments are comprised of term and money market deposits
denominated in U.S. Dollars, Czech Crowns and Euros.

g) Net Receivables

Receivables are carried at their nominal value and adjusted for uncollectible amounts through an allowance
account reflected in the accompanying balance sheets. Additions to the allowance account are charged to
expense. .

'

h) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost {determined on an average cost basis) or market and consist
primarily of food and beverages and supplies including assets such as china, glassware, silver, linen and
uniforms. The cost of purchased inventories includes cost of acquisition and related costs. '

i) Accodnting for long-lived assets

The Group reviews long-lived assets for impairment. Whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amounts of those assets may not be recoverable. The Group will compare undiscounted net cash
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flows estimated to be generated by those assets to the carrying amount of those assets. To the extent that these
cash flows are less than the carrying amounts of the assets, an impairment loss will be recognized to adjust the
carrying value to fair value. As of July 31, 2006, management believed that no such impairment existed.

j) Goodwill , R oo . .

‘a

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair market value of the assets acquired.
Goodwill is reviewed annually for impairment or when events and circumstances warrant such a review.

Goodwill impairment testing, which is based on fair value, is performed on a reporting unit level on an
annual basis as of December 31. Management of the Company considers the Group as a single reporlmg unit. As
of July 31, 2006, Management believed that no impairment of goodwill existed.

k) Deferred financing costs

Costs incurred as part of secyring long-term ﬁnancmg are deferred and amomzed into the consohdated
statements of operations as interest expense over the term of the debt.

l) Accounting for derivative instruments and hedging activities

Under SFAS 133, all derivative instruments are recognized in the balance sheet at their fair values and
changes in fair value are recognized immediately in earnings, unless the dérivatives qualify as hedges of future
cash flows. For derivatives‘qualifying as hedges of future cash flows, the effective portion of changes in fair
value are recorded temporarily in equity, then recognized in éarnings dlong with the related effects of the hédged
items. Any ineffective portion of hedges is reported in earnings as it occurs.

The Group does not enter into derivative instruments for any purpose other than cash flow hedging.

m) Minority Interest

Minority interest represents the portion of the historical financial statement carrying amounts of the net
assets plus or minus the net profit or loss of any subsidiary attributable to equity interests that are not owned,
directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, by the Company. - ~

n) Comprehen_sive Income . | . '

Comprehensive income is a measure of all changes in equity of an enterprise, which results from
transactions or other economic events during the period. The Group’s accumulated other comprehenswe income
results from foreign currency translation adjustments.

o) Foreign currency

The functional currency for the Company’s operating subsidiaries is the Czech crown. The functional
currency and reporting cusrency for the Company itself is U.S. dollars. Assets and liabilities denominated in
non-US dollar functional currencies are transiated into the reporting currency at rates of exchange in.effect at the
balance sheet date. Revenues and expenses are translated at average rates of exchange in effect during the period.
Differences arising from the translation from the functional to the reporting currency are recorded to accumulated
other comprehensive income. : . . \ .

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate in effect at
the date of each transaction. Differences in exchange rates during the period between the date a transaction
denominated in a foreign currency is consummated and the date on which it is either settled or translated for
inclusion in the consolidated balance sheet'are recognized in the consolidated statement of operations.
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p) Restrictions

Dividends out of the Company are restricted by equity requirements at various entities within the Group. In
addition, certa_in restricted cash balances are required by the Aareal bank debt and such balances are not available
for distribution. ‘ o '

3. Property and équipmént

Property and equipment comprises the following:

July 31, 2006
, . (unaudited) December 31, 2005

($ thousand) {$ thousand)
Land « oo $ 27258  $ 24,864
Buildings ..............coviiint. e L. 86,960 v 79,285
Furnishing and equipment . ... ... .. ... . iieieiriineannnnn.. . 71,832 65,442
Construction in progress ....... P e e e 811 | 149
Total property and equipment .:.................. e 186,361 169,740
Less: accumulated depreciation . . ... i i e (90,199) (79,302)

Property and equipment, net ............... ... $ 96,662 $ 90,438

4. Restricted cash

As of July 31, 2006 the Group presented resiricted cash of $4,505,000 (unaudited) (December 31, 2005:
$4,099,000), which will be used for property and equipment replacement in accordance with the hotel's
management agreement (Note 10). .

Other restricted cash totaling $2,721,000 (unaudited) as of July 31, 2006 (December 31, 2005: $2,522,000)
are held in the escrow accounts as a guarantee of the bank credit facilities. These accounts are subject to a
restriction on drawings.

5. Debt

At July 31, 2006 the Group had the following bank loans payable and demand promissory notes/
subordinated promissory notes.

July 31,
) 2006 December 31,
¢« Maturity (unaudited) W05
Party N Interest (on earlier of) ($ thousand)  ($ thousand})
Bank debtk(denominated in EUR) .
Aareal Bank AG ...................... EURIBOR(*) + .
1.5% See below $85,89! $82,440
Notes payable to affiliates (denominated in USD)
SHC Burope LLC .............. ... ... * 8.25% per annum, Demand or
quarterly August 16,2009 3 540 $ 540
Paris Properties PTELid. ............ ... 8.375% perannum, Demand or
' quarterly August 16,2009 § 1,002 '$ 1,002
Total notes payable toaffiliates ................... .. ... i..ccviuiiiiiann $ 1,542 $ 1,542

(*) AtlJuly 31, 2006 EURIBOR was 2.05%. At December 31, 2005 EURIBOR was 2.19%.
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SHC Europe LLC and Paris Properties PTE Ltd. are affiliates of the Company’s shareholders. The notes
payable to these entities are unsecured.

On July 14, 2003 the group refinanced its bank debt with a EUR 75 million loan negotiated with Aareal
Bank AG. An additional EUR 5 million was drawn in January 2004 under the same loan agreement between
Aareal Bank AG and the Group. The loan bears floating interest at EURIBOR+1.5% from January 2004
(previously EURIBOR+2.25%) and matures in July 2007,

The loan from Aareal Bank AG is secured by:

* pledge agreements concerning several bank accounts of SHC Management Prague, s.r.o and SHC
~  Property Prague s.r.o., SHC Prague TRS, a.s. and the Company;

- pledge agreements concerning insurance proceeds arising from certain insurance policies of SHC .
Management Prague, s.r.o and SHC Property Prague, s.r.o.;

» pledge agreements concerning claims arising from the lease agreement between SHC Management
Prague, s.r.o and SHC Property Prague, s.r.o. and (sub)lease agreements between SHC Management
. Prague, s.r.0. and third parties;

'+ =+ " mortgage'agreement concerning certain buildings and plots of land of SHC Property Prague, s.r.0.;

* pledge agreements concerning the majority of shares in Prague AS, 99% ownership interest in SHC
Property Prague, s.r.o. and 100% shares in SHC Prague TRS, a.s. held by the Company;

* pledge agreements concerning 100% ownership interest in SHC Management Prague, s.r.o. held by
SHC Prague TRS, a.5.;

* guarantee in amount EUR 75 million by SHC Property Prague, s.r.0.;

+ + « pledge-agreement concemmg certam movabie assets (FF&E) owned by SHC Management Prague,
A A R oy Ca ’

* pledge agreements concerning rights arising from the Hotel Management Agreement, the License
Agreement and the Hotel Services Agreement and

* agreement on assignment for security of proceeds arising from the Hedging Agreement.

Under the terms of the Aareal Bank AG loan agreement, the Group has two one-year extension possibilities.
In April 2006, the Group has utilized one of the one-year extensions. The maturity schedule for repayments of
the long -term bank debt at July 31, 2006 (unaudned) is as follows:

Y ear endm e . - Actual repayment schedule Repayment assuming extensions
December 31, (Euro thousand) ($ thousand) (Euro thousand) ($ thousand)
2006 (remainder) ... "€ 696 5 891 € 696 5 891
2007 e e 66,966 85,000 2,833 3,596
2008 ..\ - . = 64,133 81,404

Total ..................... R €67,662 $85,891 €67,662 $85,891

. Financing costs related to the Aareal Bank AG loan amounting to EUR 1,211,000 were mmally capitalized
in 2003 and are bemg amortized over the term of the debt (before extension options). The Group amortized as
part of interest expense $196,000 (unaudited) through the consolidated statements of operations for the seven
months ended July 31, 2006 and $591 000 and $552,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.
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As of July 31, 2006, the Group was in compliance with all terms and covenants associated with its other
loan agreements.

6. Hedging derivatives

As part of the refinancing, on July 15, 2003, the Group entered into an interest rate cap agreement to reduce
the Group's exposure to changes in future cash flows resulting from changes in the EURIBOR interest rate.

The interest rate cap agreement effectively caps the Group's variable-rate cash flow exposure to a fixed-rate
cash flow in the event that EURIBOR exceeds 5%. The interest rate cap is effective from July 15, 2003 through
July 15, 2006. The interest rate cap is accounted as an effective cash flow hedge and accordingly, the change in
the intrinsic value of the interest rate cap of $0 (unaudited) for the seven months ended July 31, 2006 and $0 and
$5,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively was recorded through “Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss)”. During 2004, $84,000, representing the remaining portion of the premium paid
for the option, was recorded as part of “Interest expense—bank loan” in the consolidated statements of
operations.

7. Taxation
Income Tax Legislation

Corporate income tax is calculated in accordance with local tax regulations (statutory corporate tax rate for
the Czech Republic is 24% in 2006 (2005: 26%, 2004: 28%).

The Dutch holding company’s investments into its subsidiaries qualify for treatment as qualifying
investments for Dutch tax purposes. Income and expenses that are directly linked to qualifying investments are
shielded from direct taxation by the Dutch tax authority and therefore income tax for this entity is calculated
based on earnings and expenses that are directly attributable to the limited operations for the Holding Company.

SHC Prague (Gibraltar) Limited is not subject to income tax under Gibraltar Law.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the balance sheel date based on the enacted tax rate
applicable to the period in which they are expected to be recovered or settled. Consequently deferred tax assets
and liabilities arising from temporary differences for the Czech operating entities are measured at 24% at July 31,
2006, which is the enacted tax rate for periods subsequent to July 31, 2006. Management records a valuation
allowance related 1o deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that such amounts will not be realized.
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The income tax effect of differences between the financial statement’s carrying amounts of existing assets

and liabilities and their respective tax base, comprising the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities on the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets, consist of the following as of;

July 31, 2006
(unandited) December 31, 2005
] . ‘ . . ‘ ($ thousand) (% thousand)

Deferred tax liabilities: - $(15,043) © $(14,119)
Property and equipment
Other (deferred financing cost, deferred foreign exchange gains) . .. 18 (330)
Total deferred tax liabilities . ... ............................. $(15,025) {14,449)
Deferred tax assets: . . .
Other .. ... e e ‘ — 503
Less: valuationallowance .............. .. ... ciiiuiiinin... — . (297)
Total deferred tax assets ....... e e e — 206
Netdeferred taxes ........... ..o, $(15,025) $(14,243)

The reconciliation of expected income tax expense to the effective income tax expense consists of the
following for the seven months ended July 31, 2006 and years ended December, 31:

Seven months

ended Year ended Year ended

July 31, 2006 December 31, December 31,

(unaudited) 2005 2004

(% thousand) {$ thousand) ($ thousand)
Income before income taxes ................. Lo $1,080 $9,903 ° $5,115
Statutory income taxrate .............0 ... .0, 24% - 26% 28%
Tax expense at Czech statutory income tax rate . e 259 2,575 1,432
Non-deductible expenses ......... e P 956 154 1,468
Non-taxable income . ..........cciiiiiivninn.. .. (381) (676) (142)
Other ... e e (8) 150 27
Total iNCOME taX EXPENSE . ... vvvvvrrnnnnerrennn.., $ 826 $2,203 $2,731

L]

8. Minority interest

Minority interest includes $1,786,000 {(unaudited) at July 31, 2006 and $1,621,000 at 31 Decefnber, 2005,
attributable to equity holders with a 3.7% interest in Strategic Hotel Capital Prague a.s.

9. Flood damage and related insurance

On August 13, 2002, catastrophic floods in the City of Prague forced the closure of the hotel until
November 4, 2002. Under the terms of its insurance contracts, the Group was entitled to receive insurance
proceeds to cover repairs/replacement of the hotel’s premises and equipment, as well as for lost revenues due to
the extended period of business interruption. The Group accounted for all operating and non-operating costs
during the period of business interruption in accordance with its normal accounting policies.

In 2004, the Group reached a final settlement with regard to the business interruption proceeds related to the
2002 floods. The Group received business interruption proceeds totaling $9,488,000. From this amount,
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$3,259,000 and $1,065,000 were recorded in its statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2004
and 2003, respectively. .

During 2003, the Group reached an agreement with its insurer with regard to the proceeds to be received for
material damages caused by the floods. Insurance proceeds totaling $2,468,000 were included as part of revenue
from insurance proceeds for the year ended December 31, 2003. Costs associated with the repair of damaged
property totaling $4,000 and $710,000 were recorded as expenses for the years ended December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively. Replacement of fixed assets destroyed in the flood were capitalized in accordance with the
Group’s normal accounting principles and.the assets that were replaced were written-off through the consolidated
statements of operations as part of flood costs. ' '

10. Hotel management and 0ther agreements

Hotel Management Agreement

.t

There is an executed Hotel Management Agreement in place between InterContinental Hotels Corporation
(“Manager™} and one of the Company’s subsidiaries. It defines general terms and a framework for Hotel
management, Manager’s compensation scheme accounting matters and taxes, repairs, maintenance, replacement,
insurance, and ﬁnancmg, etc. ‘

The fees due to the Manager include a base management fee, a license fee based upon gross receipts and an
incentive management fee based upon net operating income. Such fees total $443,000 (unaudited) for the seven
months ended July 31, 2006 and $747,000 and $777,000 for the years.ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, .
respectively, and have been included in “Management fees and other services” in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations.

In addition to the above fees, there.are centralized services fees due to the Manager. These include fees for
communication services, marketing and sales services, brand advertising and public relations, training and
education. Centralized services fees total $256,000 (unaudited) for the seven months ended July 31, 2006 and
$603,000 and $219,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The Manager is also entitled to a separate reservation fee calculated as 5% of room revenues generated
through the Manager’s reservations systems. Reservation fees total $124,000 (unaudited) for the seven months
ended July 31, 2006 and $232,000 and $247,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Asset Management Agreements

SHC DTRS Inc. (the “Asset Manager™) entered into separaie asset management agreements with certain
Group companies and is an affiliate of one of the Group’s owners. Under the terms of these agreements, the
Asset Manager provides asset management services in return for aggregate management fees equal to 3%,o0f
earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization of the Hotel. An amount of $482,000 (unaudited) for
the seven months ended July 31, 2006 and $871,000 and $671,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005 and
2004 respectively, have been included in “Management fees and other services” in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations for these services. o

Hotel Services Agreement

Effective May 24, 2004, the hotel operations company entered into a Hotel Services Agreement with an
unrelated third party service provider. Under the terms of the agreement, all employees of the Hotel were
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transferred to the service provider, and the service provider in turn supplies all necessary staffing for all of the
Hotel’s operations. In exchange for these services, the service provider is reimbursed for all costs associated with
the supply of staff (including all wages and salaries, bonuses, taxes, fringe benefits, etc.), as well as related
administrative and general expenses and operating costs, plus an additional fee of 2.75% of all service costs (as
defined in the agreement). '

In association with this agreement, the hotel operations company has entered into separate call and put
option agreements with the owner of the service provider. Under the terms of the call option agreement, the hotel
operations company has the option to acquire 100% of the service provider for the higher of CZK 200,000
{approximately $9,000 based on exchange rate at July 31, 2006) or the net asset value of the service provider.
Under the terms of the put option agreement, the service provider has the option to sell 100% of the service
provider to the hotel operations company for the higher of CZK 200,000 or the net asset value of the service
provider. These options are not measured at fair value as the options are linked to, and would be settled by,
delivery of an unquoted equity instrument whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Mamtenance contract

In 1996 the Hotel entered into a maintenance contract for certain technologlca] equipment. The contract is
for ten years and the fee under this contract can be amended from year 10 year based on agreement by both
parties. The amount paid under the terms of this contract during the seven months ended July 31, 2006 was
$599,000 (unaudited) and $901,000 and $815,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
There are no special conditions for early termination of this contract.

11. Other financial income and expenses

" Included within other financial income and expenses are the following amounts for the seven months ended
July 31, 2006 and years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004:

Seven months ' ' '
v ended Year ended Year ended

July 31, 2006 December 31, December 31,
{unaudited) 2005 2004

(3 thousand) ($ thousand) ($ thousand)

Foreign exchange (gain) loss related to bank debt, net . $ 787 $(6,445) $(2,142)
Other foreign exchange losses, net .................. 253 54 83
Other financial (income) expenses,net . .............. $1,04

0 $(6,391) $(2,059)

Other financial income and expense in the Group's consolidated financial statements are subject to
significam volatility due to the Group’s currency exposurés. This volatility occurs at two levels in the Group:
first, at the level of the Czech operating companies, which have the Czech crown as their functional currency; -
and, sécond at the level of the Company itself, which has the US Dollar as its functional currency. While foreign
exchange volatility arises on all assets and liabilities that are not denominated in the functional currency of the
Group company holding the'asset or liability, the Group’s main expostre to foreign exchange risk arises from the
Aareal bank loan.

The Company itself has drawn the Euro-denominated bank loan; however, most of the loan has been lent on
to the hotel operating company as a separate Euro-denominated inter-group loan. At July 31, 2006, the
Company’s loan balance from the hotel operating company was $62,937,000 (unaudited) (December 31, 2005:
$60,408,000). As a result, the Company had in its stand-alone financial statements a net Euro exposure related to
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the Aareal Bank loan of $22,955,000 {unaudited) at July 31, 2006 {December 31, 2005: $22,032,000). Changes
in the US Dollar to Euro exchange rate directly impact the consolidated statements of operations with respect to
this net exposure. ' S =

Foreign exchange volatility in the Czech operating companies arises mainly due 1o the outstanding Euro-
denominated loan from the Company. Because the functional currency of the hotel operating company is the
Czech crown, revaluation differences arising from the converston of this toan from Euros to Czech crowns is
recorded through the consolidated statements of operations.

The Group has not hedged the exposures in the Company or in the hotel operating comipany arising from the
Aareal Bank loan partly because of the cost involved and also because Management believes that the loan is an
economic hedge of the net assets of the Czech operating companies. Currently the Czech crown is a separate
legal currency, however, it is expected that in the coming years the Czech Republic will adopt the Euro and as a
result all assets and liabilities of the operating companies will eventuatly become Euro-denominated.

When assessing the overall impact of changing exchange rates on the financial results and position of the
Group, it is also important to consider the effect of the change in the Czech crown to US Dollar exchange rate on
the net assets of the Czech operating companies, whose functional currency is the Czech crown. This impact is
recorded through the currency translation adjustment.

12. Financial instruments

Fair values of current assets and current liabilities are equal to their reported carrying amounts because of
the short maturity of those instruments. The carrying value of the bank debt approximates its fair value, as this
instrument bears interest at floating rate. If the outstanding demand notes payable, which bear interest at fixed
rates, are repaid at their latest maturity dates then the fair value of these notes would be estimated as to be
$1,540.000 (unaudited) at July 31, 2006 (December 31, 2005: $1,632,000).

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Group to concentrations of credit risk, consist
principally of trade accounts receivable. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade accounts receivable
are limited due to a large number of customers and their dispersion across many geographical areas.

13. Related parties

Included within accounts payable at July 31, 2006 are $940,000 (unaudited) (December 31, 2005: $940,000)
due to Paris Properties PTE Ltd. and $506,000 (December 31, 2005: $505,000) due to SHC Europe, L.L.C.,
which are affiliates of the Company’s shareholders.

See Note 5 for demand promissory notesfsubordinated promissory notes from related parties. See also
Note 9 for Asset Management Agreement.

14. Commitments and contingencies
Environmental Matters

The property acquired by the Group has been subjected to environmental reviews. While some of these
assessments have led to further investigation and sampling, none of the environmental assessments have
revealed, nor is the Group aware of, any environmental liability that the Group believes would have a material
adverse effect on the Group’s business or financial statements.
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Litigation o

The Group is party to various claims and routine litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. Based
on discussions with legal counsel, Management does not believe that the results of these claims and litigation,
individually or in the aggregate, wili have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business or financial
statements.

15. Subsequent events (unaudited)

On. August 3, 2006, SHC Prague InterContinental, L.L.C., a wholly owned subsidiary of Strategic Hotel
Funding, L.L..C., the operating company of Strategic Hotels & Resorts, Inc., closed on its acquisition of a 65%
interest in the Group from EU-Hotel PTE Limited and Paris Properties PTE Limited, affiliates of GIC Real
Estate, Inc., for $68.8 million and an assumption of approximately $56.5 million in debt (the “Acquisition™). The
Acquisition brought SHC Prague InterContinental, L.L.C.’s interest in the entity that owns the InterContinental |
Prague Hotel to 100%.

On February 20, 2007, the Company entered into a facility agreement with Aareal Bank, as lender. The
facility agreement provides the Company with a €104,000,000 ($136,700,000 based on the foreign exchange rate
as of February 20, 2007) revolving loan. The Company plans an initial draw on the facility in early March 2007.
Draws on the facility will be used to retire the existing mortgage loan (principal balance of €66,501,000 at
December 31, 2006) and for general corporate purposes. At the Company’s option, this revolving loan will
mature 364 days after the initial draw or be converted to a term loan that would mature in 2012. Interest is
payable quarterly at EURIBOR (3.38% at December 31, 2006) plus 1.25% during the revolving term and
EURIBOR plus 1.20% during the term-loan period. At maturity, the principal and any unpaid mterest are due. .
The loan is secured by, among other things, the InterContinental Prague hotel.

130




ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND.DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

None. : v . ] .

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES. .

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures - ,

An evaluation of the effectiveness of.the design and operation of our “dlsclosure controls and procedures |
(as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange.Act of 1934, as amended), as of the end of the
period covered by this annual report on Form-10:K, was made under the supervision and with the participation of.
our management, including our Chief Executive Officer-and our Cliief Financial Officer. Based upon this
evaluation, as of December 31,-2006, our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer concluded that
our disclosure controls and procedures are effeéctive to ensure that information required to be disclosed by usin —
reports filed or submitted under.the Securities Exchange Act is recorded, processéd, summarized: and reported
within the‘time periods specified in-the SEC’s rules and forms and that information required to be disclosed by us
in reports filed or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Ofﬁcer as appropnate to allow timely
decisions regardmg requlred dlsclosure ‘ : . o o T : '

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting S 1

Our management is respons:ble for establishing and mamta.mmg adequate internal control over ﬁnanmal
reporting, and for performing an assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31 2006. Internal control over, financial reporting is a process designed to prov1de reasonable
assurance 10 our ‘management and board of directors regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparatlon and fair presentauon of pubhshed ﬁnancral statements Our’ system of internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of récords that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and falrly ref]ect the transacuons and dxsposmons of our assets; (ii) prov1de reasonable
assurance that transactxons are recorded as necessary to permit preparatlon of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accountmg principles, and that receipts and expenditures are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of our management and directors; and (iii} provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or dlsposmon of our assets that could
have a matenal effect on the financnal Statements. ‘ X

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed',' have inherent limitations. Therefore; even those
systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement
preparation and preseritations. Also, the effectiveness of intemnal control over finanéial reporting may deteriorate in
future periods due to either changes in conditions or declining levels of compliancé with policies or procedures.

. L : [ v - I I .

Our management assessed-the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
Decéember 31, 2006. In making this assessment, management used criteria set forth'in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. We have excluded
the Ritz-Carlton Laguna Niguel Hotel, the Marriott Grosvenor Square Hotel and the Fairmont Scottsdale Princess
Hotel from our evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006,
because these hotels were acquired by us during the second half of 2006. The total assets and total revenues of the
aforementioned hotels represent 29.0% and 11.9%, respectively, of the related conselidated financial statement
amounts as of and for the year ended December 3] 2006. : : o

Based on this-assessment management beheves that as of December 31, 2006 our mtemal conirol over
ﬁnancml reporting was effective based on such criteria. P

LI

Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, issued an audit report on
management’s assessment of internal control over financial reporting. This report appears below.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM‘ _

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Strategic Hotels & Resorts, Inc.
Chicago, 1llinois . )

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the 'ﬁccompanyin‘g Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Strategic Hotels & Resorts, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”’) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. As'described in Management*s, Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting, management excluded from their assessment the internal control over financial reporting at
Ritz-Carlton Laguna Niguel Hotel, which was acquired on July 7, 2006, the Marriott Grosvenor Square Hotel
which was acquired on August 31, 2006, and the Fairmont Scottsdale Princess Hotel, which was acquired on
September 1, 2006, whose combined financial statements reflect total assets and revenue constituting 29.0% and
11.9%, respectively, of the related consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2006. Accordingly, our audit did not include the internal control over financial reporting at the
Ritz-Carlton Laguna Niguel Hotel, the Marriott Grosvenor Square Hotel or the Fairmont Scotisdale Princess
Hotel. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal contrel over financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectlveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our
audit included obtaining an undérstanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assgssment, lestmg and evaluating the demgn and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures 'as wé considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audnt provides a
reasonable basis for our ‘opinions.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of,
the company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and
effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. y

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal
control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

132




In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria
established in Internal Control—Iintegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on the criteria established in fnternal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. '

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2006, of the Company and our report dated March 1, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion
on those financial statements and financial statement schedule. -

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Chicago, Illinois
March 1, 2007

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial 'Reporting

There have been no changes in our iriternal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of
the Exchange Act) during the quarter ended December 31, 2006 that have matenially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial reporting.

Lo 0 )

ITEM 9B., OTHER INFORMATION.

None.
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. R © PART I

l' M

ITEM 10, DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The mformanon requ1red by Items 401 405, 406 and 407((:)(3) (d)(4} and (d)(5) of Regu]atlon S- K is |
incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed not later than Apnl 30,
2007 with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act. |

. . s, [

I'I‘EM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION ‘ : S
. M 1. R RS . *

The irformation required by Item 402 and paragraph {e)(4) and (e)(5) of Item 407 of Regulation 5-K is
incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed not later'than April 30,
2007 with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act.

S

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT )
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The information required by Items 201(d) and 403 of Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference to,
the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed not later than April 30, 2007 wuh the Securities and
Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A under-the Exchange Act, . T -

! AR ? b * ) ' - tob [

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE.

The information required by Items 404 and 407(a) of Regulation S-K iélihc‘ofpbfated hercin by reference to
the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed not later than April 30, 2007 with the Securities and
Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES.

The information required by Item 9(e) of Schedule 14A is incorporated herein by reference to the
Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed not later than April 30, 2007 with the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE.

The exhibits required to be filed by Item 601 of Regulation S-K are listed in the Exhibit index, which is
attached hereto, and incorporated by reference herein.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

- STrRATEGIC HOTELS & RESORTS, INC.

Dated: March 1, 2007 . By:/s/ LAURENCE S. GELLER

Laurence S, Geller '» .
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements _of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Each Datea: March 1, 2007 ' ' .' By: /S/ LAURENCE S. GELLER

Laurence S. Geller
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

By: /s/ JaMmEs E. MEAD

James E. Méad
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

By: /s/ Jayson C.Cyr

. Jayson C. Cyr.
Senior Vice President and Controller

N ' By: - /s/' WiLLIAM A. PREZANT

William A. Prezant
Chairman

By: /s/- ROBERT P. BOWEN

Robert P. Bowen
Director

By: /s/  MICHAEL W. BRENNAN

Michael W. Brennan
Director

By: /s EpWARD C. COPPOLA

Edward C. Coppola
Director

John C. Deterding .
Director

By: = /s/ "JAMES A. JEFFS

James A, Jeffs Director

By: /s/ Davib M.C. MICHELS

David M.C. Michels
Director
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Exhibit
Number

EXHIBIT INDEX

Descrlptmn

3.1a
3.1b

3.1.c

3le

32

33

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Strateglc Hotel Capxtal Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the
Registrant’s Amendment No. 3 to Registration Statement on Form S-11 (File No 333-112846), filed
on June 8, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).

Articles Supplementary relating to the 8.50% Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock
(filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 1-32223), filed on
March 18, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

. Certificate of Correction relating to the 8.50% Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock

(filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (F11e No. 1- -2223) filed on
March 18§, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

Articles Supplementary relating to the 8.25% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Freferred Stock
{filed as Exhibit 3.5 to the Registrant’s Form 8-A (File No. 1-32223), filed on Jaraiary 13, 2006 and
incorporated herein by reference).

Articles Supplenientary relating to the 8.25% Series C Cumulative Redeemable Freferred Stock
(filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 1-22223), filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 21, 2006 and incorporated her:in by reference).

By-Laws of Strategic Hotel Capital, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-11 (File No. 333-112846), filed on February 13, 2004 and ixcorporated herein
by reference).

Articles of Amendment filed on March 9, 2006 with the Maryland State Departmznt of Assessments
and Taxation relating to the Company’s name change to Strategic Hotels & Resoits, Inc. (filed as
Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32223), filed on March 15,
2006 and mcorporated herein by reference).

Limited Liability Company Agreement of Strategic Hotel Funding, LLC (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant’s Amendment No. 4 to Registration Statement on Form S-11 (File No. 333-112846), filed
on June 18, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).

First Amendment, dated March 15, 2003, to Limited Liability Company Agreement of SHC Funding,
LLC (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form §-K (File No. 1-32223), filed
on March 18, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

Third Amendment to the Limited Liability Company Agreement of Strategic Hotel Funding, LLC,
dated as of January 31, 2006 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
(File No, 1-32223), filed on February 2, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference).

Fourth Amendment to the Limited Liability Company Agreement of Strategic Hotel Funding, L.L.C.,
dated as of May 17, 2006 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
(File No. 001-32223), filed on May 18, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference:).

Structuring and Contribution Agreement, dated as of February 13, 2004, by and ammong Strategic
Hotel Funding, LLC, Strategic Hotel Capital, LLC and the other parties thereto (filed as Exhibit 10.2
to the Registrant’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form 5-11 (File

No. 333-112846), filed on April 9, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Lease Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Amendment No. 3 to Registration
Statement on Form S-11 (File No. 333-112846), filed on June 8, 2004 and incorporated herein by
reference).

Form of Hotel Management Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Ziimendment No. 1
to Registration Statement on Form 5-11 (File No. 333-112846), filed on April 9, 2004 and
incorporated herein by reference).
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Exhibit
Number . Description

10.8 . Asset Management Agreement between Strategic Hotel Capital, LL.C and SHC DTRS, Inc. (filed as
Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s Amendment No, 4 to Registration Statement on Form 5-11 (File
No. 333-112846), filed on June 18, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.9 Cross-Indemnification Agreement between Strategic Hotel Capital, LLC and Strategic Hotel Capital,
Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant's Amendment No. 4 to Registration Siatement on
Form 8-11 (File No. 333-112846), filed on June 18, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.10 Form of $188.5 million Note Indenture between the issuers named therein and LaSalle Bank, N.AA.,
: as Note Trustee, secured by the properties identified therein (filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant’s
Amendment No. 4 to Registration Statement on Form S-11 (File No. 333-112846), filed on June 18,
2004 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.11 Form of Loan Agreement with respect to $220,000,000 in mortgage loan financing between the
borrowers and operating lessees named therein and German American Capital Corporation, as
Lender (filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant’s Amendment No. 4 to Registration Statement on
Form S-11 ([:‘ile No. 333-112846), fited on June 18, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.12 Form of Registration Rights Agréemenl by and between Strategic Hotel Capital, Inc. and Rockmark
Corporation (filed as Exhibit 10.11 to the Registrant’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement
on Form S$-11 (File No. 333-112846), filed on April 9, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.13 Form of Registration Rights Agreement by and among Strategic Hotel Capital, Inc., WHSHC, LLC,
WIWHSHC, LLC |, The Prudential Insurance Company of America, PIC Realty Corporation and
Strategic Value Investors LLC (filed as Exhibit 10.12 to the Registrant’s Amendment No. 1 to
Registration Statement on Form S-11 (File No. 333-112846), filed on April 9, 2004 and incorporated
herein by reference).

110.14 Strategic Hotel Capital, Inc. 2004 Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.13 to the Registrant’s
Amendment No. 3 to Registration Statement on Form S- 1 1 (File No. 333-112846), ﬁled on June 8,
2004 and incorporated herein by reference).

110.15 Strategic Hotel Capital, Inc. Employeé Stock Purchase Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the
Registrant’s Amendment No. 3 to Registration Statement on Form S-11 (File No. 333-112846), filed
on June 8, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).

110.16 Form of Strategic Hotel Capital, Inc. Stock Unit Award Agreement for employees (filed as
Exhibit 10.23 to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 1-32223), filed on March 7,
2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

+10.17 Form of Sirategic Hotel Capital, Inc. Stock Unit Award Agreement for directors (filed as
Exhibit 10.22 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Flle No I- 32223) filed on March 7,
2005 and incorporated herein by reference)

$10.18 Strategic Hotel Capital, Inc. Severance Program (filed as Exhibit 10.21 to the Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K (Flle No. 1- 32223) filed on March 7, 2005 and incorporated herein by
reference).

+10.19 Summary of Director Compensation (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 1-32223), filed on_April 5, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

$10.20  : Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by and between Laurence S. Geller and Strategic
Hotel Capital, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.15 to the Registrant’s Amendment No. 3 to Registration
Statement on Form S-11 (File No. 333-112846), filed on June 8, 2004 and incorporated herein by
reference).

110.21 Amendment No. | to Employment Agreement dated September 30, 2005, by and between the

Company and Laurence S. Geller (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 1-32223), filed on October 5, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).
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- . Description . i

110.22

$10.23°

+10.24
+10.25
£10.26
1027
110.28
$10.29
1030
£1031

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

Amendment Number 2 to Employment Agreement, dated March 14, 2006, by an1 between the
Company and Laurence 5. Geller (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 001-32223), filed on March 20, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference).

Employment Agreement by and among Strategic Hotel Capital, Inc:, Strategic Hotel Funding, LLC
and James E. Mead (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Farm 8-K (File
No. 1-32223), filed on December 1, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference). g

Severance Agreement, by and between Strategic Hotel Capital, Inc. and James Lyyman, dated
September 10, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report of. Form 10 -(Q (File

© No. 1-32223), filed on November 10, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).

Severance Agreement between Strategic Hotel Capltal Inc, and Steven N, Kisielica (filed as
Exhibit 10.27 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 1- 32223) filed on March 7,
2005 and mcorporated herein by reference).

Separatlon Agreement dated June 9, 2006, by and between the Company and Moate J. Huber (filed
as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001 32223) filed on

June 13, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference) ’ -

Emp]oyment Agreement dated as of September 7, 2006, by and between Laurenc: S. Geller and the
Company (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 001- 32223) filed on September 11, 2006, and mcorporated herein by reference).

Stock Option Agreement dated as of September 7, 2006 by and between Laurence S. Geller and the

,lCompany (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Hile'
No. 001-32223), filed on September 11, 2006, and incorperated herein by ‘references.

Stock Unit Award Agreement, dated as of September 7, 2006, by and between Laurence S. Geller

. and the Company. (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company s Current Report on Forra 8-K (File

No. 001-32223), filed on September 11, 2006, and mcorporated herein by, referen *e)

Form of stock unit award agreement for earned Performance Shares (filed as Eth bit 10.4 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001- 32223) filed on September 11, 2006, and
incorporated herein by reference).

Letter Agreement dated July 27, 2006 by and between Strateglc Hotel Funding, L.L.C. and
Stephen K. Miller (filed as Exhibit 10.20 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File
No. 001-32223), filed on November 8, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference).

Ritz-Carlton Half Moon Bay Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of July 23, 2004 (filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Reglstrant ] Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Flle No, 1-3222: ») filed on
November 10, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).

Amended and Restated Indenture for the Issuance of $275 million of Floating Ratz Notes, dated as of

June 24, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File

No. 1- 32223), filed on November 10, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).

Contribution Agreement, dated as of February 28, 2005, by and between Inter—Contmental Florida
Limited Partnershlp, Inter-Continental Florida Partner Corp Inter-Continental Florida Investment
Corp., IHG Management (Maryland) LLC, and SHC Chopm Plaza Holdings, LLC.. (filed as

" Exhibit 10.1 to th¢ Company’s Corrent Report on Form 8-K (File No. 1-32223), filed on March 2,

2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

Contribution Agreement, dated as of February 28, 2005, by and between CIMS Limited Partnershrp,
Hlinois Hotels Corp., InterContinental Hotels Group Operating Corp., IHG Management (Maryland)
LLC, and SHC Michigan Avenue Holdings, LLC. {filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Coinpany’s Current
Report on Form 8-K (File' No 1- 32223) filed on March 2, 2005 and incorporated herein by
reference).
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Exhibit

Number

Description

10.36

10.37

10.38

1039

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.46

First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of March 22, 2005, among Strategic Hotel Funding,
LLC, various financial institutions named therein and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as
Administrative Agent (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 1-32223), filed on March 25, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Indenture, dated as of March 22, 2005, among the
issuers named therein, LaSalle Bank National Association, as Note Trustee, and German American
Capital Corporation, as Noteholder (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 1-32223), filed on March 25, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

Loan Agreement ($128,000,000 Floating Rate Public Company Loan) dated as of Aprit 1, 2005
between the Borrowers named therein, as Borrowers, and German American Capital Corporation, as
Lender (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-X (File No. 1-32223),
filed on April 7, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).. -

First Mezzanine Loan Agreement ($45,000,000 Floating Rate Public Company Loan) dated as of
April 1, 2005 between SHC Michigan Avenue Mezzanine I, LLC and SHC Chopin Plaza
Mezzanine I, LLC, as Borrowers, and German American Capital Corporation, as Lender (filed as
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 1-32223), filed on April 7,
2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

Second Mezzanine Loan Agreement ($29,000,000 Floating Rate Public Company Loan) dated as of
April 1, 2005 between SHC Michigan Avenue Mezzanine II, LLC and SHC Chopin Plaza
Mezzanine II, LLC, as Borrowers, and German American Capital Corporation, as Lender (filed as
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 1-32223), filed on April 7,
2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of July 13, 2005, by and between Buckingham Fountain
Hotel, LLC and SHC Columbus Drive, LLC (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K (File No. 1-32223), filed on July 19, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of July 28, 2005 among Strategic Hotel Funding,
LLC, various financial institutions named therein and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as
Administrative Agent (ftled as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 1-32223), filed on July 29, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

Agreement for Sale and Purchase of Hotel dated as of August 24, 2005, by and between SHC Lake
Buena Vista II, LLC and HEI Lake Buena Vista LLC (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 1-32223), filed on’ August 30, 2005 and incorporated herein
by reference). ‘

Arriendmcnt to Loan Agreement, dated August 31, 2005, by and among SHC Michigan Avenue,
LLC, SHC Chopin Plaza, LLC and German American Capital Corporation (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 1-32223), filed on September 7, 2005 and
incorporated herein by reference).

Amendment to First Mezzanine Loan Agreement, dated August 31, 2005, by and among SHC
Michigan Avenue Mezzanine I, 1.L.C, SHC Chopin Plaza Mezzanine I, LLC and German American
Capital Corporation (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File

No, 1-32223), filed on September 7, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

Amendment to Second Mezzanine Loan Agreement, dated August 31, 2005, by and among SHC
Michigan Avenue Mezzanine 1, LLC, SHC Chopin Plaza Mezzanine II, LLC and German American
Capital Corporation (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File

No. 1-32223), filed on September 7, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.47

10.48

10.49

10.50

10.51

10.52

10.53

10.54 .

10.55

1056

10.57

10.58

' Agreement for Sale and Purchase of Hotel dated as of September 7, 2005 by and between SHC

Schaumburg 11, LLC and The Procaccianti Group, LLC (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K (File: No 1- 32223) filed on September 13, 2005 an} incorporated
herein by reference).

Letter Agreement, dated October 3, 2003, between Strategic Hotel Capital, LLC and SHC DTRS,
Inc. {filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 1-32223), filed on
October 5, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of October 31, 2005, by and among SHC Del Coronado,
LLC, KSL Recreation Holdings I, LLC and KSL Recreation Management Operaiions, LLC. (filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 1-32223), :filed on

November 3, 2005 a'nd incorporated herein by reference).

Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of SHC KSL Partners, L.P. by and among
SHC del GP, LLC, SHC del LP, LLC, Dcoro Holdings, LLC, KSL DC Newco, LLC and HdC DC
Corporation, dated Janua.ty 9, 2006 (ﬁled as Exhibit 10.42 to the Company’s Anriual Réport on
Form 10-K (Flle No. 1- 32223) filed on March 2, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference)

Amended and Restated Limited Liability Limited Partnership Agreement of HAdC North Beach
Development, LLLP by and among DTRS North Beach del Coronado, LLC, Dcoro Holdings, LLC,
KSL DC Newco, LLC and HAC DC Corporation, dated January 9, 2006 (filed as Exhibit 10.43 to the

' Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. l 32223) filed on March 2, 2006 and
‘incorporated herein by reference).

Amendment to Agreement for Sale and Purchase of Hotel dated as of September'7, 2005, by and

between SHC Schaumburg II, LLC and The Procaccianti Group, LLC (filed as E<hibit 10.2 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 1-32223), filed on November 10 2005 and
incorporated herein by reference).” 5

" Amendment to Loan Agreement, dated October 28, 2005 by and among SHC Michigan Avenue,

LLC, SHC Chopin Plaza, LLC and German American Capital Corporation (filed as Exhibit 10.9 to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 1-32223), filed.on Novzmber 10, 2005 and

.incorporated herein by reference). ‘

Amendment to First Mezzanine Loan Agreement, dated October 28, 2005 by and among SHC
Michigan Avenue Mezzanine I, LLC, SHC Chopin Plaza Mezzanine I, LLC and ‘Jerman American
Capital Corporation (filed as Exhibit 10.10 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File
No. 1-32223), filed on November 10, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

Amendment to Second Mezzanine Loan Agreement, dated October 28, 2005 by nd among SHC
Michigan Avenue Mezzanine II, LLC, SHC Chopin Plaza Mezzanine II, LLC and German American
Capital Corporation (filed as Exhibit 10.11 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File
No. 1-32223), filed on November 10, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference). *

. Purchase and Sale Agreement by and between SHC Washington, LLC and Georgetown Plaza

Associates LLC, dated January 21, 2006 (filed as Exhibit 10.48 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K (File No. 1-32223), filed on March 2, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference)

Amendment to Purchase and Sale Agreement by and between SHC Washington, LLC and
Georgetown Plaza Associates LLC, dated February 22, 2006 (filed as Exhibit 10.49 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form lO-K (Flle No. 1- 32223) ﬁled on March 2 "006 and
incorporated herein by reference).

Second Amended and Restated Indenture, dated as of Novernber 9, 2005, by and between the Issuers
names therein and LaSalle Bank, N.A,, as note trustee (filed as Exhibit 10.50 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K (Flle No. 1- 32223) ﬁled on March 2, 2006 and mcorporated herein by
reference). i
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.59

10.60
10.61

10.62

10.63

10.64
10.65
10.66
10.67

10.68

10.69

10.70

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of November 9, 2005; by and among Strategic
Hotel Funding, LLC, as the Borrower, the financial institutions listed therein, as the Lenders,
Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as the Administrative Agent and Wachovia Bank, N.A. as
the Syndication Agent (filed as Exhibit 10.51 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File
No. 1-32223), filed on March 2, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference).

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of April 4, 2006, between BRE/St. Francis LLC and SHC
St. Francis, LLC (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 001-32223), filed on April 7, 2006 and incorporated hereiri by reference). -

4

Real Estate Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 9, 2006 by and belween SHC Laguna Niguel 1
LLC and SHC Laguna, LL.C (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company 5 Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
{File No. 001-32223), filed on August 7, 2006 and incorporated herem by reference).

Agreemeni of Purchase and Sale, dated as of May 7, 2006, by and between New Rancho, LLC and
KSL RLP Holdings, LLC (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
(File No. 001-32223), filed on August 7, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference).

Revolving Loan Commitment Agreement, dated as of May 30, 2006, by and between Strategic Hotel
Funding, LLC and Citicorp North America, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32223), filed on August 7, 2006 and mcorporated herein by
reference).

. ot

Purchase and Sale Agreement_. dated June 30, 2006, by and between Scottsdale Princess F"armership
and SHR Scottsdale, L.L.C. (filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
(File No. 001-32223), filed on August 7, 2006 aﬁd inc'mporaled herein by reference).

Mortgage Loan Appllcauon dated JuIy 6, 2006, by and between SHR St. Franc1s L.L. C. .and
Metropolitan Life Insurance Company (ﬁled as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company s Quaner]y Reporc on
Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32223), ﬁled on November 8, 2006 and mcorporated herem by reference).

Promissory Note, dated July 6, 2006, by and between SHR St Franc1s L L.C. and Metropolitan Life
Insurance Company (filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File
No. 001-32223), filed on August 7, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference). :

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of July 28; 2006, by and between BRE/Europe 2, S.a.r.l. and
Pingleton Holding S.a.r.\. (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report of Form 8-K (File
No. 001-32223), filed on September 7, 2006, and incorporated herein by référence).

Purchase Agreement, dated as of August I, 2006, by and among EU-Hote! PTE Limited and Paris |,
Properties PTE Limited and SHC Prague InterContinental, L.L.C. (filed as Exhibit 10. 4 1o the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No..001-32223), filed on November 8, 2006 and

incorporated herein by reference).

Agreement of Purchase and Sale dated as of August 23, 2006, by and between New Burbank, L.L.C.

. and Pyramid Hotel Opportunity Venture Il LLC (filed as Exhibit 2.1 10 the Company's Current

Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32223), filed on September 13, 2006, and incorporated herein by
reference. . .

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit ‘Agreement and Omnibus Amendment to Loan
Documents, dated August 28, 2006, by and among Strategic Hotel Funding, LLC., the Company,
certain indirect subsidiaries of the Company, Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas and various
financial institutions name therein.(filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Current Report on

Form 8-K (File No. 001-32223), filed on September 1, 2006, and incorporated herein by reference).
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Nurnber

Description

10.71

10.72

10.73

10.74

10.75

10.76

10.77

10.78

10.79

10.80

10.81

10.82

10.83

Additional Revolving Loan Commitment Agreement, dated as of August 28, 2006, by and among
Strategic Hotel Funding, LL.C, Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, Wachcvia Bank, National
Association, Citicorp North America, Inc., LaSalle Bank National Association and Raymond James

"FSB (filed as Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s ‘Current Report on Form 8-K (File Mo. 001-32223), filed

on September 1, 2006, and incorporated herein by reference):

Facility Agreement, dated August 31, 2006, by and among Grosvenor Square Hatel S.a.r.l., and
Lomar Hotel Company Limited, Barclay’s Bank PLC and Barclay’s Capital Mortgage Servicing
Limited (filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File .

No. 001-32223), filed on November 8, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference).

Pbrbhase and Sale Agreemenl; dated July 5, 2006, by and between SHR Scottsdale, L.L.C., and’
Scottsdale Princess Partnership (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
{File No. 001-32223), filed on September 8, 2006, and incorporated herein by reterence).

Loan and Security Agreement, dated September 1, 2006, by and among SHR Sccttsdale X, L.L.C,,
SHR Scottsdale Y, L.L.C. and Citigroup Global Merchants Realty Corp. (filed as Exhibit 10.10 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. (01-32223), filed on November 8, 2006 and

. incorporated herein by reference).

Note, dated September 1, 2006 (filed as Exhibit 10.11 to the Company s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q (File No. 001-32223), filed on November 8, 2006 and incorporated herein twy reference).

Mezzanine Loan and Security Agreement, dated September 1, 2006, by and among SHR Scottsdale
Mezz X-i, L.L.C,, SHR Scottsdale Mezz Y-1, L.L.C., and Citigroup Global Mer¢hants Realty Corp.
(filed as Exhibit 10.12 to the Company'’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File N3, 001- 32223), filed
on November 8, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference).

Mezzanine Note, dated September 1, 2006 (filed as Exhibit 10.13 to the Compan:/’s Quarterly Report

_on Forin 10-Q (File No 0{)1 32223) ﬁled on November 8, 2006 and incorporate| herein by

reference).

Agreement of Purchase and SaIe dated as of September 26, 2006, by and between Strateglc Hotel
Funding, L.L.C. and Lakeshore East, L.L.C. (filed as Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’s-Quarterly
Report on'Form 10-Q (File No. 001 32223) ﬁled on November 8, 2006 and incorporated herein by
reference). * . .

Amendment to Promissory Note dated as-of October 20, 2006, by and between SHC Michigan -,
Avenue LLC and Citigroup Global Markets Realty Corp. (filed as Exhibit 10.19 to the Company’s
Quanerly Report on Form 10- Q (File No. 001-32223), filed on November 8, 2006 and incorporated
herein by reference).

Loan and Security Agreement dated as of Octobér 6, 2006 by and between SHC Michigan Avenue,
LLC and Citigroup Global Markets Realty Corp. (ﬁled as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s current
report on Form 8-K (File No. 001- 32223), filed on October 12, 2006 and i incorpor ated herein by
reference).

Amended and Restated Note, dated as of October 6, 2006, by and between SHC Michigan Avenue,

 LLC and Citigroup Global Realty.Corp. (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s current report on

Form 8-K (File No. 001-32223); filed on October 12, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference).

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of October 6, 2006, by and between SHC Chopin Plaza, LI.C
and Citigroup Global Markets Realty Corp. (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s current report on
Form 8-K (File No. 001-32223), filed on October 12, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference).

Amended'and Restated Note, dated as of October 6; 2006, by and between SHC Chaopin Plaza, LLC
and Citigroup Global Markets Realty Corp. (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s current report on
Form 8-K (File No. 001-32223), filed on October 12, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference).
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Number

Description

*14.1

*21.1
*23.1
*23.2
*31.1

*31.2

*32.1

*32.2

Strategic Hotels & Resorts, Inc. Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, as amended November 16,
2006

Subsidiaries of Strategic Hotels & Resorts, Inc.
Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP
Consent of Deloitte s.r.0.

Certification of Laurence S. Geller, Chief Executive Officer, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of James E. Mead, Chief Financial Officer, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

Certification of Laurence S. Geller, Chief Executive Officer, as adopted pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

Certification of James E. Mead, Chief Financial Officer, as adopted pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

t  Represents a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
*  Filed herewith.
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